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COMPANY PROFILE
AEBN

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1871) is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability. The Company’s shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 24 October 2019.

We are a provider of driving training services based in
Zhumadian City, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the
provision of driving training services through our two major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School. Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school
established and commenced operation in 2012 which offers
driving training services for preparation for driving tests of
Small Vehicles. Tong Tai School is a qualified level | driving
school established and commenced operation in 2014 which
offers driving training services for preparation for driving tests
of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

In facing the multiple rounds of attack of COVID-19 epidemic
in 2022, many industries struggled for survival. In facing the
sluggish driving training industry, arduous trainee enrollment
tasks and declining employee income, the Board remained
insightful, coordinated and tactful and forged ahead amid
difficulties. All our employees worked diligently in performing
their duties, strived for excellence and focused on trainee
enrollment. It was gratifying that the Company had tided
over the most difficult year since commencing our driving
training business 9 years ago and had accomplished various
achievements in our works.

In 2022,

Our strengths recognised. The Company was elected
as an “Excellent Case of Private Enterprises” by All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, was identified as a
“Key Laboratory” supporting driving school to the provincial
transportation industry by Henan Provincial Department of
Transportation, was awarded the “Winning Team” medal in
the “Ankang Cup” Competition by Zhumadian Federation
of Trade Unions and the medal awardee of “Caring Unit” by
the Steering Committee of Spiritual Civilization Construction
of Suiping County. One of our driving instructors, won the
trophy of “Silver Medal Instructor for Motor Vehicle Driving
at the 13th National Transportation Industry Vocational Skills
Competition”.

Facilities more advanced. With the relaxation on urban
traffic ban due to epidemic prevention, it was expected that
the number of trainee enrollment will increase. To meet the
expected demand of increasing trainees and training hours,
we had to prepare for the expansion of sites and facilities of
our training and test sites and purchase new training vehicles
and conduct readjustment and optimization to our test sites
and facilities. We established C6 test sites and located
suitable training fields. The testing venue for Road Safety
Written Test of Large Vehicles were set up in Tong Tai School,
which is convenient to trainees and is also cost saving.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE (])

Recruitment channels expanded. We produced and shot
Tik Tok Vibrato and short videos and conducted long-distance
and wide-range promotion and publicity of Tong Tai School
through broadcasting, which had effectively improved the
popularity of the Company and expanded our coverage in the
society.

In 2023, we shall focus on trainee enroliment works, we
shall be vigilant and work hard to accomplish our trainee
enrollment task to ensure the stable and continuous growth
of our revenue. With stimulating positive attitude for service
as the core, we shall conduct the themed “Striving to Be
Gold Instructors and Contributing for the New Era” campaign
among all our driving instructors and vigorously carry forward
the spirit on dedication to work. We shall improve the working
environment and pursue work safety and health in the post-
epidemic era; improve the cultural soft power of Tong Tai
School and offer every employee with more opportunities and
room to demonstrate their value of life.

In 2023, we shall leverage on the intelligence and wisdom of
all employees, fully utilise the entrepreneurial and innovative
test and training platforms and continue to boost our online
publicity on trainee enrollment through various media. With our
established foothold in Zhumadian City and market resources
in Henan Province, we shall continue to step out and explore
the resources in Xinjiang, Hainan, Sichuan, Gansu and
Guizhou. We shall seize opportunities under crisis, achieve
nirvana and surge amid difficulties.

Qi Xiangzhong
Chairman and Executive Director
27 April 2023

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

RABEEN - RARFHEHZINN
R8> MAERFR REBEXHEME
NERBR AT RABELE LM
BRE IBEATERAST LNEBEZERE

2023F HMBIEBESE —HOIIF 3
BIBRALE BRAHK NBEHEES S
SERREET BRI REE K
ANTREERER LBEBRTEER
Ziv ERERHRETHRE FHERH
R FEERERA R KM IGE R
FEM RAERCIAERE  UEBMFR
EERANESREREIF,; BASE
RERNXEREN /E—UETIR
HERAEEEEZSHHEMER -

2023F K ELREE TWERREA SR HiF
BIZAIFNEZI T EB8FNAZER
NIMABIEBEEB -FFEILEHEE
RAmEAmEE R BEELE  EE
ME-ERm I -HE -EMNEENE
TR o TEE R ME i 1T E R P mSEMm
o EREAH— IR

77 o
EERATTEE
2023F4827H



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a provider of driving training service based in
Zhumadian city, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the
provision of driving training services through our two major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School. Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school
established and commenced operation in 2012 which offers
driving training services for preparation for driving tests of
Small Vehicles. Tong Tai School is a qualified level | driving
school established and commenced operation in 2014 which
offers driving training services for preparation for driving tests
of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles.

Tong Tai School and Shun Da School are currently offering
two types of driving training courses for our trainees, namely
standard courses and premium courses. Standard courses
are designed for trainees who wish to complete only part of
the minimum training hours requirements with lower course
fees and less training hours. Trainees, who have enrolled
in our standard courses, wish to fulfil the minimum training
hours requirements, or for other reasons wish to have
further training, may subscribe from the respective school
for additional training services on an hourly basis. Premium
courses offer to trainees driving training for a number of
training hours that is equal to the minimum training hours
requirements specified in the Driving Training Curriculum. Our
premium courses comprised holidays and weekends courses,
economy courses and VIP courses. Our VIP courses for Large
Vehicles provide different complimentary supporting services
including pick-up services and/or accommodation services.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, our overall
number of course enrollments and our overall number of
trainees attended our driving courses declined. We recorded
an overall negative growth for both the total number of course
enrollment for, and the total number of trainees attended on,
our driving courses for the year ended 31 December 2022,
as comparing to that for the year ended 31 December 2021.
This overall deterioration in our business performance is the
effect of decrease in the actual number of training hours
provided by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022 due to travel restriction occasionally in force in Suiping
County, Zhumadian City, caused by sporadic outbreaks of
COVID-19 cases, which had temporarily suspended the entire
driving training system in Henan province and has a negative
impact on our business performance during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

Our total number of course enrollments for the year ended
31 December 2022 recorded an overall decrease of 25.8%
from 13,040 for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 9,670.
Both Tong Tai School and Shun Da School marked negative
growth in the overall number of course enroliments for the
year ended 31 December 2022, as comparing to that for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The total number of course
enrollments of Shun Da School amounted to 1,393 (year
ended 31 December 2021: 3,264), representing a significant
decrease of approximately 57.3%. The total number of course
enrollments of Tong Tai School amounted to 8,277 (year
ended 31 December 2021: 9,776), representing a decrease of
approximately 15.3%. The overall decrease in the number of
course enrollments of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles
and of both standard and premium courses is also mainly
attributable to the sporadic outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic
in Henan province resulting in occasional travel restriction
imposed by the relevant authorities throughout the year ended
31 December 2022.

For premium courses of Small Vehicles, we recorded a slight
growth in the number of course enrollments, with an increase
of approximately 22.7% from 3,018 for the year ended 31
December 2021 to 3,702 for the year ended 31 December
2022. However, this slight increase was offset by the decrease
in the number of course enrollments for premium courses of
Large Vehicles by approximately 35.9% from 6,365 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to 4,082 for the year ended 31
December 2022.

For standard courses, we recorded a significant decrease of
approximately 63.1% in the number of course enrollments
for standard courses of Large Vehicles from 447 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to 165 for the year ended 31
December 2022, and a significant decrease of approximately
46.4% in the number of course enrollments for standard
courses of Small Vehicles from 3,210 for the year ended 31
December 2021 to 1,721 for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R RAMN (K)

TREYIEE2022F12831HIEEER
BEKRRRERSSONREERBE AHHA
4> E 2021 F12B31HIEFER D
L8R = .

The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of
course enrollments by our trainees and by types of courses
for the year ended 31 December 2022, together with the
comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2021:

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12B31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Number Number
of course of course

enrollments % enroliments %

FEBREAZ % REBEAH %
Tong Tai School BRER
Large vehicles RELEH

- Standard courses — 1EERR 165 1.7 447 3.4

- Premium courses — BIRERE 4,082 42.2 6,365 48.8
Small Vehicles INBYER

- Standard courses — BERRE 760 7.9 403 3.1

- Premium courses — BIREEE 3,270 33.8 2,561 19.7
Shun Da School |EZEK
Small vehicles INBYER

- Standard courses — 1EERR 961 9.9 2,807 21,5

- Premium courses — BRER 432 4.5 457 35

Total 1E st 9,670 100.0 13,040 100.0

Course FE

Total standard courses TERERR A 1,886 19.5 3,657 28.0

Total premium courses SREREEE 7,784 80.5 9,383 72.0

Total fEzt 9,670 100.0 13,040 100.0
Driving school BERER

Total Tong Tai School BRERM 8,277 85.6 9,776 75.0

Total Shun Da School |BZEER A 1,393 14.4 3,264 25.0

Total fE st 9,670 100.0 13,040 100.0
Driving course ERFE

Large Vehicles AR EH 4,247 43.9 6,812 52.2

Small Vehicles INBUES 5,423 56.1 6,228 47.8

Total fE st 9,670 100.0 13,040 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

We recorded an overall decrease in both the number of
trainees attended our driving courses and total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The overall
number of trainees who attended our driving courses for
the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to 12,509
(year ended 31 December 2021: 15,183), representing a
decrease of approximately 17.6%. The total revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately RMB47.7 million (year ended 31 December
2021: approximately RMB67.2 million), also representing a
decrease of approximately 28.9%. The overall decrease in
the number of trainees attended our driving courses for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was attributable to a slight
increase in the number of trainees attended our standard
and premium courses of Small Vehicles for the year ended
31 December 2022 as a result of the introduction of different
types of standard and premium course of Small Vehicles which
was totally offset by the significant decrease in the number of
trainees attended our standard and premium courses of Large
Vehicles for the year ended 31 December 2022. Our provision
of driving training services for Large Vehicles continued to be
our primary source of revenue, accounting for approximately
79.4% of our total revenue (year ended 31 December
2021: 82.7%). Revenue generated from premium courses
contributed to approximately 94.5% of our total revenue (year
ended 31 December 2021: 92.7%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of
trainees attended our driving courses, as well as our revenue
by types of vehicles and types of driving courses for the year
ended 31 December 2022, together with the comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2021:

EERENwm RO (&)

TREYIEE2022F12831HIEEES
MEMENFENZE A B RIZEHE
AR EFREEE W EAM - &
F2021F 128331 H IEFEE R HARI EEE
==

For the year ended 31 December

HE12B31BLLEE
2022 2021
20226 20214
Number Number
of trainees of trainees
attended RMB’000 % attended RMB’000 %
22m E2M
ENEEAE ARBTFRT % IEIBEAH AREBTR %
Large vehicles ABUEE
- Standard courses - BERR 296 550 1.2 548 1,266 1.9
— Premium courses - BiRER 5,396 37,013 775 8,111 53,985 80.4
- Additional training services — BESMEHIART N/A REF 351 0.7 N/A TEFA 264 0.4
Sub-total INEF 5,692 37,914 79.4 8,659 55,515 82.7
Small Vehicles N
- Standard courses — 2ERR 2,914 1,456 3.0 2,761 2,987 4.4
— Premium courses - BiRER 3,903 8,072 17.0 3,763 8,244 12.3
- Additional training services — BESMEHIRT N/A REF 292 0.6 N/A TEFA 405 0.6
6,817 9,820 20.6 6,524 11,636 17.3
Total 4t 12,509 47,734 100.0 15,183 67,151 100.0

BhEEERERAT «» —E-HEH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

dE

Overview

Our overall financial performance for the year ended
31 December 2022 has worsened as compared to that
for the year ended 31 December 2021. We recorded
a decline in total revenue by RMB19.4 million (or
approximately 28.9%) from RMB67.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB47.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022. Our gross profit has
decreased by RMB11.4 million (or approximately 50.1%)
from RMB22.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to RMB11.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. Gross profit margin has also decreased
by 10.0 percentage points from 33.7% for the year ended
31 December 2021 to 23.7% for the year ended 31
December 2022.

We recorded the net loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately RMB8.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to the
net loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately RMB3.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. We also recorded a net loss margin
attributable to the owners of the Company of 18.2%
for the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared
to the net loss margin attributable to the owners of the
Company of 5.1% for the year ended 31 December
2021. We recorded the loss before income tax of
approximately RMB10.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 as compared to the profit before income
tax of approximately RMB1.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2021.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

B2 %5 [o] BE
1. M8

HEE FE2021F 128318 LFEHM
EE > BPIN B E2022F12H31H 1E
FENEBREBTBERARE -HMR
BHNBEKREEEE2021F12831
HEFENARK67.2B&E THD
AR®19.48 8 7T (3428.9%) &
B E2022F12831HBIEEFEM A
Rt47. 7B E T EFULEE2021
F12H31HIEFENARK22.78
BRI ARKE11.488 T (TY
50.1%) 28 E2022%F 128318 Lt
FEMNARKBI1.388 T HMAN
EMETHEE2021FE12831H
IEFEM3E3.7% FE10.0B 5 DB,
EHFE2022F12A31HLEEEN
23.7%°

EFIsREE E2022F 12831 H 1t
FEMNAANTHEE ANBEFEEY
AR 7TEE T MELE20215F12
B31HILEFEAAXRABEE AR
IEFBERNAREISEHETT o FHM
NS H E2022F12831HIEE
ENAANTHEE ANBEEEEES
18.2% > ME E2021F12831H 1k
FEAAXRANBEE ABLFER
5.1%° FR&E E2022F12H31H LEFE
> HMEERMERATEBEROA
RI&10.28 87t MEE20214F12
B318 L FEERARTERATRF
AR 6EETTT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately RMB19.4
million, or approximately 28.9% from RMB67.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB47.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. This decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
generated from the provision of driving training services
for Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles of approximately
RMB17.6 million and RMB1.8 million, respectively. This
decline in revenue is mainly attributable to the impact
of overall decrease in the course enrollments of driving
courses for both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles and
the overall decrease in each of the number of trainees
who attended our driving courses and the actual number
of training hours provided by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 due to travel restriction
occasionally in force in Suiping County, Zhumadian City,
caused by sporadic outbreaks of COVID-19 cases.

The revenue generated from the provision of driving
training services for Large Vehicles decreased by
approximately RMB17.6 million, or approximately 31.7%,
from approximately RMB55.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB37.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the combined effect of
the decrease in each of the number of trainees who
attended our driving courses of Large Vehicles and the
actual number of training hours of our trainees of Large
Vehicles from 8,659 and 486,813, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to 5,692 and 307,968,
for the year ended 31 December 2022, which offset the
positive effect of the higher average course fees per hour
recognised as revenue for our standard course of Large
Vehicles that contributed a higher gross profit margin
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

The revenue generated from the provision of driving
training services for Small Vehicles has also decreased by
approximately RMB1.8 million, or approximately 15.6%,
from approximately RMB11.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB9.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in the actual
number of training hours of our trainees of Small Vehicles
from 171,742 for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
136,972 for the year ended 31 December 2022 even
though the number of trainees who attended our driving
courses of Small Vehicles increased from 6,524 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to 6,817 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 resulted from the increase
in the number of trainees who attended our standard
course of Small Vehicles, which offset the positive effect
of the higher average course fees per hour recognised
as revenue for our standard course of Small Vehicles that
contributed a higher gross profit margin during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Cost of services rendered

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
our Group’s cost of services rendered amounted to
approximately RMB36.4 million and RMB44.5 million,
respectively. Our cost of services rendered mainly
comprises employee benefit expenses paid to our driving
instructors and other supporting staff, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment and rights-of-
use assets and fuel expenses. Our cost of services
rendered decreased by approximately RMB8.1 million,
or approximately 18.1%, from approximately RMB44.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB36.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Employee benefit expenses decreased by approximately
RMB5.2 million, or approximately 29.0%, from
approximately RMB18.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB12.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in salaries paid to
our driving instructors and other supporting staff in
line with the decrease in the actual number of training
hours of our trainees. Our fuel expenses decreased by
approximately RMB1.7 million, or approximately 16.1%,
from approximately RMB10.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB9.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. This decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the actual number
of training hours of our trainees which was partially
offset by the overall increase in the average unit price of
gasoline during the year ended 31 December 2022. Our
depreciation on property, plant and equipment and rights-
of-use assets is stable at approximately RMB11.0 million
and RMB10.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2022, respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our overall gross profit from the provision of driving
training services decreased by approximately RMB11.4
million, or approximately 50.1%, from approximately
RMB22.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB11.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 in line with the decrease in the
revenue. Our gross profit margin from the provision of
driving training services decreased by approximately 10.0
percentage points from approximately 33.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 23.7% for
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

Our gross profit for provision of driving training services
for Large Vehicles decreased by approximately RMB11.0
million, or approximately 52.8%, from approximately
RMB20.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB9.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022. Our gross profit margin from the
provision of driving training services for Large Vehicles
decreased by approximately 11.6 percentage points from
approximately 37.5% for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately 25.9% for the year ended 31
December 2022. The decrease in both gross profit and
gross profit margin was in line with the decrease in the
number of the trainees who attended our driving training
course and the decrease in the actual number of training
hours of our trainees of Large Vehicles in addition to
the overall increase in the average unit price of gasoline
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Our gross profit for provision of driving training services
for Small Vehicle decreased by approximately RMBO0.4
million, or approximately 20.1%, from approximately
RMB1.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB1.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 which was in line with the decrease in
revenue from the provision of driving training services for
Small Vehicles resulted from the decrease in the actual
number of training hours of our trainees of Small Vehicles.
Our gross profit margin from the provision of driving
training services for Small Vehicles slightly decreased by
approximately 0.8 percentage points from approximately
15.9% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately 15.1% for the year ended 31 December
2022, which was mainly attributable to the increase in the
fuel expenses due to the overall increase in the average
unit price of gasoline despite the overall decrease in the
actual number of training hours of our trainees of Small
Vehicles during the year ended 31 December 2022,
which offset the positive effect of the higher average
course fees per hour for our standard course of Small
Vehicles that contributed a higher gross profit margin
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Other income and losses, net

Our other income and losses, net decreased by
approximately RMB1.0 million, or approximately 38.3%,
from approximately RMB2.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB1.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 which was mainly
attributable to (i) significant decrease in income from
issuance of certificate of qualification validation from
approximately RMB1.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMBO0.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022; and (i) significant
decrease in value-added tax refund from approximately
RMBO0.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMBO0.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Selling and marketing expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately RMBO0.4 million, or approximately 13.3%,
from approximately RMB3.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately RMB3.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in marketing and
advertising expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMB1.6 million, or approximately 9.7%, from
approximately RMB16.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB15.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the entertainment
and travelling expenses due to the travel restriction
occasionally in force in Suiping County, Zhumadian
City, caused by sporadic outbreaks of COVID-19 cases
throughout the year of 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately RMBO.7
million, or approximately 17.8%, from approximately
RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB4.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. Such increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in interest paid for our new bank
borrowing for the acquisition of equipment and training
vehicles for replacement and the potential acquisition of
new leasehold land.

Income tax credit/(expense)

We recorded an income tax credit for the year ended
31 December 2022 of approximately RMB1.6 million
as compared to our income tax expense for the year
ended 31 December 2021 of approximately RMB5.1
million, which was mainly attributable to the combined
effect of (i) the deferred tax expense recognised for the
temporary difference in depreciation of property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMBO0.1 million and
the deferred tax credited for the temporary difference
in revenue recognition of approximately RMB0.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, respectively, as
compared to the deferred tax expense recognised for
the temporary difference in depreciation of property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB3.1 million
and revenue recognition of approximately RMB1.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, respectively and
(i) income tax credit recognised for deductible tax loss
of our subsidiaries in the PRC for the year ended 31
December 2022 of approximately RMB1.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

10. Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

As a result of the above factors, we recorded loss
and total comprehensive loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 of approximately RMB8.7 million as
compared to our loss and total comprehensive loss of
approximately RMB3.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was mainly attributable to (i) the
overall decrease in each of the number of trainees who
attended our driving courses of Large and Small vehicles
as well as the actual number of training hours; (i) the
lower gross profit margin of Large and Small Vehicles due
to the increased average unit price of gasoline; (iii) the
decrease in other income and losses, net; and (iv) income
tax credit recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022 as compared to income tax expense recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the net
loss margin attributable to owners of the Company was
18.2% and 5.1% for the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

The Group’s bank balances and cash increased from
approximately RMB175.2 million as at 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB182.3 million as at 31 December
2022, which was mainly attributable to the increase in cash
flows generated from the financing activities. The Group has
concentration of credit risk arising from bank balances as
there was a bank which individually contributed an amount
of approximately RMB135.6 million (2021: RMB104.8
million), representing 74.6% (2021: 59.8%) of the Group’s
bank balances as at 31 December 2022. The management
considers that the credit risk on liquid funds is low as
counterparties are financial institutions with good reputation
and have provided financing amounted to approximately
RMB26.7 million (2021: RMB26.8 million) to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

As at 31 December 2022, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB183.1 million, including
approximately RMB182.3 million in bank balances and
cash, and approximately RMBO0.8 million in trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments. The current liabilities
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB98.5 million,
including approximately RMB17.4 million in trade and other
payables and accruals, approximately RMB23.3 million
in contract liabilities, approximately RMB1.4 million in tax
liabilities, approximately RMB55.2 million in borrowings
and approximately RMB1.1 million in lease liabilities. As at
31 December 2022, the current ratio of the Group, which
is equivalent to the current assets divided by the current
liabilities, was 1.86 (31 December 2021: 2.11).

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had aggregate interest-
bearing borrowings of approximately RMB55.2 million which
are repayable within one year, as compared to approximately
RMB32.8 million which are repayable within one year and
approximately RMB9.0 million which are repayable within a
period of more than one year but not exceeding two years as
of 31 December 2021. The increase in borrowings is mainly
due to the new bank loans in January 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group,
which was calculated based on total debt, including all
interest-bearing loans and lease liabilities divided by total
equity, was approximately 0.30 times (31 December 2021:
0.21 times).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s total number of
issued Shares was 400,000,000 of HK$0.01 each. On 23
October 2019, the Company issued 100,000,000 ordinary
shares at HKD1.28 per offer share from the share offer.
The use of proceeds from the share offer was for business
expansion and general working capital.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not make any material investments, acquisitions
and disposals during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had an aggregate
interest-bearing borrowings of approximately RMB55.2
million as compared to approximately RMB41.8 million as of
31 December 2021. The borrowings of RMB55.2 million are
repayable within one year.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB55.2 million were at fixed interest rates.
As at 31 December 2022, the current portion borrowings
of the Group amounting to approximately RMB55.2 million
were guaranteed and pledged by certain prepaid land lease
payments/rights-of-use assets, office buildings and the
operation rights of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, our Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees and no member of our
Group was involved in any claim, litigation or arbitration of
material importance and no claim, litigation or arbitration of
material importance is known to our Directors to be pending or
threatened against any member of our Group. Accordingly, no
provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of litigation is
necessary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk related primarily to certain bank balances and
other payables denominated in HK$. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BERES A KD (K)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2022, we had 295 employees,
representing a decrease from that of 423 employees as at
31 December 2021. The number of employees employed
by the Group varies from time to time depending on need.
Employees’ remuneration is determined in accordance
with prevailing industry practice and employees’ working
experiences and performance. The remuneration policy and
package of the Group’'s employees are periodically reviewed.
As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Company
participates in various employee social security plans for
its employees that are administered by local governments,
including among others, housing provident funds, pensions,
medical insurance, social insurance and unemployment
insurance.

Compensation of key executives of the Group is determined
by the Company’s remuneration committee which reviews
and recommends to the Board of Directors the executives’
compensation based on the Group’s performance and the
executives’ respective contributions to the Group.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme. For
details, please refer to the section headed “Statutory and
General Information — D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V
to the Prospectus.

The total employees benefit expenses incurred by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB18.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately RMB23.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The following table sets forth the total number of Directors and
employees by function as at 31 December 2022:
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TREDNR2022F12831 HiZ =21 9H
NESZRESHEY :

Number of %
employees of the total
BEAH (HEHFSLE
Function 15
Directors = 6 2.0
Driving instructors e 194 65.8
Sale and marketing HE RS HERE o 9.2
Finance and accounting M REst 8 2.7
Teaching affair office B = 18 6.1
Administration 1T 37 12.5
Vehicle management BEEEE 5 o
Total st 295 100.0
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS HREHRER

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2022 which would materially affect the operating and financial
performance of the Group as of the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in this annual report, there were no
material investments or additions of capital assets authorised
by the Board at the date of this annual report. Please also refer
to the paragraph headed “Use of Proceeds” under the Report
of the Directors below from pages 117 to 118 of this annual
report for the expected source and allocation of funding for the
Groups’ material investment.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company.

HEATHRHEE > 12022F12831H%
BMEEEINEERETELAEREE
R RIBMNE REIE

zﬁkﬂiZEE?ﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁﬂ:ﬁéﬁ
2

PBRAFmRATINESIN RAFRAR £E
EEWEREETEANEARKREIIEM
BEAEE-BRAAEEEAKRENTES
B R EKRDE  ERRREANERS
M7E118EEEERE FMERIBEBRA

—Eo

BE - LWERBLOEAATN L
hEH

B E2022F12831HIEFEE » KAF T,
HEMKBADMEES - HEHED
FERARATH LEHES -

BRERERERAT o T _HFER

21



22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELARS

INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high corporate
governance standard to enhance the transparency,
accountability and corporate value of the Company and
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. Since the Listing
Date, the Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as fundamental
guidelines for the corporate governance practices of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code. The Company will
continue to review and monitor the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintain high standard of
corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all the
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and there have been
no incidents of non-compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Yuxia (Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chun Shing (resigned on 1 March 2023)

Mr. Chan Siu Wah

Mr. Goh Teng Hwee (passed away on 11 January 2023)
Mr. Wan San Fai, Vincent (appointed on 1 March 2023)
Mr. Xu Jianpo (appointed on 20 April 2023)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” from pages 102 to 111 of this annual
report. None of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships) with any other Directors or any chief executive of
the Company.

Meetings of the Board

The Corporate Governance Code states that meetings of the
board of directors of a listed issuer should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, four Board
meetings were held. The Board will continue to make
arrangements for holding at least four meetings for every
subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the Directors, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Meetings of
the Board and Board Committees” below on page 39 of this
annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRS (K)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Accordingly, to ensure a balance of power and authority, the
positions of the Chairman and the chief executive officer are
held separately by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Ms. Zhao Yuxia
respectively, where Mr. Qi Xiangzhong as the Chairman is
responsible for major decision-making, overall strategic
planning and determining corporate policies and general
management of the Group, and Ms. Zhao Yuxia as the chief
executive officer is responsible for the overall management of
the business operation and financial planning of operations of
the Group.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at
all times met with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), Rule
3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board,
and with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their respective independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers each of them to
be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Following (i) the passing away of Mr. Goh Teng Hwee,
who was an independent non-executive Director, and a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 11 January
2023; (ii) the resignation of Mr. Cheng Chun Shing, who was
an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
on 1 March 2023; and (iii) the appointment of Mr. Wan San
Fai Vincent as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 1 March 2023, the composition of the
Board comprised two executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors and
hence the number of independent non-executive Directors
and members of the Audit Committee had fallen below the
minimum number required under rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Mr. Xu Jianpo as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee on 20 April 2023, the composition of the
Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors, which
fulfills the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

Meetings with the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Corporate Governance Code states that the chairman of
the board of directors of a listed issuer should hold meetings
with the independent non-executive directors at least annually
without the presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting
was held between the Chairman and the independent non-
executive Directors, with each of the independent non-
executive Directors present. The Chairman will continue to
make arrangements for holding at least one meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors for every subsequent
year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRS (K)

Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment with
Directors

The Company had entered the service contract with each of
the executive Directors (namely Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Ms.
Zhao Yuxia) in respect of his/her appointment as an executive
Director for a fixed term of three years commenced from 24
October 2022 which shall be renewed automatically, unless
and until terminated by either the executive Director or the
Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing at any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Each of the executive Directors is entitled to an annual
emolument of RMB240,000 for acting as an executive Director.
Such annual emolument may be reviewed annually after each
year of service during the term of the Service Contract by the
Remuneration Committee. Each of the executive Directors is
also entitled to a discretionary bonus, if so recommended by
the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board,
having regard to the operating results of the Group and the
individual performance of the executive Director.

The Company had entered the letter of appointment with the
non-executive Director (namely Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong) in
respect of his appointment as a non-executive Director for
a fixed term of three years commenced from 24 October
2022 which shall be renewed automatically, unless and
until terminated by either the non-executive Director or the
Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing at any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
The non-executive Director is entitled to an annual emolument
of RMB120,000 for acting as a non-executive Director. Such
annual salary may be reviewed annually after each year of
service during the term of the letter of appointment by the
Remuneration Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For the independent non-executive Directors, the Company
had entered the letter of appointment with Mr. Chan Siu Wah
(“Mr. Chan”) in respect of his appointment as an independent
non-executive Director for a fixed term of three years
commenced from 24 October 2022 which shall be renewed
automatically, unless and until terminated by either Mr. Chan
or the Company by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing at any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (“Mr. Wan”) had been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director effective from 1
March 2023 and had entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commenced on
the same date which shall be renewed automatically, unless
and until terminated by either Mr. Wan or the Company by
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing at any
time. Mr. Wan will hold office until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company where upon he shall
be eligible for re-election. He is also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. Mr. Xu Jianpo (“Mr. Xu”) had been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director effective from 20 April
2023 and had entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commenced on the
same date which shall be renewed automatically, unless and
until terminated by either Mr. Xu or the Company by giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing at any time. Mr. Xu
will hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company where upon he shall be eligible for
re-election. He is also subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Mr. Chan and Mr. Wan are entitled to an annual emolument
of RMB120,000 for acting as an independent non-executive
Director and Mr. Xu is entitled to an annual emolument of
RMB60,000 for acting as an independent non-executive
Director, respectively. Such annual salary may be reviewed
annually after each year of service during the term of the letter
of appointment by the Remuneration Committee.

For further details of the emoluments of the Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2022, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Emoluments of Directors and Senior
Management” under the Report of the Directors on page 127
of this annual report, and Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXEERHRS (B)

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for, among other things,
the leadership and control of the Company and the business,
strategic decisions and financial performance of the Group.
Each of the Directors takes decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

To ensure a sound framework of responsibilities and
accountabilities, the Board is scheduled to meet for at least
four times a year. Between scheduled meetings, senior
management of the Group provides the Directors with
information on a timely basis on the activities and development
in the businesses of the Group and when required, additional
Board meetings are held. Alongside having meetings, the
Directors would also approve various matters by way of
passing written resolutions.

The Company Secretary would assist in preparing the agenda
for the Board meeting and ensure that all the applicable laws
and regulations regarding meetings of the Board, as well as
the Articles of Association are complied with. Minutes of the
meeting of the Board and Board Committees are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available to all the Directors for
inspection.

All the Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services and advice
from the Company Secretary and senior management. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances and at the Company’s
expenses, for discharging their duties to the Company.

Each of the Directors would also disclose to the Company
details of other offices held by them and the Board regularly
reviews the contribution required from each Director to
perform his or her responsibilities to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated by the Board to the senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Under the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. Accordingly, each
of the Directors has received formal and comprehensive
induction tailor-made by the legal advisers of the Company
as to Hong Kong law on the first occasion of his or her
appointment to ensure full awareness of the responsibilities
and obligations as a Director under the Listing Rules and
the relevant laws and regulations. During the year ended
31 December 2022, relevant reading materials, including
regulatory updates, seminar handouts and briefings, have also
been provided to the Directors for their reference and studying
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of possible legal action against its Directors and senior
officers.

Please also refer to the paragraph headed “ Permitted
Indemnity Provision” under the Report of the Directors on
page 126 of this annual report for the permitted indemnity
provisions in force and in place under the Directors and
officers insurance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRS (K)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is primarily responsible for determining the policy
for the corporate governance of the Company and performing
the corporate governance duties and functions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code, including, among other things,
reviewing the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices of the Company on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, the following work, among other things,
have been performed by the Board:

— directed the Board Committees to review the existing
policies and procedures of the Board and the Board
Committees;

— engaged Hong Kong legal advisers to provide corporate
secretarial and compliance services to the Company with
reference to the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations;

— engaged an external professional consultant to conduct
a review and further enhance the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems of the Group;

—  reviewed the level of compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code; and

—  reviewed the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices,
the Board had established three Board Committees on
19 September 2019, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of the Group. Each
of these Board Committees comprises mostly independent
non-executive Directors who have been invited to serve
as members. The Board Committees are governed by the
respective terms of reference that are in compliance with
the applicable rules in Listing Rules and principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and were
approved by the Board. The terms of reference of each of
the Board Committees are published on the websites of the
Company (www.china-oriented.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Wan San Fai Vincent (as the chairman), Mr. Chan Siu Wah and
Mr. Xu Jianpo, all being independent non-executive Directors.
The duties of the Audit Committee include, among other
things, reviewing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, overseeing financial reporting, financial control, internal
control and risk management systems of the Group, and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, three meetings
of the Audit Committee were held. The Audit Committee
will continue to make arrangements for holding at least two
meetings for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Meetings of the Board and Board Committees”
below on page 39 of this annual report.

tEERA®RS (8)

E5&EY

ARG LXEAERVAEMIBD =
EEEN2019F9819HRII =BES
ZEg ABERZES FNEZE S AIE
%ZEZEE UEEAERSTEERE &
EEZERHARBIIERITESTAMN
NEHAZBIEEIRE - EELZEERHR
BRESENOR ZEBELETS
THRANBEBARI REEEATIHN
FRAIKRTFARX T EEEZH E-BE
EZEENBEEEEHEN AL H
U5 (www.china-oriented.com) Kz i 32 Fir 44
U (www.hkexnews.hk) o

BEZEEY

BEREZEEH=ZZMEMEMN > DA E
WMESRE (EF) BRNEXRERKER
TE IR BUIFRITEST -BREEE
ZHEEE EHTERE) SEREAEEZR
GHHBRR BERAERNMBRS Y
BEs] REERI R BREERR kit
ZERERTRATBIINERZBRNESTS
RHtEZ-

REE2022F12H31HIEEE » S
EgEBT e BREETRE
BLZENRHBEEEEEE LM E

=
Ak ©

ERSEREZEENEHETENIE
T EBRAFRTIXEVEEFERK
EXZEEERNHFELRI—Ke

BRERERERAT o T _HFER

31



32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRS (K)

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Audit Committee had performed,
among other things, the following work:

— recommended the re-appointment of Moore Stephens
CPA Limited as the external auditor of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022;

- reviewed and commented on the unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2022 and the interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2022;

- reviewed and commented on the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022;

— engaged and coordinated with an external professional
consultant to review the financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems of the Company;

- discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit
function; and

- reviewed the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2022, including the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor and recommended to the Board
the same for approval of the Shareholders at the AGM.

The Board agreed with the proposal of the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of Moore Stephens CPA Limited as
the external auditor of the Company for the year ending 31
December 2023. The recommendation will be put forward for
the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

For an analysis of remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by Moore Stephens CPA Limited during the year
ended 31 December 2022, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Auditor's Remuneration” below on page 43 of this
annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For the review on the internal control and risk management
systems of the Company, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Risk Management and Internal Control System”
below from pages 39 to 41 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (as the chairman), Mr. Chan
Siu Wah, and Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent. Save for Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong, who is an executive Director, all the members
of the Nomination Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. The duties of the Nomination Committee
include, among other things, reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, establishing and reviewing
the policies and procedures on the selection, appointment
and reappointment of Directors, reviewing the policy on
diversity of the Board and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held. The Nomination Committee
will continue to make arrangements for holding at least one
meeting for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the
Nomination Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Attendance Record at Meetings of the Board and Board
Committees” below on page 39 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee had
performed, among other things, the following work:

—  reviewed the structure and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

— reviewed the nomination policy on the identification,
selection, appointment and re-appointment of individual
as Directors and succession planning for Directors;

- made recommendations to the Board on the re-election
of Directors in the AGM;
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&

XEBRBS (])

reviewed the board diversity policy of the Company, in
particular the progress on achieving the measurable
objectives as set out in the policy; and

assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and made recommendations to the
Board on their respective re-elections

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has developed a nomination policy
which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March 2020. The
nomination policy is established with the aims of ensuring the
Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business
of the Group.

To assess and evaluate whether an individual candidate is
suitably qualified to be appointed as a Director, the Nomination
Committee shall take into account, among other things:

the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and
experience of the individual candidate;

the potential time commitment and attention to perform
duties as a director under the Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and regulations;

the potential contributions that the individual candidate
can make to the diversity of the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the
individual candidate (and where appropriate, adequate
background checks and other verification processes shall
be conducted against the individual candidate);

the current structure, size and composition of the Board
and the Company’s corporate strategy;

Board succession planning considerations and the long
term needs of the Company;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

—  (in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director), the independence of such candidate with
reference to, among other things, the independence
criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and
the guidance and requirements relating to independent
non-executive directors set out in the Corporate
Governance Code; and

— any other factors and matters as the Nomination
Committee may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy
at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that
may be required, and recommend the same to the Board for
approval.

Board Independence

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members
being independent non-executive Directors. Further,
independent non-executive Directors will be appointed to
Board Committees as required under the Listing Rules and
as far as practicable to ensure independent views and input
are available. The Nomination Committee strictly adheres
to the independence assessment criteria as set out in the
Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and appointment
of independent non-executive Directors, and is mandated
to assess annually the independence of independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that they can continually exercise
independent judgement. No equity-based remuneration with
performance-related elements will be granted to independent
non-executive Directors as this may lead to bias in their
decision-making and compromise their objectivity and
independence. Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are entitled to seek further information from the
management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense. A
Director (including independent non-executive Director) who
has a material interest in a contract or arrangement shall not
vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution
approving the same.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, a policy
concerning diversity of the members of the Board were
adopted by the Company on 19 September 2019 and applied
and reviewed by the Nomination Committee at least annually.

In assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various measurable
objectives as set out in the board diversity policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
measurable objectives including the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant
criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity
policy at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates
that may be required, and recommend the same to the Board
for approval.

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender
diversity was generally followed in the workforce throughout
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. As of the
date of this annual report, approximately 83.3% of Directors
and approximately 83.3% of total workforce were male. The
Company will continue to take steps to promote diversity,
including gender diversity, at workforce levels.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Siu Wah (as the chairman), Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong, and Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent. Save for Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong, who is an executive Director, all the members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors. The duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, reviewing and approving the
remuneration proposals of the management with reference to
the corporate goals and objectives of the Board, reviewing the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management and developing policy and structure on
remuneration of all directors and senior management.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code and under
the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
the Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of
the Remuneration Committee was held. The Remuneration
Committee will continue to make arrangements for holding at
least one meeting for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the
Remuneration Committee, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Attendance Record at the Meetings of the Board and
Board Committees” below on page 39 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee had
performed, among other things, the following work:

reviewed the policy on the remuneration structure of all
Directors and senior management;

— assessed the performance of the executive Directors;

—  reviewed and approved the remuneration proposals by
the management of the Group with reference to corporate
goals and objectives; and

- recommended on the remuneration packages of all
Directors for the financial year ending 31 December
2023.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2022
is as follows:

BIECEEATH SHREEAS (BF
BRIN) MEE2022F12A31HIEEEMN
MR aR B DU

Number of individuals

Remuneration band FENEE E A¥
Nil to HK$1,000,000 EZF 1,000,000 7T S

For further details in respect of the emoluments of the
Directors and senior management for the year ended 31
December 2022, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management” under the
Report of the Directors on page 127 of this annual report and
Note 12 of the consolidated financial statement.

Policy on the Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Remuneration Committee has developed a remuneration
policy which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March
2020. The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the
principles that the remuneration packages of executive
Directors and senior management of the Company should
be reviewed annually and determined by the Remuneration
Committee based on the duties, responsibilities of each
individual executive Director and senior management staff,
performance of the Group and the remuneration packages
paid by comparable companies in the same industry based
on the prevailing market conditions. No Director or any of his/
her associates should be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee will review the remuneration
policy at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates
that may be required, and recommend the same to the Board
for approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

The attendance of each Director at Board and Board
Committees meetings of the Company, whether in person or
by means of electronic communication, is detailed in the table
below:
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Attendance/number of meetings held

during the year ended 31 December 2022
REZ2022F12831HLEELE #TEEHE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EENY BEXE BRZEY FHEEg RL%ZEE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong TEREE 4/4 - 1/1 1/1
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HEERL 4/4 - - -
Non-executive Director FRTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong meXEL 4/4 = = =
Independent non-executive Directors BIIFHITES
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BhERYE 4/4 3/3 11 17
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing HEF L4 (R20235F
(resigned on 1 March 2023) 3E1H##MT) 4/4 3/3 11 1/1
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee BERLE (R2023F
(passed away on 11 January 2023) 1B11 B g ) 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent BATERE (1220234
(appointed on 1 March 2023 SE1HEZD) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Xu Jianpo R E (1020235
(appointed on 20 April 2023) 4F200E &) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL EREERAINEERL

CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board is primarily responsible for maintaining and
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an on-going basis. Reviews on the systems
are conducted at least annually. The scope of review, which
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee
and approved by the Board annually, covers all material
controls, including but not limited to financial, operational and
compliance controls; risk management functions; and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in
connection with the accounting and financial reporting function
of the Group and their training programmes and relevant
budget.
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The Board, having considered the nature of business and
the organisation structure of the Group, designed the risk
management and internal control systems with the aims of:

safeguarding the assets of the Group;

— maintaining appropriate accounting records and financial
reporting;

— achieving efficiency of operations; and

— ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The Board has continued to engage an external professional
consultant to conduct a review and further enhance on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022. The overall control environment of the Group, including,
among other things, the organisational structure of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees
and the division of responsibilities among the management
of the Group, were reviewed. An assessment of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was also conducted by the
external professional consultant. The categories, extent,
consequences, seriousness, and probability of such risks and
uncertainties were identified in the assessment. The Board has
also assigned relevant person-in-charge to develop, implement
and review appropriate measures in connection with the
potential risks and uncertainties. The external professional
consultant is of the view that the current risk management
and internal control systems of the Group is effective and
adequate.
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The Corporate Governance Code provides that a listed issuer
should have an internal audit function. Currently, the Group
does not have an internal audit function. Having assessed the
scale, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board is of the view that it would be more cost effective
to appoint an external professional consultant to perform the
internal audit functions for the Group should the need arises.
The Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit
function on an annual basis.

To enhance the system of the Group on handling and
disseminating inside information, and to ensure timely and
accurate disclosure of such information pursuant to the
relevant provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules, the
Group has also formulated and adopted an inside information
policy on 27 March 2020. Certain measures and procedures
that have been implemented are as follows:

—  the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

— the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

— the Group regularly reminds the Directors and the
employees about due compliance with all policies
regarding inside information, as well as keeps them
appraised of the latest regulatory updates.

The Board will review the inside information from time to time
and may made any amendments and/or modifications that it
deems necessary or desirable.

Overall, the Board is of the view that the current risk
management and internal control system is effective and
adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27 March 2020.
Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may consider
whether to propose a dividend out of its distributable profits
and reserves and determine the amount of dividend by taking
into account the following factors, including but not limited to:

(i)  the general financial condition of the Group;
(i)  the earnings and cash flow of the Group;
(i) the expected working capital requirement of the Group;

(iv) the statutory fund reserve requirements of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC; and

(v) any other factors that the Board deems relevant and
appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company may be limited
under the financing agreements that the Group currently has
or that it may enter into in the future. It is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
the laws of Hong Kong, the Articles of Association of the
Company, and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any predetermined dividend
distribution ratio. The Board will review the dividend policy
from time to time and may make any amendments and/or
modifications that it deems necessary or desirable. There is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
particular amount for any specific period.

The dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally-binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
engaged Moore Stephens CPA Limited as the external auditor
of the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The remuneration paid
or payable to Moore Stephens CPA Limited in respect of their
audit services and non-audit services during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out as follows:
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RMB’000

AREFx

Audit services — Annual audit ZEARFE—FEZH 972
Non-audit services — Interim review IEZ AR — BT B 189
Non-audit services — Possible acquisition JEZ BB FE— BT N R 202

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (“Mr. Tsang”), the Company Secretary, plays
an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board policies
and procedures are duly followed. To assist the Board in
functioning effectively and efficiently, the Company Secretary
reports to the Board through the Chairman and is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors. All
Directors may call upon the Company Secretary for advice
and assistance at any time in respect to their duties and the
effective operation of the Board and the Board Committees.

To uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and the applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engages an external service provider to
assist the Company Secretary to discharge his duties as
the Company Secretary. Mr. Tsang is the primary corporate
contact person of the Company in respect of the engagement.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
Secretary took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company strives to provide ready, fair, regular and timely
disclosure of information that is material to the investor
community. Therefore, the Company works to maintain an on-
going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meeting and other general meetings or other
proper means. The Chairman, all other members of the
Board including independent non-executive Directors and the
chairmen of all Board committees will attend the forthcoming
AGM to meet with the Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

In addition, the Company has developed a shareholder
communication policy with the objective of maintaining
effective and timely dissemination of the Company’s
information to its Shareholders and the market, including
its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments and governance, in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in a timely and informed
manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has maintained and
regularly reviewed the policy in accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code to ensure its effectiveness. Reference has
also been made to the shareholders’ communication policy
of other listed issuers in Hong Kong to ensure the Company’s
shareholders’ communication policy is on par with market
standard.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) may be convened by
the Board on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company at the
date of deposit of the requisition.

The requisitionists must state the objects clearly in the

requisition, sign the requisition and deposit the same to the
Board or Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

If the requisition is found to be proper and in order, the EGM
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM within
21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself/itself/themselves may proceed
to convene the EGM in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board. Such
enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary in
writing by post to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Rooms 1508-1513, Nan Fung Tower, 88
Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or by email to
calvintsang@zmdttjx.cn.

Procedures to put forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may achieve so by means of convening an EGM
following the procedures as set out in the paragraph above.
As regards to the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director, Shareholders may refer to
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director of the Company” which is available on
the website of the Company (www.china-oriented.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Upon the Shareholders’ approval by way of a special
resolution at the annual general meeting held on 29 June
2022, the Company has adopted the second amended and
restated articles of association. Details of the changes made
in the document can be found in the Shareholders’ Circular
dated 22 April 2022. An up-to-date consolidated version of
the Company’s Articles of Association has been posted on
both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The adoption of the Proposed Amendments is subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company by way of a
special resolution at a general meeting of the Company. An
explanation of the effect of the Proposed Amendments and
the full terms of the Proposed Amendments, together with the
notice of AGM and the proxy form has been despatched to the
Shareholders in the AGM Circular.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Company has provided all members of the Board with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from
pages 135 to 141 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the Third Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(ESG Report) of China Oriented International Holdings Limited
(“the Company” or “China Oriented”) along with its subsidiaries
(collectively, “the Group” or “we”). Based on the principles of
openness and transparency, we report to all stakeholders on
the Group’s ESG performance in 2022 in a comprehensive and
objective manner. For corporate governance, please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 46 of the
Annual Report.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility to
ensure the integrity and truthfulness of the report and confirms
that to the best of its knowledge, this report addresses all
material topics related to the Group and fairly presents the
Group’s ESG performance and environmental impacts. The
Board of Directors has reviewed and approved this report.

Reporting Standard

This report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”)
and the actual situation of the Group. Data is analysed and
presented such that a year-on-year comparison is easy for the
reader. During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group
has applied the reporting principles stipulated in the ESG
Reporting Guide as follows:

o “Materiality” — The materiality assessment was
conducted to identify material issues, thereby adopting
the confirmed material issues as the focus for the
preparation of the ESG Report. The materiality of issues
was reviewed and confirmed by the Board and various
departments. Please refer to the sections headed
“Identification of Material Topics” for further details.

o “Quantitative” — Supplementary notes are added along
with quantitative data disclosed in the ESG Report
to explain any standards, methodologies, and source
of conversion factors used during the calculation of
emissions and energy consumption.

o “Consistency” — The preparation approach of this ESG
Report was substantially consistent with the previous
year, and explanations were provided regarding data
with changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies.
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Reporting Period and Boundary

The reporting period is the fiscal year from 1 January to 31
December 2022. The Group’s business focus on the driving
training operation. Unless otherwise specified, this report
covers operations of the driving training service of our two
driving schools, which are Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School located in Zhumadian City, Henan Province, China.

Feedback

This report is published in both Chinese and English. In
case of any discrepancy between the two versions, the
Chinese version shall prevail. We are committed to providing
more comprehensive and accurate ESG information to our
stakeholders and welcome your comments and suggestions
on this report. You may provide your valuable comments by
telephone or email:

Telephone: +852-53136535
Email: calvintsang@zmdttjx.cn

MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

Dear stakeholders:

As a spokesperson for the Group, | hereby present the forth
ESG Report to all stakeholders. | believe the world faced
unprecedented challenges due to the outbreak of COVID-19,
nevertheless, the Group exerts the greatest effort and work
hand-in-hand to fight against the pandemic while fulfilling
its corporate social responsibility by assisting the society
that suffers a setback from pandemic. Corporate social
responsibility is embedded deeply into our business. A total of
RMB26,000 is donated, and volunteer works are conducted
as a return to the society via various social welfare activities.
With actively donating of goods, the stress on material
shortage of the needy shall be relieved. On the other hand,
we recognize the looming crisis of climate change. We have
identified the potential climate risks and developed mitigation
plans accordingly.
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People-oriented

To pave a way towards sustainable development, it is
crucial to ensure the retention and satisfaction of employees
which are the foundation of the Group. During the year, we
carried forward talent training from three aspects, including
orientation training, corporate training, and professional
training. The trainings are capable to improve the quality of
instruction and training for driving instructors and strengthen
the professionalism of employees meticulously, contributing
to overall upgrade of the Group’s operation. During the year,
206 employees received training with a total training hour
of 859 hours and a training rate of 91.96% in overall. We
also organized various employee activities during the year to
enhance the relationship among the teams and promote their
sense of belonging. During the year, the Group has invested a
total of RMB669,000 on employees’ welfare.

The Group prioritise employees’ occupational health and
safety at all times. Road safety inspections, safety education
and training seminars, safety education, and mental health
and emotion management activities are arranged regularly to
ensure correct driving practices, enhance employees’ safety
awareness, and promote consciousness of physical and
mental conditions. A vehicle management team is also set
up to regularly maintain, inspect and repair vehicles in order
to lower the risk of car accident. It is our conviction that with
well-managed health of employees and training vehicles, the
performance of the business operation can be taken to the
next level. During the year, we recorded a total of 327 training
hours for occupational safety and health training. Moreover,
mitigation plans are established to ensure the minimization of
physical risk that could threaten employees’ safety.
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Giving Back to Society

During the year, the Group donated RMB26,000 to alleviate
the pressure on the society by participating social welfare
activities, such as providing convoy for the examination
candidates, and visiting front-line staff in pandemic control
and so on, with a total of 2,114 hours volunteer working.
Simultaneously, training was offered to individuals in need,
equipping them with the skills to drive and work.

Sustainability is a material issue with growing attention
around the globe. It has always been a significant part of the
Group’s business operation that accompanies with notable
environmental and social impacts. To attain the vision of
sustainable operation and fulfill stakeholders’ expectations,
we will keep on reviewing and revising the management,
policies and measures, and tracking of activities. The Group
is committed to endeavour better environmental and social
performances and create value in the coming future.

Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
27 April 2023
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Sustainability is the goal of the Group. Combining the concept
of sustainability and the Group’s development strategy, we
manage and supervise sustainability-related matters through
multi-department collaboration.

Sustainability Management Structure

The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility of
overseeing and setting out ESG management approach
and strategy for the Group with the assistance of various
departments. The sustainability-related matters of the Group
are handled by functional departments, including business
operations, logistics support, teaching affairs office, the office,
the vehicle management team, etc. The performance of each
department is reported to the Board of Directors on a regular
basis, and the Board of Directors continuously monitors
sustainability related information, such as trainee satisfaction
and energy consumption. The functional departments also
review the Group’s ESG performance through key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) from various ESG aspects, in order to
review progress made against ESG-related goals and targets.
By conducting regular materiality assessment, they assist the
Board of Directors to evaluate, prioritise and manage material
ESG-related issues. In the future, we will continue to improve
the sustainability management structure of the Group.
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Identification of Material Topics

In order to understand the concerns of various stakeholders of
the Group and identify material topics that have a significant
impact on its operations, the Group has complied with
the “ESG Reporting Guide” of HKEx to conduct an online
survey to identify material topics through four steps, namely
Identification, Prioritisation, Verification and Review. The six
material topics are “Customer health and safety”, “Product and
service quality”, “Occupational safety and health”, “Employee
training and development”, “Anti-corruption” and “Exhaust
emissions management”. During the year, after review, these
six material topics were found closely linked with the Group’s
operations.

We actively responded to concerns of stakeholders, disclosed
the Group’s performance and impact on material topics in
detail, and took corresponding measures to further improve
the sustainability management during the year.

§'| Identification
a2
Commissioned a third-party independent consultancy to

conduct materiality assessment of the Group by referring
to the HKEx Guide.
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Invited stakeholders and the management of the
Group to participate in an online survey to gauge their
views on the significance of potential material topics.
Prioritised and confirmed the material topics based
on two dimensions, namely “significance of economic,
environmental and social impacts” and “influence on

stakeholders’ assessments and decision making”.
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Reviewed possible improvements in the
materiality assessment process, and identify

areas for improvement.
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The management of the Group closely
monitored and confirmed the assessment
results of material topics, and they will

be disclosed in this report.
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Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns ElFEFI = BRI 75

The table below summarises the actions taken by the Group  FRAFIFY T R AR 45 7 £ B 72 A1) 25 AH BA 75
in respect of the topics that stakeholders concerned about >¥&%RE _EFFIRERAYITEN o

during the year.

Stakeholders Actions taken

FRREXEY1T &)

Topics of concern

B RR 75 R E R

AR

Customers Product and Service Detail the relevant regulations on the

TR Quality process of appointment, training, and exams
EmkREEE participation for trainees
Customer Health and A2 SENEI IR EEAEF
Safety BENERBRE
HEREEAZSE Set up a supervision centre to manage the
Customer Satisfaction teaching work and the training progress
BERmEE RARERL BEHAGREHSTIFRES
Customer Privacy EIEE
Protection Train and assess driving instructors and
EREIRE logistics personnel irregularly

N EHAE B B B A 2 3 N BEIT IR K
=LA

Standardise trainee complaint procedures
and establish complaints management
measures

HBRER TR RIISERFEEIE
Conduct trainee satisfaction survey
HEZEMEERD

Take corresponding measures to improve
service quality at registration centre, training
centre and recruitment office

B RS H0 s FIlR R0 R 48 A I R ENAE
FERETRIEAIRFEE

Establish trainees’ personal information files
and assign special personnel to protect their
privacy
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Stakeholders

Mz 8RS

Topics of concern

A8 R 75 R E R

Actions taken

FRREX BV 1T &)

Employees Occupational Health and | e Establish internal talent management system
=1 Safety RIANIAABEGE
BERERHEZE  Provide high-quality remuneration and
Training and Development benefits, and salary adjustment plan
EolRE R REEEFFEEEN UM AZE S 2
Employee Retention and |e Regular team building activities
Benefits EHIMEBEEEREH
BTHEREHN e Regular employee trainings
Employee Communication EHREIT B T
Channels e Set up various employee communication
BT/EBERE channels and carry out improvement work
based on suggestions
RIUZEETBBRE Ui HERETH
ET1E
e Prevent child and forced labour
MABE T k& HI%E TATTA
e |dentify health risks faced by employees and
implement preventive measures
s pl) B T T B AY 22 B | B F 4R L By B i Tl
e Provide safety training and mental health
education
RETREZ2EIROEBERENS
e Strengthen pandemic prevention and control
measures to ensure employee safety
msaBEiE REEILZE
Suppliers Supplier Management * Pre-procurement supplier assessment
HEE®E HEBEE BRI R

e Annual supplier rating record
ETFEEMERT D AR

Shareholders and
investors

RERRKREE

Company Operation
NEES

Corporate Governance
rEER

Risk Management
=g

e Regular employee training
EHRRETE TIE

e Strengthen anti-corruption work
INsd iz S84 T 1F

e Compliance with laws and regulations
ETERER
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Stakeholders Topics of concern Actions taken
MRS | 2= 46 RA 75 BR O SR RE FR%EXBY 1T 8l
Government e Company Operation e Require all employees to comply with laws
[5'¢/53 NEPESE and regulations
e Environmental EREBETETEEER
Compliance e The inspection team regularly checks the
RFREHR work system and effectiveness of each
e Anti-corruption department every month regularly
REE BER/NEEA TN R IFTIIESE KN
ETRE

e Encourage employees to report violations
HRBTHRIRERTA

e Establish relevant systems to regulate
employee behaviour

RIUBRAGIERLE TT5

Communities e FEducation e Donate money and supplies to fight the
HE E¢=] pandemic
e Poverty Alleviation MERF BRIEY
®a e Actively respond to the national call for
poverty alleviation and assist in poverty
alleviation

RIBERERKETE > HERE TF
e Organise activities to help with exams
HBELBIEES

MABEFZEREBIRAE o “TTTFFR 55
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BRI HEREBRS (&)

EMPLOYEE CARE

The overall quality of the training team is crucial to the
Group’s operational efficiency and service quality. The Group
is committed to creating a warm, harmonious, and humanised
working environment with room for employees’ growth and
striving to build a high-quality team of driving instructors.

Talent Management

We are committed to building a dynamic and competent
team. We strictly implement the employment standards,
recruitment methods, selection methods, trial requirements
and employment principles for new employees in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations’ and the Group’s
internal “Employment Management Methods”. At the end
of each year, each department determines employment
needs for the upcoming year and reports it to the office for
recruitment applications. We conduct recruitment through
various channels, such as internal referrals, government
agencies and public recruitment. The candidates are required
to pass at least one written test and two interviews before
they are eligible for appointment. New employees are subject
to a probation period of 1 to 6 months, and those who are
excellent performers may apply for formal offer, which is
reviewed and confirmed by the office and a formal labour
contract is signed.

Remuneration and Benefits

Since employees are the greatest force for the Group’s long
term development, the Group is committed to maximizing
employee satisfaction by providing them with competitive
remuneration. We have established a standardised
remuneration management system. Employees are not only
entitled to statutory benefits according to the law, such as
reasonable leave, five social insurances and one housing fund,
but also receive life insurance and other additional benefits
purchased by the Group for employees, such as free lunches,
staff dormitory and holiday benefits.

! Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for talent management
related laws and regulations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to embrace the development of the Group, give
full play to the incentive role of remuneration and benefits,
and provide competitive remuneration and benefits for
employees, Tong Tai School updated its remuneration
management system during the year, which is relatively
closed, revolving, scientific, and reasonable. Tong Tai School
established a remuneration management committee with
the General Manager acting as the chairman, members of
which comprise of the Assistant General Manager, the Vice
President-in-charge, the Chief Financial Officer and the head
of the administration and human resources department.
Remuneration management committee is responsible for
reviewing the remuneration adjustment strategies and other
forms of incentives (such as year-end bonus, patent award,
innovation award, improvement proposal recommendation
award, etc.) proposed by the administration and human
resources department, as well as individual remuneration
adjustment, overall remuneration adjustment plans,
recommendations and exercising the right of determination.

Training and Development

The Group has formulated the “Employee Training
Management Policy” internally. Each department determines
the training needs according to its own business development
needs and the ability of the personnel for the position. The
training can be divided into internal and external training
according to the organisation. It can also be separated into
orientation training, corporate culture training and professional
skills training according to training objectives.

BRI  HEREBRS (K)

PHBERTEBEERER TOEBHMN
kEFNABER RETREAFH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE HEBREBRS (B)

rq Orientation
[}

training
U wamazsa

Introduce employees to

the basic information

of the Group, personal
performance evaluation
process, attendance system,
job responsibilities, work
regulations as well as safety
production system, etc.
REINBEAEBNERF
RENEREZHEEE)
HIE - EARE s TIERER
B ZREEFESE

Introduce development
pathway, strategic planning of
the Group, etc.
NBAREBNVERE B - BBL
REE

Employee training category

8 TIEGI4ER

Corporate culture
training

=B

Help employees understand
the history of the Group,
development outlines and
strategies, goals, recreational
activities, employee
development channels, etc.
HYMBEI THRAEBRNESE
LERMEZRER -BR-EH
NXEEE BT EERES

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

Provide top instructors
training, driving skill training
R ERBREE Bl
K asiEdl

Strengthen employees’
professional skills, such

as accounting , audit,
statistics, human resource
management, sales,
networking, etc.
HEhHMETIREEERAE
KEBIINBEIET B
s et ANBEREIE 8
E-HESE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year, a total of 261 employees received training
with total 859 hours of training and a training rate of 90%.
For details of employee training data, please refer to the
“Performance Data Summary”.

Health and Safety

The Group has been providing driving training services for
many years with a certain scale and position in the industry
and is well aware of the occupational health and safety risks
faced by the instructors. The Group attaches great importance
to physical and mental health and safety of the employees,
and strives to provide a healthy, safe, and comfortable working
environment for the employees, so as to ensure a smooth
running of teaching activities and daily operations under safe
and controllable conditions.

Safety and Health Training Programme ‘
organised for the female employee

AZIERESHE 2 REEE R

BRI HEREBRS (B)

FRHMAXFHIRETESEIIZ

S4B B R85/ B BEFI B EEEZ90% ©
HANETEININSEFE2R T8ERA
BE xo

Orientation training organised
for the new employees to help
them familiarize themselves
with the Group’s value and
operations

RMEEREMT ARSI E
A BB RERBAEENE
BEREE

BRERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (&)

Road and vehicle safety

As a driving training service provider, road and vehicle safety
are the keys to safety at driving schools. We organise road
safety inspections once a month and require our drivers
to strictly comply with traffic regulations and safe driving
practices. We also arrange for driving instructors to participate
in safety education and training seminars on a regular basis. In
addition, the Group has set up a vehicle management team to
regularly maintain, inspect and repair vehicles. We also require
driving instructors to consciously take care of vehicles in daily
teaching work, not to lend vehicles to personnel of external
units, and strictly record and manage each vehicle in use to
ensure the normal and safe use of training vehicles.
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Regular professional training for the driving
instructors and administrative staff
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Safety Training

In order to enhance employees’ awareness of occupational
health and safety, enhance their ability to respond to safety
incidents and reduce the occurrence of occupational hazards
and accidents, we regularly organise various safety education
activities.

Tong Tai School has established a leading group for the
“Fire Warning Publicity and Education Month” to carry
out the publicity and education activities. The purpose of
the event was to reduce the possibility of fire accidents in
driving schools, improve the ability of disaster prevention
and enhance the fire safety awareness and self-rescue
ability of employees and trainees. In addition, we also
carried out various activities and training programs to
enhance employees’ safety awareness, such as fire hazard
investigation, fire safety knowledge training and emergency
evacuation drills. During the year, we recorded a total of 121
hours of occupational safety and health training.

BRI  HEREBRS (K)

Z2153
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RiE #HEREBRS (8)

Safeguarding Employees’ Health FIEEET BREEFE

We are aware of the potential health risks of our driving Ffi7REHEREME TR T
instructors and other employees during their normal work and ~ FV Y AT AE H IR A9 2 B2 R B » 3F $t ¥4 38 L&
have implemented certain protective measures against these AR H T —EAIBH EIEHE o

risks.

Health risks of employees

BT E#ERER

Driving instructors

BEH&

Other employees

FFBHFET

Health Long-term fatigue can easily lead to Liver- Back pain caused by long-term sitting
Risks Qi stagnation and standing
e B2 /2 ez RERS ZREFRERE RIS I MBS
Laryngitis caused by excessive use of the Working on the computer for a long time
throat can easily cause eye disease and eye
e PR {68 PR 38 5 | 35 I K¢ fatigue
Lumbar disc protrusion caused by long- EHEHEKS 53R R RERKS
term work in the car Using mouse for a long term can easily
RHISE FTEMs| 3 EHEARH lead to ankylosis
Long-term exposure to car exhaust may EHRGCHBREZEX A EE
cause lung disease and anemia
RHERZM S E R R Ol se RS ~ B
Protective Combine on-board and off-board Encourage employees to move their
Measures teaching cervical spine, legs and wrists in real time
F & 45 bt BEFHEMETHELES B8 T B RS EnTEME « BREDAN =

Provide tea and throat lozenges for driving
instructors

BHERER MBI KFAE S R

Purchase accident insurance for driving
instructors

~HEREBERING
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Sit upright, drink plenty of water, and
wash hands frequently
iHE R ZIEK - gL F



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Mental Health Education

Driving training is a job that requires driving instructors
with a higher level of skills and mental quality. In addition
to physical health, mental health is also an integral part of
occupational health. Therefore, we continued to conduct the
science popularisation lectures on mental health and emotion
management during the year. The science popularisation
lecture mainly focused on four major topics, namely, the
definition of mental health, the method of psychological
adjustment, the state of mood and how to do well in mood
management, so that the driving instructors can understand
the basics of mental and mood health, improve their mood
management ability and benefit for mental health.

BRI HEREBRS (B)

DIEREHE
BRUEIIE — BB R BRI RO
BEREERRSHBE REEERN
DERBEOEBERERAIBRN—
5 o AL FAINFAFERE O IERE
BREEEENM SBE M EBEE
ZEEOERENESR  OEFABHNT
BRI RS - AT B E R A
TERBE EEREBMTEOERER
BREBREERNM R BHEEERS
o BmROEER-

Regular science popularisation lectures to provide mental health and
emotion management training
ERRENREEE BREVERERIBEEIEE
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BRI HEREBRS (&)

Employee Composition

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 290
employees, with 237 male employees, accounting for
approximately 82%. About 69% of the employees were
between 30 and 50 years old. The Group had 5 management
employees, accounting for approximately 1.72% of total
number of employees. All employees were located in China.
During the year, the employee turnover rate of the Group was
52.47%.

Gender Profile

55

18%

® Female

@ Malke
£ Z

Turnover Rates by Age

REKREDEORKER

0,
782606  S174%

62.11%

53.83%
48.00% °

36.94%

<30 30-50 >50

2021 @ 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Employee Communication

We attach great importance to the quality of employees’ work
and therefore have established a comprehensive feedback
and communication system to actively listen to employees’
suggestions and opinions on the Group’s internal operations
and adjust operational measures to improve employees’
satisfaction. The Group has established an internal review
team for reasonable suggestions. If an unreasonable situation
is found in daily work, employees can report to the department
head every Friday, and the person-in-charge screens and
reports to the review team. The team reviews and approves
implementation of specific plans to improve internal operations
after discussion.

Employee Activities

During the year, the Group organized various activities for
employees to enhance their value, build stronger bonds, and
promote their overall well-being. One such activity was a hiking
trip to Tong Shan Hu, which aimed to promote physical and
mental health for employees in a beautiful natural setting.
During the trip, employees supported each other and fostered
a positive team dynamic, strengthening their relationships and
cohesion.

LER'16 ¢ u@; ‘“
LT

BRI HEREBRS (B)
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. Tour to the Tong Shan Hu Scenic Area
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BRI HEREBRS (&)

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with national laws? and SA8000
standards and prohibits child and forced labour. To ensure
compliance, all candidates are required to fill in the Group’s
“Entry Registration Form” and the personnel department
reviews their identity cards and health certificates. The office
staff checks whether the content filled is consistent with
the submitted certificates. If any problems are found, they
are rectified accordingly. In the event that child labour is
found to have been negligently employed, the child worker
is suspended immediately, and health checks are arranged
after which he/she is returned to his/her parents or guardian
as soon as possible. In addition, we maintain contact with the
parents or guardians of the child to ensure that the child will
return to the school for education.

Compliance with laws

We strictly comply with laws and regulations and have
established effective policies and procedures to ensure
that the Group’s business is in compliance with laws and
regulations in all aspects. The management of the Group
closely monitors the latest regulatory developments and
provides necessary training to relevant personnel. Same
as 2021 year, during the year, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunities, anti-discrimination, other benefits
and welfare, prevention of child and forced labour, provision
of a safe working environment and protection of employees
from occupational hazards; and there were no cases of work-
related fatalities or occupational diseases or incidents of
material penalties due to violation of labour-related laws.

2 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for child labour and
forced labour-related laws and regulations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Compliance is essential for the Group’s smooth operations.
In order to continuously promote excellence in operations
and management, we have implemented various measures
in multiple aspects such as service quality, supply chain
management, information security and intellectual property
protection.

Service Quality

The Group is committed to continuously improve service
quality, trainee satisfaction, and strictly comply with
the laws and regulations® related to training services of
driving schools. To ensure compliance, we set out in the
“Management Approach of the Teaching Affairs Office”
about the relevant requirements for the process of pre-
training, training, and examination participation of trainees,
and clarify the responsibilities of each department to ensure
the implementation of professional and compliant teaching
services. Due to the Group’s business nature, disclosure on
product recall procedures and number of products recalled are
not applicable.

8 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for driving training
quality-related laws and regulations
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RiE HEBREBRS (B)

Teaching Quality Management HEESEE

In order to ensure the quality of driving training, standardise
teaching behaviours, and provide first-class teaching services
for trainees, we adhere to the training concept of “people- T AAZA ISR WIBIIES >
oriented and warm service”, and continuously improve internal

systems and policies, strengthen the team management of BB > IEESHBKF o
driving instructors, and improve teaching level.

Internal policy
improvement

STE ARBER

Management
of driving
instructors team ;

BREEREE

Establish and improve various rules and regulations of the Group to provide system
guarantee for effective management of teaching and training, and all tasks have rules
and laws to follow

BUREAEERBERESNE AFWNEBHEEIRHHERE  SEILERIAEE
A& > BA A K

Set up a supervision centre, which is mainly responsible for the management of
instructors’ teaching arrangements and the situation of trainees
BESMRUGEER N TEEEEBHGEH LI T FNEERER

Strengthen the construction and assessment of instructors’ business ethics, supervise
and inspect coaches’ teaching conditions
BRICHREMFEEEREZT I BHHRABZBERETEERS

Instructors must have the appropriate qualifications, and regularly review the teaching
level and business ethics, and publish the teaching quality rankings of the instructors
HREEEHENEREE W ERHBRENHE KN =B EETIS AHHRE
NHEEEHTER

We will not tolerate behaviours that harm the interests of trainees. Those who violate
business ethics will be punished or expelled from the driving school
HRIEELEFENTA BFEE HEERBEEENAS BER—BATHEER
2B ER

Implement the academic affairs, timely disclosing the issues and major issues that
instructors and trainees are concerned about

BIRG AR BHRERBEMONBERERETEREEF RERH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition, we hold regular trainee seminars, administer
surveys and organise online exchanges to understand their
opinions and suggestions on training, education, teaching
and management services, and make timely adjustments to
continuously improve the level of teaching services.

Improve Trainee Satisfaction

The Board of Directors pays high attention to our trainees’
satisfaction, therefore closely monitors the complaints
handling and passing rate performance. The Group regulates
the complaint handling mechanism through the “Complaint
Management Methods” and the “Complaint Process” to
ensure that issues raised by the trainees can be responded
to and properly handled in a timely manner. Upon receipt of
complaints from trainees, the relevant employees solve the
problems of trainees timely in accordance with the principle of
“rapid, efficient and satisfactory” to improve their satisfaction.

BRI  HEREBRS (K)

o HMEATHEMABEERE
BERAERBLELRIRE THRESHIE
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Complaint handling process

KEFERERE

Receive complaint

information Analyse reasons
BWRRER SIRREE
* Analyse the issues, confirm e The responsible department e Follow up the process

whether it is possible
D HFEH BAEESHE

BIE3

analyse the cause and
recommend solution

ERIEH %R
e Determine the responsible
department o
e e B &R PT

solution
FTEBEMTREELZE

To enhance trainees’ sense of identity, apart from training and
assessment of driving instructors and logistics staff from time
to time, the registration centre, training centre and recruitment
office of the Group have taken the required improvement
measures to improve service quality.

B EEBPI D AT B v IR A o 3 .

The supervisors approve the

RIERIRIBRE

Summarise complaints to
improve service levels, and
reduce the occurrence of
customers’ complaints
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BRI HEREBRS (&)

Training centre

alll AR R

m Registration centre

@Y #EHL

e Adopt a reasonable division of o
labour, improve the efficiency
and quality of registration
work, and flexibly arrange the
examination time
ENSEBES T ReReIF
MEREE BRLHEERE J

i and solve the problems

for trainees

WEE

reported by the trainees as

e (Clarify the refund system,
reduce disputes due to refunds
AR ESIE B ERE H
BBV AU 40

soon as possible

28 RS

Information Security and Intellectual Property Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information security
and intellectual property protection. To this end, the Group has
established relevant management procedures and systems
such as the “Security System” and the “Intellectual Property
Management System”. All employees are required to comply
with relevant systems, laws and regulations*, strictly control
internal management, ensure information security and protect
intellectual property rights.

We have set out in the “Security System” measures in
relation to the Group’s internal information such as financial
statements, payroll tables and market research reports,
requiring employees not to disclose major events and
important information of the Group. We strictly prohibit any
leakage of confidential documents, and effectively protect
internal information. The “Intellectual Property Management
System” provides guidance for the Group to manage
intellectual property related matters, effectively protect the
Group’s intellectual property rights from infringement, and
encourage employees’ enthusiasm for invention and creation.
We organise relevant training activities to popularise the legal
knowledge of intellectual property to employees, and strictly
combat any infringement of intellectual property rights. We
encourage our employees to innovate and reward employees
who have made outstanding contributions to technology
transfer and intellectual property protection.

4 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for intellectual property
rights-related laws and regulations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Privacy Protection

We attach great importance to protection of trainees’
personal information. The Group has set up separate personal
information files for all trainees, which are managed by special
personnel. In general, we seldom make personnel changes
except for special reasons to protect the privacy of trainees.
If reviewing is needful, the borrowing registration procedures
and the approval of the director of the training centre must be
completed before the access of the trainee information.

Anti-corruption

Business integrity is highly valued. The Group strictly abides
by the relevant national laws and regulations®, regulates the
behaviours of relevant functional departments and employees,
and prevents the occurrence of fraud. We have established
a series of internal anti-fraud systems and monitoring
policies that define non-compliance that may cause damage
to the Group’s economic interests, the purpose being to
safeguard the Group’s reputation and interests. We require
each employee to sign the “Corrupt Practices Commitment”,
and employees are required to ensure that disclosure of the
Group’s trade secrets and the use of trade secrets to make
profits for themselves or others is prohibited. They need to
strictly comply with national laws and the Group’s rules and
regulations and the promote individual private interests under
the guise of serving the public is prohibited.

In order to further strengthen the integrity of the Group and
supervision and management of school-level practices, we
have set up an inspection team system to regularly investigate
the working system and implementation of each department
on a monthly basis.

Whistleblowing mechanism

The Group has established an “Anti-fraud (Reporting) System”,
and we encourage employees to report violations, disciplinary
violations, illegality, fraud and acts that are detrimental to the
interests and image of the Group through various channels. If
the reported incident is verified after investigation, the whistle-
blower is rewarded accordingly.

5 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for anti-corruption
related laws and regulations
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The inspection team, as a standing body for anti-fraud work
of the Group, is responsible for accepting complaints and
reports, formulating investigation plans, and conducting
relevant investigation. After the investigation, the inspection
team prepares an investigation report and report to the
management.

If the report finds the accusation wrong, punishment is
awarded to the whistle-blower according to the Group’s rules
and regulations, and the responsibility of the relevant person is
seriously investigated. For general complaints such as adverse
comments and unconscionable behaviours, the inspection
team should interview relevant personnel and give warning
reminders. For suspected illegality, we promptly transfer them
to the judicial authority for handling.
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Employee
report cases

BIRRK

Employees can
report the cases to
their supervisors
rank by rank or

to the inspection
team directly
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The inspection team
accepts and confirms

the information
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information
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content
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Determine the
type of report:
major report at the
Group level, report
from senior audit
managers, and
general report
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Whistle-blowing and handling procedures
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Develop and
implement the
investigation plan
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Complete the
investigation report
and report to the
management
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the regulations
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BRI HEREBRS (&)

In addition, we have also established systems to protect
the privacy and security of whistle-blowers by keeping their
personal information confidential and prohibiting any kind of
retaliation. The inspection team and the relevant departments
involved in the investigation keep the personal information
confidential, such as the name and phone number of the
whistle-blower and the contents of the report. When accepting
a report or verifying the situation with the whistle-blower,
it is ensured that the identity of the whistle-blower is not
exposed. The identity information of the whistle-blower is kept
strictly confidential when publicizing, reporting and awarding
the whistle-blower. We strictly prohibit any retaliation, and
those who violate the rules and disclose the information of
the whistle-blower or retaliate against the whistle-blower are
dismissed and the labour contract is terminated. Cases of any
violation of the law are transferred to the judicial authority.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are our close partners and the foundation for us
to maintain a stable supply chain. The Group’s suppliers
mainly consist of fuel suppliers, suppliers for training and test
vehicles, suppliers for on-board equipment and monitoring
equipment, and suppliers for construction works. During the
year, we had a total of more than 10 suppliers.

Selection and evaluation of suppliers

The Group has formulated the “Supplier Evaluation Process”,
the “Procurement Management Measures” and other system
documents to regulate the procurement process and ensure
that the products and services provided by suppliers meet
our requirements. The Group selects suppliers based on the
cooperating principles of high-quality, low-price, contract-
emphasis, honesty and trustworthiness, effective management
and close range. Before procurement, we evaluate suppliers
through interviews, on-site visits, and background checks, and
record the evaluation information in the “Supplier Information
Survey Form”, which is reviewed and approved by the director
of the procurement department before purchase.
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Supplier assessment criteria

1t /& 78 5 i K 1%
Litigation incident
HRENE ¢
Mortgage and pledge of assets
BERERIKR

Inquiries, comparisons and bargains
#HEEERZEE
Visit suppliers’ plants or warehouses if necessary

VERESHEE IRAAE

Procurement amount
RIBEE
Payment methods

(NELVEY

Obtain the information from its cooperators about the cooperation model, shipments,
reputation, etc. if the supplier is an agency

HfERANER RAEEENSEBRREEFRRAEANSFRL - LEE - EES

In addition, we also conduct annual assessment on all b9 I TR E B HIEm ETEET
suppliers to ensure the quality of products and services fii’ UERMHEFMIZENE B ERE
provided by them, which in turn ensures the quality and safety B2 > EMRFAEFR T XFNRE
of the Group’s training business. MZgo
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Green procurement

To fulfill the aim of environmental sustainability in supply chain
management, procurement of eco-friendly products is given
priority where possible and economically viable. The Group
has been closely working with our suppliers to strengthen
our sustainability portfolio and minimise risks throughout the
supply chain and is committed to promoting sustainable and
responsible operational standards. Despite that we consider
the environmental impact on our supply chain is insignificant,
the Group prefers local suppliers whenever possible to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation and to support the local
economy. During the year, all suppliers of the Group were
located in China.

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the
importance of compliance with laws and regulations and
have formulated corresponding prevention, supervision and
detection measures to ensure obeying laws and regulations
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and laundering. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to advertising, privacy matters, health and
safety of services provided; nor was it aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and
laundering; nor any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or our employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to striking a balance between business
operations and environmental protection, contributing
to a greener environment through energy conservation
and emissions reduction. In the future, we will continue
to improve our environmental management approach,
optimise environmental performance and achieve sustainable
operations of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Environmental Management

The Group recognizes its social corporate responsibility
in environmental protection and commits to promoting
responsible operation in its business. The Group has
established the Green Office Policy with an aim of creating
a green working environment and raising our employee’s
awareness. The policy focuses on relevant environmental
aspects to the Group’s business including energy saving
practices, paper-free office, water conservation, and
good indoor air quality. Also, the Group has established
Environmental Protection Policy to delegate the responsibility
of consumption monitoring and promotion to different
functional departments. We strictly abide by national
environmental laws and regulations®, continuously establish
and improve various energy conservation and environmental
protection systems and strive to reduce the impact of our
operations on the ecological environment. The environmental
management of the Group is led by the Chairman of the Board
of Directors, while the business department and the logistics
support department guide and supervise the relevant work
of the teaching affairs office, office, and vehicle management
team respectively, and report to the Board of Directors on
a regular basis. Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
we do not consume any packaging materials in our daily
operations, and the impact on the environment mainly comes
from fuel consumption and emissions of the vehicles.

6 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for environment-related
laws and regulations
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Organisational structure of environmental management
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For details of environmental data, please refer to the =FAINIRIEHIEFZE #EXREHE)

“Performance Data Summary”.
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Energy Management

Energy consumption in the Group’s daily operations mainly
includes petrol, diesel (direct energy) and purchased electricity
(indirect energy). During the year, the Group’s total energy
consumption was 14,121.66 thousand kWh, with an energy
consumption intensity of 0.30 thousand kWh per thousand
RMB revenue. Among them, the direct energy consumption
was 12,807.49 thousand kWh, and indirect energy
consumption was 1,314.16 thousand kWh.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions generated by the Group
include direct emissions from fuel combustion of vehicles
(Scope 1) and energy indirect emissions from the use of
electricity (Scope 2). During the year, the Group’s total GHG
emissions amounted to 4,024.75 tCO2e, which consisted of
3,222.97 tCO2e direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) and 801.77
tCO2¢ energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2).

Compared with prior year, the GHG emission generated from
the Group was lower than 2021. Both direct GHG emissions
(Scope 1) and indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) were lower
as the Group had a smaller energy consumption in diesel,
gasoline and purchased electricity during the Year. The
lower energy consumption was mainly due to the pandemic
prevention and control measures throughout the Year. As the
energy consumption varies with the business activities of the
Group’s vehicles, the Group targets to maintain the energy
consumption intensity and GHG emissions intensity not higher
than 5% of the level during the year (FY2022) in the coming 5
years. We aim to achieve such targets through the measures
below.

Fuel consumption of vehicles is a major component of the
Group’s energy consumption. We have continued to adopt
various measures to save energy and improve efficiency. We
carry out training, publicity and education activities related to
energy conservation and emission reduction from time to time
to enhance the awareness of all employees and encourage
energy conservation and emission reduction in day-to-day
operations. At the same time, we strive to create a green,
environment-friendly, low-carbon and energy-saving office
environment, practice green office culture, start with details,
saving electricity and office supplies.
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=

Driving training
B ezl

(4

Electricity saving

B AE

G

Office supplies
saving

RS EEYN LT

Use customised versions of driving school training vehicles
P& FB 7E il hie 89 28 1 3% 51| EE 8l
Restrict training vehicles from driving on the road
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Turn off lights, computers and other electrical appliances in time
KESRARRIE - BINEE
Use natural light to illuminate when sufficient to avoid turning on electric lights
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Prioritise to use water-saving appliances

B AEKERE

Check whether the faucets are closed from time to time to avoid leaking water
NEHIKAR K REFR R S RARR » ¥ Sk

Check that all taps are fastened before knocking off
THAIEEMBKEEESEESR

Repair or replace the valve in time
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Advocate paperless office, double-sided printing, or handing around the documents to
reduce paper use, and encouraging the use of renewable paper

REBMCHA  EEITENHUERXG R BB ENARSR > TR ex B B AT B A4
Use recyclable items such as refill pens, toner cartridges and rechargeable batteries
FRATERATNE - RPN EEEMZE T BIREANY &

Encourage to purchase environmentally friendly items
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Water Conservation

The Group is well aware that water shortage is an increasingly
serious challenge and therefore we have implemented a series
of water-saving measures in our daily operations and continue
to cultivate employees’ awareness of the need for water
conservation. We post “Water Conservation” signs at water
taps in the office and require employees to turn off the water
taps immediately after use. During the year, the total water
consumption of the Group was 9,987.09 tonnes and the water
consumption intensity was 0.21 tonnes per thousand RMB
revenue. The Group did not have any issue in sourcing water
fit for the purpose.

The Group targets to maintain the water consumption intensity

at the level during the year (FY2022) in the coming 5 years to
ensure the effectiveness of the above water saving measures.
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Emissions Management
Exhaust Emissions Management

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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M EE
BEmEE

The major exhaust emissions generated from the Group’s daily HAEBHREEEENER SAYTE
operations are nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and 2R 2 B &mHE R E’Jﬁﬂﬂ:%(NOx) =
particulate matter (PM) emitted from vehicles. During the year, 1E#)(SOx) U K& f&F L F(PM) o £ A » F,
we generated 23.17 tonnes of nitrogen oxides, 0.02 tonnes 19X & & KA S 7K %%EEEZS 17I1¢E§£_L¥-Lﬂ:
of sulphur oxides and 2.28 tonnes of particulate matter from  #7~ 0.02MB#R E 154 f2.28Ma 7% 7% H F- ©

vehicle fuel consumption.

Exhaust emissions

BRI E

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) tonnes

EalE=Rvt) g 23.17 45.55

Sulphur Oxides (SOx) tonnes

maity 7 0.02 0.03

Particulate Matter (PM) tonnes

R R F U 2.28 4.49
We continue to adopt a series of measures to reduce I FIEEHRINARYFERLUR /D ER SR
emissions and to protect the environment. MBE REIRIE ©

Emission reduction measures

L HEE

Formulate emission management rules
and strictly manage vehicle and canteen
soot emissions to reduce the impact on
the environment

FIEEREEMI BREESWMER
B B2 HEBERO UREHERIEN

v Regularly conduct vehicle evaluation and maintenance,
e and promptly replace vehicle environmental protection
equipment, such as air filters, diesel filters, etc., to
avoid unnecessary emissions due to the aging of the
equipment, and gradually eliminate the vehicles with
heavy fuel consumption and emissions

R EERER BRI EHRRE  RFEREWRF
R MEREC FHECET  BEERNERARREE
EEETHENERFR TEFBAEREXN ER
PFHEBARHER

Motor vehicles shall undergo annual
inspections in accordance with
regulations to ensure that emissions
meet national requirements

W ERRTEETER BRERBEN
REBEREKR

Use clean energy in the canteen, as well
as the soot separation equipment to
control air pollution caused by the soot
in the canteen
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Wastewater Management

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, our daily
operations do not involve industrial wastewater discharge.
The wastewater generated by the Group is mainly domestic
wastewater from office and cleaning areas. The canteen
wastewater and toilet wastewater generated by us are
transferred to the sedimentation tank and septic tank
respectively through the sewage pipe network, and the
relevant local departments are responsible for recycling and
treatment. During the year, all domestic wastewater generated
by the Group was treated and discharged in accordance with
the requirements of the laws and regulations of the places
where it operates. The data for wastewater discharge was not
available.

Waste Management

Food waste generated from the Group’s canteen is the major
non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group. To mitigate
the disposal, the Group has adopted various measures
in the canteen area, including delegate supervision in the
canteen and prohibit food wastage, thus closely monitor the
effectiveness of the measures.

The Group regulates the waste discharge procedures by
setting up a fixed waste collection and storage point in the
waste-generating departments to collect recyclable and
non-recyclable waste separately. For general wastes that
cannot be handled timely, protective measures such as anti-
diffusion and anti-blowing are taken to prevent secondary
pollution during storage. When the amount of recyclable
waste is accumulated to a certain level, the logistics support
department is responsible for handing it over to qualified waste
disposal companies for recycling.

Hazardous waste such as waste engine oil is generated
during the Group’s vehicle maintenance process. As vehicle
maintenance work is undertaken by third-party service
providers, hazardous waste generated is not included in
the Group’s waste data. There is minimal hazardous waste
produced as compared to last year. During the year, the Group
produced less than 0.01 tonnes of hazardous waste which are
office-related waste including used batteries and toners, with
hazardous waste intensity of 0.0001 kg of hazardous waste
generated per thousand RMB revenue. During the year, the
Group produced a total of 130.15 tonnes of non-hazardous
waste, including general office waste and food waste
generated from office and canteen areas, with non-hazardous
waste intensity of 2.73 kg of waste generated per thousand
RMB revenue.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

While the waste intensity slightly increased over the year, by
implementing the aforesaid measure, the Group has confident
to maintain the non-hazardous waste disposal intensity at the
level during the year (FY2022) in the coming 5 years to ensure
the effectiveness of the above waste reduction measures.

Climate Change

The Group recognizes the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, therefore
closely monitors the potential impact of climate change on
our business and operations. In accordance with the reporting
framework developed by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures, there are two major categories of
climate-related risks, physical and transition risks.

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as typhoons, storms, heavy rainfalls, and extreme
cold or heat bring acute and chronic physical risks to the
Group’s business. The Group’s capacity and productivity will
be reduced under extreme weather events as the safety of our
employees is threatened and the operational sites might be
damaged, which exposes the Group to risks associated with
non-performance and delayed performance, leading to direct
negative impact on the Group’s revenue.

To minimize the potential risks and hazards, the Group
has established mitigation plans, including flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad or
extreme weather conditions such as typhoon and black
rainstorm. The Group will explore emergency plan to further
reduce the vulnerability of our installations to extreme weather
events in order to enhance business stability.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (&)

Transition Risks

According to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(“IPCC”) special report, a more aggressive greenhouse gas
reduction target is needed to address the increasing threat
from climate change. To achieve the global vision on carbon
neutrality, the Group expects evolution of the regulatory,
technological and market landscape due to climate change,
including the tightening of national policies and listing rules
and the emergence of environmentally related taxes. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose enterprises
to higher risks of claims and lawsuits, which might incur
additional compliance costs and affect the reputation of the
Group.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group constantly monitors any changes
in laws or regulations and global trends on climate change to
avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines or reputational
risks due to delayed response. In addition, the Group
has been taking comprehensive environmental protection
measures, including GHG reduction measures, has set targets
to gradually reduce the Group’s energy consumption and GHG
emissions in the future.

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the
importance of compliance with laws and regulations and
have formulated the corresponding prevention, supervision,
and detection measures to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations on environmental protection. During the year, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

As an enterprise with a strong sense of social responsibility,
the Group remains committed to giving back to the society
and pursuing the common development of the enterprise
and the society. During the year, we actively participated in
social welfare activities, such as convoy for the examination
candidates, and visiting front-line staff in pandemic control.
The Group donated a total of RMB26,000 in social welfare
activities, and employees participated in public welfare
activities for approximately 2,114 hours with a total of 133
volunteers from our employees.

The Group fully aware of providing support to the needy
and the hands-on contribution of employees to the society.
The Group organized a number of welfare activities, mainly
donations and volunteer work.

Donations and Volunteer

Our employees actively participated in supporting the high
school entry examination by providing essential supplies to
duty officers and assisting with operations. Additionally, the
Group has been providing free transportation services for high
school entry students taking the exam to the examination
halls, demonstrating our commitment to supporting education
and our community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (&)

m ﬁ*'l-‘*li o

Employees providing donations to the duty officers and transportation to
the students during the high school entry examination
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group made contributions to other charitable
organizations, such as Wufang Volunteer, and remains
committed to supporting society with the resources we have.
We are aware of the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic has
on our society, and feel a sense of responsibility to support
the fight against this crisis. As such, we have continued to
donate goods and essential items for pandemic prevention
and control efforts. We also made a conscious effort to show
appreciation for the front-line staff, expressing our gratitude
and support to provide them with a sense of warmth and
encouragement.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (&)

Volunteer training

The Group has also utilized the specialty of the business
and provide volunteer training to furnish the needy with the
capability to drive and obtain employment opportunities.
We aim to enhance with awareness of our employees on
community involvement and promote the spirit of contributing
to our society.

Social Recognition

In view of the Group’s effort in promoting employee safety and
health education and training, identifying workplace hazard,
and establishing safety company culture, we were awarded as
the wining company in the 2021 Year Zhumadian City “Safety
and Healthy Cup” Competition.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
Rif HEREBRS (&)

Over the years, the Group has continued to commit our social %EH > ZAEB—BHR DR ZFHLEN
responsibility in supporting the community. We were awarded #HEZEF KRS EEBELEE N
again as the “Caring Company” in the year for our continuous B | 8218 URIBHRMHZFNFTES
contribution in Suiping. BA o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE #HEREBRS (8)

LAWS AND REGULATIONS ERBGER
The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and ZHAEBERZKETHBNEREE GF
regulations, including but not limited to the following: EBEARRRUTARRE .
Applicable Laws and Regulations Corresponding Chapter
BERNZERRER HESH
A1 Emissions e Environmental Protection Law of the People’s |Environmental Protection
ATBE ) Republic of China — Emissions Management
(PEARZENRIRIRREZE) IRIBRE—FINEIR

e |Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
(REARENBEARRS M EE)

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(FPEEANRHMBEATREBEED

e |aw of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste
(PEARIENBEEBEY S RIRELEED

B1 Employment e |abour Law of the People’s Republic of China Employee Care —
B1{E1E (FPZEARSEMEEBE) Talent Management)
e Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of & TRE— AA EIE
China

(FEARENBESEEREED

e Provisions on the Administration of Road
Transport Employees
(BREBREASEENRTE)

e Special Rules on Labour Protection of Female
Employees

(X T HERERHIRE)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BiE HEREBHRS (B)

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRAKERBRER

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China

(PEARSENEZEEEE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Road
Traffic Safety
(FEARZNBERIBEBLERIE)

Corresponding Chapter
HEEE

Employee Care — Health
and Safety
BETHAR-RREZE

B4 Labour Standard

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the

Employee Care —

B4 T # 8| Protection of Minors Prevention of Child and
(PEEAREMBEIRKEAREED Forced Labour
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child | & TREE—#48E T &8
Labour 55 T
(BIEEAETRE)

B6 Product Regulation on the Implementation of Road Traffic | Operational Excellence —

Responsibility Safety of the People’s Republic of China Service Quality

B6EmET (PEARHENMBEIERRELZERIEAG ) FHEE-IRBEE

Regulations of the People’s Republic of China on
Road Transport
(R N\ R HMEE B E @ R A )

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TR&ES

Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(PEARHENMBIRAEERHRFE L)

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
(rpEE AR HFMBIRIED

Operational Excellence —
Anti-corruption
FHEE-RES

ARERZERERAT o

S
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI HEREBRS (&)

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

Environmental Data

HERREE
IRIFEIE

2022 2021

Greenhouse Gas Emissions’ BAEREBHKE
Scope 1 Direct emissions (tCOze) HE1 BB

(Mg - E bR ES) 3,222.97 5,266.40
Scope 2 Indirect emissions (tCOze) &0 B2

(E—afbikEE) 801.77 1,175.21
Total GHG emissions (tCOze) BERBHIIES

(E—atkES 4,024.75 6,441.62
Emission intensity BEREE M_EtikEE

(tCO2e per RMB1,000 revenue)? STt ARBEEEE)? 0.08 0.10
Air Emissions EEREENE
Sulphur oxides (SOx) (Tonnes) A 1E¥(SOx) (F) 0.02 0.03
Nitrogen oxides (NO») (Tonnes) KA1EYI(INOX) (145) 23.17 45.55
Particulate matter (PM) (Tonnes) BFBER(PM) (M) 2.28 4.49
Waste EEEY
Food waste production (Tonnes) BIeR EE = (M) 95 102.01
Waste cooking oil production (Tonnes) BB HMEEE (M) - -
Office waste generation (Tonnes) MAEEEYELE (H) 35.15 50.63
Total non-hazardous waste disposal BEBREYRERE (M)

(Tonnes) 130.15 152.63
Non-hazardous waste intensity BEBRBYELERE (FTn/

(kg per RMB1,000 revenue) STt ARBEER) 2.73 2.27
Total hazardous waste disposal (Tonnes) | BEEREEYREEE () 0.01 -
Hazardous waste intensity (kg per BEEBEEYEERE (TR,

RMB1,000 revenue) STTARBEER) 0.0001 -
Resources Consumption BIRHFE
Diesel (Litres) S0l (A7) 973,607.57 | 1,513,691,34
Petrol (Litres) R (AF) 246,274.34 | 478,817.88
Electricity (kWh) B (TRF) 1,314,162.00 1,368,595.00
Total energy consumption (‘000 kWh) WEEREFE (TETER) 14,121.66 22,210.38
Energy intensity BEERE (TETRE

(‘000 kWh per RMB1,000 revenue) ST ARBEZELR) 0.30 0.33
Water (Tonnes) FEKE (MR) 9,987.09 17,043.00
Water intensity FEOKEE (M,

(Tonnes per RMB1,000 revenue) BT T AREBEXR) 0.21 0.25
Note: B 5E
1. GHG emissions are calculated with reference to the Greenhouse Gas

Protocol. The emission factors for the calculation of GHG emissions are
referenced from the HKEx “How to Prepare an Environmental, Social
and Governance Report — Appendix Il: Environmental Key Performance
Indicators Reporting Guidelines”.

2. The total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 amounted to approximately RMB47,700 thousand and
RMB67,200 thousand, respectively. The data is also used for calculating
other intensity data.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI  HEREBRS (K)

Social Data tEEE
Total Headcount BTHEAK 290 419
By Gender %5153
Male B 237 362
Female poga 53 57
By Function B sE 2
Management ] 5 4
General staff —mRAE 285 415
By Age Fhea M
<30 <30 26 43
30-50 30-50 200 283
>50 >50 64 93
By Geographical Distributions & 53
Mainland China Py ith 290 419
Hong Kong B 0 0
By Employment Type EBIEHEE DM
Full-time 2 290 419
Part-time e 0 0
Employee Turnover — By Age BT RKBER—IRER
Number of Employees Lost mEAE
<30 <30 27 18
30-50 30-50 130 244
>50 >50 29 59
Turnover Rate MK E
<30 <30 78.26% 48.00%
30-50 30-50 53.83% 81.74%
>50 >50 36.94% 62.11%
Employee Turnover - By Gender BT RKBER — B4R
Number of Employees Lost BT REAH
Male 5% 169 312
Female pogca 17 10
Turnover Rate MK E
Male B 56.43% 82.65%
Female pogis 30.91% 18.52%
BARERERERAE o« “Z-"FFRW
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BRI HEREBRS (&)

2022 2021

Employee Training Performance -
By Function

B TR — BEAE

The Percentage of Employees Trained

HANBER

Management Y] 100.00% 25.00%

General employee —mRET 89.82% 94.46%
Average Training Hours Per Employee | A 39152l B 8(

Management EIEfE 2.40 12.00

General employee —RET 3.40 3.60
Employee Training Performance BTIEINERR — &%

— By Gender
The Percentage of Employees Trained |iZ3I7E &= =%

Male B 91.56% 96.41%

Female pogis 83.02% 77.19%
Average Training Hours Per Employee | A 33% 3l 8¢

Male B 3.26 3.81

Female Z % 3.45 2.11
Performance of Occupational Safety |Bi¥LZZ2EBEEN

and Health

Number of work-related injuries AITZEAH 0 2

Lost days due to work-related injury ATEBEXTIEAH 0 0

Number of work-related fatalities EITIET AH 0 0

Rate of work-related fatalities A TIETEEE 0 0
Public Welfare (RMB) AHTBA ANEE) 26,000 270,000

Hours participating in social welfare XN IliSE

activities 2,114 1,912.5
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BiE HEREBHRS (B)

CONTENT INDEX S EAL]

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT FEHSXZAERERLABIRIE
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF #He&R&E&a#EiIESsIRNAZ=S]
HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Description Section/Declaration

Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHR -EBE-
—MRIRER

A A IEAR

b

Aspect A1: Emissions

B BH

BEA1 : B4
General Information on: Environmental Protection —
Disclosure (@) the policies; and Emission Management
—RIEE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact |25 {R:E —HEEE
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERRBRERBYM MRS - EERBEEEEYNELEN

(@ BR; &

b) BFHETABEALENERERLRANER
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Protection —

FASRAMIEIEALA

HERA R R AR R HE I R

Emission Management
RIBRE—FRERE

KPI A1.2
FAREMIEIEAL.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

B @E1) kpRERE EE2) BERBHRE CURSE) & WER) BE @
UEESE - 8EREFTE) o

Performance Data Summary

YEREFE

KPI A1.3
R R EMISIRA1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

FREL B ZEEYRE CUBSE) REE-

The Group’s vehicle
maintenance process which
may involve the generation of
hazardous waste is handled by
third-party service, while other
daily operations do not involve
the generation of hazardous
waste
REEP T RBEEREENE
ENEREETEXHE=S
REmEEE HiA B &8
TS RBEEBEEMNESL

KPI A1.4
MR EMISIRAL4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

FREEBREZEEYRE CUESHE) REE -

Performance Data Summary

YEREEE

ARERZERERAT o
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHR -E@-
—MRIRERK

A A IR AR
KPI A1.5

A A IE1RA1.5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiE #HEREBRS (8)

Description

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HAPRET L NEEE B R A E DS L B IR PR ERE R 27 BX o

Section/Declaration

B BH

Environmental Protection —
Emission Management
RIERE-FRERE

KPI A1.6
FAREMIEIZA1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HRERERESERYNG % REAMEIIIRNREERRAEINELEER
PRERER B2 BR o

Environmental Protection —
Emission Management
RIERE—FRERE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 . BRER

General Disclosure

— RN E

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER (BFRER KR EMEME) BB -

Environmental Protection —
Resources Conservation
RIEFRE-—HOER

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. Environmental Protection —
RBENISIEA21 | RELIONERER UBEEREEEREE Resources Conservation
RIERE-—HNER
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Performance Data Summary
RIRERISIEA22 (BEKERBE- HERRBE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | Environmental Protection —
FREMIEIEA2.3 | HAPTET A REA NG B E R AEDE L BIEFREN S 5o Resources Conservation
RIERE-—HNER
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | Environmental Protection —
FAE4EIIEIEA2.4 | water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Resources Conservation
HAUKREGBE AR LB EAME URAEIINEKNEEERAEIELEE RERE-HHER
TR PTERERAY 27 B o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and with reference | The Group’s daily operations
FAEMIEIZEA2.5 | to per unit produced. do not involve in use of

Bk P B EEMEREE UMEE) hEEERGE-

packaging materials
AEENPEEER T REE
R B FE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs
FTEHR-EE
—MRIRER

A R AE IR AR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R HERER

Description

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3 : IRIERXAER

wE (])

Section/Declaration

B BH

General Disclosure

—RRIRE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

HEZETABRERRABREMERT ZHNER

Environmental Protection
IRIEfRE

KPI A3.1
PR AE IS IRAS.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

B EBEHHRRERRAAERNEATERERNEESHTZENTH -

Environmental Protection
f&iﬂ{ uN Dx

Aspect A4: Climate Change

[EEA4 : RIFE(L

General Disclosure

—RRIREE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
A REHECRAIEEHETAELEZENSTAREEMBETNER

Environmental Protection —
Climate Change
— R &b

Iﬁiﬂf A%

KPI A4.1
R R A5 1RA4.1

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

HAERRAIEEHETAELEZENEARBEBEE  REHITH -

Environmental Protection —
Climate Change
RIERE—RIEEE

Aspect B1: Employment

[BEB1 : &

General Disclosure

— RN E

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

A RF BN e R (R ~ 1R EE

HMAFB KRB

(@ B ; &

(o) BFHEBETABEAZENEMERRRFINER

recruitment and promotion, working

EREA TR R TEHRE 20 RIKRUK

Employee Care — Talent
Management
STIRE-ASEE

KPI B1.1
RSB EIEIEB1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age
group and geographical region.
R4 RESE 2R RE) - AN Kt E R D HESEH-

Performance Data Summary

HERERE

KPI B1.2
R AR I517B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

R FEAR R BB DHEERKLE

Performance Data Summary

HERERR

APERZERERAT o

SR CEER
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BRI  HERE)

AR E (&)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHR -EBE-
—MRIRER

A R AE IR AR

Description

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2: #REZ2

Section/Declaration

B BH

General Disclosure

—RRIRE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

ERREZE2TIHRREERFEEEREHENEEN

(@ BE; &

b) BFHETABEAZENERERERGANER

Employee Care — Talent
Management
ETRE-AAEE

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years | Performance Data Summary
BASRAEMIEIEB2.1 | including the reporting year. HEREHEE

BE=F (BFEERFE) SFRTUTHRNABKLEE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data Summary
RRENIEEB2.2 |RITEEATEBRC HERERE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are | Employee Care — Health and
FAMENIE1EB2.3 | implemented and monitored. Safety

H PR PR R R R R 2 21T IR AITRERG A

ETHE-REREZS

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEBS : 8 & RkiE:

General Disclosure

— RN E

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

BRI HEERTT TIER BRI R SERBER o At 5 5E 8

Employee Care - Training and
Development
STRE—EIHER

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. | Performance Data Summary
RAEAERIEIEB3.1 | senior management, middle management). HEREBE

R REERR MEREEE -FREERES) APNZIEEF DL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee |Performance Data Summary
FAEENIEIEB3.2 | category. HERERE

RIERREESEFNE D BHEETMZIINTHEH-
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHRE -E@-
—MRIRER

A R AE IR AR
Aspect B4: Labour S
[BEB4 : % T#A|

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BiE B REBRSE (B)

Description

Ei:pus

tandards

Section/Declaration

B BH

General Disclosure

—RRIRE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

A RAP L& T a8 %5 TAY :

(@ BE; &

b) BFHEFETABEALENERERLRANER

Employee Care — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
BTRE—HEETRARHZS
T

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced | Employee Care — Prevention of
A B 45 35 12B4.1 labour. Child and Forced Labour
Ho A 5 1R B G B BY HE T LASE b 88 T e 5 il 55 T o BTRE—HEET ARG
T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Employee Care - Prevention of
FRENIEEB4.2 | BT ERBERIEREDHIRE BRI R F R Child and Forced Labour

BETHE-HBET KRG
T

Aspect B5: Supply C
[BTEB5 : HEREER

hain Management

General Disclosure

—RRIREE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
EEERENIRE KA RBER

Operational Excellence —
Supply Chain Management
SHEEHEREEE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Operational Excellence —
FARENIEIEBS.1 | RHES o N HEREE - Supply Chain Management
SHEE-HEEEIE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | Operational Excellence —
Bl 2 45 %35 1EB5.2 where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and | Supply Chain Management
monitored. SHEE-HESEE
HMMBERMERMEENES nERTERMBGANEREEE  LUREREAN
HITKRERR o
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the | Operational Excellence —
FAEENIEIEB5.3 | supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Supply Chain Management
BB ERESERONRERTERABNIES  UREANTRERS | SHEE HEEEE
&
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and | Operational Excellence —
FAEEMIEIEB5.4 | services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. | Supply Chain Management

HREREREBHRERSBARFERRRBOEG  URBERAITRERS
o

SHEE-HEREE

APERZERERAT o

SR CEER

L)



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRI  HEKRE

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHR -EBE-
—MRIRER

A R AE IR AR

ARG (&)

Description

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EmEB6 : EmEE

Section/Declaration

B BH

General Disclosure

—RRIRE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods of redress.

BRMREERMBRBNEREZE  BS REEMESEURERFEDN

(@ BE; &

b) BFHETABEAZENERERERGANER

Operational Excellence —
Service Quality
SHEE-RHES

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | Operational Excellence —
FASR/EMIEIEB6.1 | health reasons. Service Quality
BEREEXEREHPRL 2 BREREAMERKNE DL SHEE-RHES
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are | Operational Excellence —
FASEEMIEIEB6.2 | dealt with. Service Quality
RN Em MRS HR S E U EH %o SHEE-RBEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property | Operational Excellence —
FAREMIEIEB6.3 | rights. Information Security and
J 2t £62 4 2B T AR PE R 38 EE 1 B ARV 1Bl o Intellectual Property Protection
SHEE—EERERAHE
HEfRE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Operational Excellence —
FARENIEIZEB6.4 | ESRTEBRENERBIKER Service Quality
SHEE-RHES
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are | Operational Excellence —
RAE4E%351EB6.5 |implemented and monitored. Information Security and

HIHBEBERRERMREER  URARAITRER DX

Intellectual Property Protection
SHEE-EREERNHE
HEfRE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BiE B REBRSE (B)

Description

Section/Declaration

KPIs
FEHR -EBE- =8B
—MRIRER
A R AE IR AR
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[BEB7: RES
General Disclosure | Information on: Operational Excellence — Anti-
— MR E (a) the policies; and corruption
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact | E#&EE - K &5
on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAP LIRS ~ R REE R B8R
(@ BE; &
(o) BFHETABEAZENERZRERRAOANER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the | Operational Excellence — Anti-
FA B 45 35 12BT.1 issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. | corruption
RERBARETAIHESRETESENESHAZHNYUE kAR 2HEE-RES
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they are | Operational Excellence — Anti-
RSB EWISIEB7.2 | implemented and monitored. corruption
TP g FE I s R IRAZ T LURABRAFIT R BE B 5 0% o EHEE-RES
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Operational Excellence — Anti-
FAREMIEEBT.S | HRESEKETRENRESEIlC corruption

SHEE-RES

Aspect B8: Commun
[BEBS : 1t ERE

ity Investment

General Disclosure

— RN E

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

B E2ERTREEMELERENRFREER EHEERLERAN@EN
B o

Community Engagement

HESH

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour | Community Engagement
FASEAEMIEIZB8.1 | needs, health, culture, sport). HESH

EXEMEE BINHEE REEM FTER R XL EH) o
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Performance Data Summary
FRENIEEBS.2 | A IHEMBAER (GINEFEHEE) o HERERE

MAERZERERAE o T

FER
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEANAENEBESE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, aged 46, is the founder of the Group,
the Chairman, an executive Director, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He served as a Director since 22 February 2017.
He was then redesighated as an executive Director and also
served as the Chairman since 22 May 2017. He is primarily
responsible for major decision-making, overall strategic
planning and determining corporate policies and general
management of the Group.

In December 2012 and April 2014, Mr. Qi as a founder
established Shun Da School and Tong Tai School,
respectively. He has served as the executive director and legal
representative of Tong Tai School and Shun Da School and the
executive director, general manager and legal representative of
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* (&t 55 &
BRLEIE B R /A F) since their respective establishments.

Mr. Qi was appointed as a member of the 3rd executive
committee of Zhumadian City Federation of Industry and
Commerce* (BEEB/EM IEE S E)in March 2016 and
a member, standing member and vice president of the
7th executive committee of Suiping County Federation of
Industry and Commerce* GZF & THEEt&E)in May 2016.
Also, Mr. Qi was appointed as the chairman of the Driver
Training Service Industry Council of the Zhumadian City Road
Transport Association* (5t 5 /E B R E#R H S &R 55
TERE)in March 2017. In addition, Mr. Qi is elected as a
deputy to the 4th Zhumadian City People’s Congress (5t E /&
mEOEARAKRKENR) In April 2017,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Zhao Yuxia, aged 52, is the chief executive officer and
chief financial officer of the Group and an executive Director.
She served as a Director since 22 May 2017. She was then
redesignated as an executive Director and also served as the
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the
Group since 22 May 2017. She is primarily responsible for
the overall management of the business operation as well as
financial planning of operations of the Group.

Ms. Zhao obtained a Diploma in Corporate Finance and
Accounting from Anyang City Accounting School* ([ ™ BF
FER)in July 1992. She further completed an Accounting
Program from Henan Province School of Economic* (] =g B 4%
%) (now known as Henan Province University of Economics
and Law* CAIEI RS BUEAAE)) in June 1997 and obtained
the Assistant Accountant* (Bh¥2 & 5t£M) Qualification from the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (FRZE A R H B EE0) in
December 1997.

From December 1992 to July 2001, Ms. Zhao served as a
financial audit assistant, responsible for handling audit work
and preparing financial statements and audited reports, of
Suiping County Audit Firm* GXFEAZFE stEME#5FT), which
is an accounting firm in the PRC. From August 2001 to
September 2009, Ms. Zhao served as a financial audit
assistant, responsible for handling audit work, of Suiping
County Yongxing Joint Audit Firm* GXF R kBB A g5
EMEEF5FR), which is an accounting firm in the PRC. From
October 2009 to April 2014, Ms. Zhao was a finance manager,
responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management, of Zhumadian City Hongyuan Packing Company
Limited* (B BEEREZBEBRAT), which is a company
principally engaged in the sales of cardboards and paper. In
May 2014, she joined our Group as the financial controller of
Tong Tai School, and was responsible for our Group’s financial
management.

ESkEREENAENEEFE (B)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESREREENENEEFE (B)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong, CFA, aged 60, is the non-
executive Director. He served as a Director since 8 June 2018
and was re-designated as a non-executive Director since 19
September 2019. He is primarily responsible for advising on
finance and investor relationship of the Group.

Dr. Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience and
knowledge in corporate finance, corporate governance and
investment in various asset classes, such as fixed income
securities and equities. From October 1995 to April 2000,
Dr. Yeung served as the executive director of Great Wall
Electronic International Limited (now known as EPI (Holdings)
Limited) (Stock code: 689), a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and was
principally engaged in manufacture of consumer electronic
products. He was responsible for corporate planning, business
development, information technology strategy, financing
activities, accounting function and supervision. From April
2000 to January 2010, Dr. Yeung was the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited
(now known as Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited) (Stock
code: 332). He also served as the executive director of the
said company from April 2000 to February 2010. The said
company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and was previously engaged in investment holding. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in design, manufacture
and sales of electronic products and sales of motorcycle parts.
He oversaw the finance and accounting, legal affairs, human
resources, general administration, information technology
and corporate planning and development. From January
2014 to July 2014, Dr. Yeung was an adviser to China
Internet and its subsidiaries. Since July 2014, he has served
as the chief executive officer of China Internet, the holding
company of Greater Sino. China Internet is principally engaged
in investment in equity securities and debt securities. He
was responsible for the day-to-day management, strategic
planning and the execution of the strategic decisions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Dr. Yeung was one of the licensed representatives of
Silverstone Investments Limited, a corporation licensed by
the SFC to carry on Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO for
the period from February 2016 to January 2021. Dr. Yeung is
currently one of the responsible officers of Success Advance
Investments Limited, for Type 9 (asset management) and Type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO
since 1 August 2022. Success Advance Investments Limited is
a corporation licensed to carry on Type 9 (asset management)
and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under
the SFO. He was responsible for investment management
advisory. Since December 2017, Dr. Yeung has been
appointed as the Adjunct Professor of Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law, the PRC.

Dr. Yeung graduated with a Professional Diploma in
Accountancy with distinction from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November
1986. He further obtained a Bachelor degree of Science in
Economics from the University of London, the United Kingdom,
in August 1990, a Master degree of Laws in Corporate and
Financial Law from The University of Hong Kong in November
2007, a Bachelor degree of Law from The Manchester
Metropolitan University, the United Kingdom, in July 2008, a
Master degree of Science in Finance and a Doctor degree of
Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong
in October 2010 and July 2014, respectively.

He was admitted as a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant) in January 1991,
a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in October 1994, an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
in February 2006. Dr. Yeung has served as an executive
committee member of Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council
under the Federation of Hong Kong Industries since July 2015.

Dr. Yeung is a CFA charterholder since February 2021.
Dr. Yeung has become a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since November 2021.

Since 1 August 2015, Dr. Yeung has served as the director of
Greater Sino, a substantial Shareholder.

In January 2021, he was appointed as a pro-bono director
of Manchester Metropolitan University Chapter Hong Kong
Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESREREENENEEFE (B)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wah, aged 48, is an independent non-executive
Director. He served as an independent non-executive Director
since 19 September 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the
Board. Mr. Chan is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and finance. From August 1996 to April 2000,
Mr. Chan worked in W.M. Sum & Co., an accounting firm,
as an auditor and was responsible for performing audit and
taxation assignments. Mr. Chan then joined Arthur Andersen
Hong Kong as an experienced staff accountant in May 2000
and as a senior in September 2001 in the Assurance and
Business Advisory Services Department. From July 2002,
subsequent to the combination of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Ltd. and Arthur Andersen Hong Kong practices, Mr. Chan
was transferred to PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. as a senior
associate, responsible for taking charge of a group of audits.
Mr. Chan left PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. in January 2003
as a senior associate. From February 2003 to August 2007,
Mr. Chan joined Sunray Holdings Limited as a financial
controller and was responsible for taking charge of group
accounting, financial reporting and listing compliance matters.
Sunray Holdings Limited had been listed on the Main Board of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited between
November 2003 and March 2014, principally engaged in
the development, manufacturing and marketing of medical
systems and consumables for the women’s healthcare
market in the PRC. From October 2007 to April 2012, Mr.
Chan served as the financial controller and joint company
secretary of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited where he was
responsible for the financial reporting and company secretarial
matters. Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited has been listed on
the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited since September 2008, whose principal business is
the production and sales of Chinese white wine. From April
2012 to August 2013, Mr. Chan served as an audit manager in
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

S.W. Chan & Co., an accounting firm, and was responsible for
performing audit, taxation and company secretarial services.
Since July 2013, Mr. Chan has served as a director and
practicing certified public accountant at Alliance Ascent CPA
Limited and is responsible for overseeing the development and
operation of the accounting firm.

Mr. Chan graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from The University
of Hong Kong in November 1996 and received the Master
of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2011.

Mr. Chan was admitted as a member and was further admitted
as a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in October 1999 and October 2004 respectively.
Mr. Chan was admitted as an associate member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in March 2000.
Subsequently, Mr. Chan was registered as a certified public
accountant (practising) in July 2013. Mr. Chan was also
admitted as an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries in April 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESREREENENEEFE (B)

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent, aged 49, is an independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 March 2023 and is mainly responsible
for providing independent judgement and advising on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct of the Group. Mr. Wan is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Wan obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1996. He was admitted
as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2002. Mr. Wan has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Tian Cheng Holdings
Limited KEEKRBRAT (formerly known as Yue Kan
Holdings Limited #E1ZERABR/AE], Stock code: 02110.
HK) on 1 November 2022. Since May 2022, Mr. Wan has
been serving as company secretary of Zhong Ji Longevity
Science Group Limited. He has been the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Pan Asia Environmental Protection
Group Limited (Stock code: 00556.HK) since 2007. Mr. Wan
has more than 20 years’ experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management.

Mr. Xu Jianpo, aged 48, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 20 April 2023 and is mainly responsible for
providing independent judgement and advising on the issue of
the strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group. Mr. Xu is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Xu completed an undergraduate program in Accountancy
from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics* (o] &g B 4%
) (now known as Henan University of Economics and Law
Com B & BUEARE)) in June 2002. He has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since September 2007. He obtained a Professional and
Technical Personnel Title Certificate of Henan Province* (A
MEEERMASHMEEE)as a senior accountant issued
by Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Henan Province (IR & A W& RM 1t & RFEEE) in December
2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Xu joined Henan Kunzheng Joint Accounting Firm (General
Partnership)* CAIFEHREMES G5t EHEM (EBE%))
(formerly known as Suiping County Yongxing Joint Accounting
Firm (General Partnership)* GX ¥ Bk B & S5t B AT (&
BEE))) in January 2000 as a project manager, responsible
for audit work, and is currently the principal partner. Since
July 2020, he has served as an independent director of Henan
Huigiang New Energy Material Technology Corp., Ltd.* GAIEg
ERMERMEEERMNBRAE), a company currently
applying for listing on the Science and Technology Innovation
Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sun Tao (#475), aged 53, joined the Group as a vice
principal and the head of business department of Tong Tai
School in May 2014. He has been mainly responsible for
overseeing our business operations including the enrollment of
trainees and driving instructor management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sun was employed by
Zhumadian City Motor Transport Company Limited, Suiping
Branch* (BEEMAEHEHERATDEFD2AF)as an
account clerk between September 1991 and June 1998,
and was then promoted to the position of business manager
responsible for overall business operations from June 1998 to
April 2014.

Mr. Sun obtained a Diploma in Statistics from Henan Province
Planning and Statistics School* CAIE & 5T &8|# 12 K2) in
July 1991. Mr. Sun further obtained a Higher Diploma in
Accounting from Henan Province School of Economics* (7]
B B 48 2 %) (now known as Henan Province University of
Economics and Law* (A Fg B & U K 22) in December 1997,
He also obtained the Qualification Certificate of Speciality
and Technology in Road Transport issued by the Ministry of
Personnel of the People’s Republic of China* (F1E A K #
B A ZEEF) in November 2003 and the qualification of National
Motor Vehicle level Il Driving Instructor* (& Bl — 4k 1 h e 2 &
¥4k 8)in September 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESREREENENEEFE (B)

Mr. Sun was awarded Spring Festival Transportation Advanced
Worker* (F & e T %) by Zhumadian City Motor Transport
Corporation* (5% 55 [E M /SEE#HAR/AF))in March 2006 and
Outstanding Communist* ((BFHHEE S) by Zhumadian City
Motor Transport Corporation (Chinese Communist Party)
Committee* (AHEFEM/SEERHIEABIEZEE)In March
2007.

Mr. Zhang Changling GR&2%8), aged 67, joined the Group
as a vice principal and the head of administration department
of Tong Tai School in September 2014. He has been mainly
responsible for supervising our Group’s general logistics
work and administration work, vehicle maintenance and file
management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked at Suiping
County Waterworks* (& ¥ 8 B2 /K#)as a treasurer,
responsible for financial management, from December 1975
to December 1978. He then worked for Suiping County
Shenzhai Town Finance Office* (&84 LZEER EFR) as a
vice director (8 FTH) between December 1978 and December
1989 mainly responsible for preparation of budget and final
accounts. Mr. Zhang was then transferred to Suiping County
Quyang Road Finance Office* (3 - &4 2 F% 17 18 ¥ =5 55 B B P)
as a director (Fff£) from December 1989 to December 2005
and responsible for business operations management.

Mr. Zhang passed the National Civil Servant Training Course

and was granted a certificate by Personnel Department of
Henan Province* (Al & A E ) in November 1994,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (Z&&), aged 48, is the company
secretary. He served as the company secretary since 22
May 2017 and has been mainly responsible for the company
secretarial and related matters of our Group. Mr. Tsang is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has more than 15 years of experience in
audit and accounting. Mr. Tsang joined Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Business Services Limited as an auditor in October 1999
and left the company as a senior auditor in February 2004.
In March 2004, Mr. Tsang joined Grant Thornton Hong Kong
as a senior in the assurance division and was subsequently
promoted to supervising senior in October 2004 responsible
for supervising the field work staff and reviewing the working
papers. He was further promoted to supervisor in October
2005 and was entrusted with a portfolio of the firm’s clients
and also assisted the audit manager in the review function.
He held the same position when he left the firm in March
2007. From May 2007 to July 2008, Mr. Tsang joined Reyoung
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, as a group financial controller mainly responsible for
the finance and accounting functions of the group companies.
From May 2009 to September 2009, Mr. Tsang was employed
by Luxworld Limited as a financial reporting manager,
responsible for financial reporting functions. From November
2009 to February 2014, Mr. Tsang served as chief financial
officer in Zuoan Fashion Limited, a company previously listed
on the New York Stock Exchange and was responsible for the
finance and accounting functions of the group companies.

From November 2013 to July 2021, Mr. Tsang had served as
an independent non-executive director of Xinhua News Media
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 309). From January 2017 to
August 2018, Mr. Tsang was a company secretary of Swee
Seng Holdings Limited. Since April 2021, Mr. Tsang was
appointed as the company secretary and financial controller
of Micron (International) Group Holdings Limited, and Mr.
Tsang was appointed as the company secretary of RENHENG
Enterprise Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3628) since May
2022 and has been mainly responsible for the company
secretarial and related matters.

Mr. Tsang graduated from The University of Hong Kong in
December 2009 with a Bachelor of Accounting and was
admitted as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 2006.

* For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERG

INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to submit its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of driving
training services through its operating subsidiaries, namely
Shun Da School and Tong Tai School. Details of the principal
activities of the operating subsidiaries are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As required under Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations,
a review on the business, an analysis on the financial
performance of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from pages 5 to 21 of this annual
report. A description of the future development in the business
of the Group is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” from pages 3 to 4 of this annual report. Both of
the above form part of this Report of Directors.

A description and analysis of the principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 and the particulars of important events
affecting the Group since the end of the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out respectively in the paragraphs
headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” and “Events after
Reporting Period” below from pages 128 to 130 and on page
133 of this annual report.
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A discussion on the environmental policies and performance
of the Group and an account of the key relationships of
the Group with its stakeholders, including the employees,
customers and suppliers and others that have a significant
impact on the success of the Company, are set out
respectively in the paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies
and Performance” and “Relationship with Stakeholders” below
on page 132 of this annual report. Further details on the
performance of the Group by reference to the environmental
and social-related key performance indicators and policies, as
well as compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
are provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report from pages 47 to 101 of this annual report.

A discussion on the compliance of the Group with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group is set out in the paragraph headed “Legal and
Compliance” below on page 131 of this annual report. A
further discussion on the corporate governance practices of
the Group is set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 22 to 46 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND SUMMARY

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 142 of this annual
report.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 232 of
this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

On 27 March 2020, the Board has adopted a dividend policy,
pursuant to which, the Company may consider whether to
propose a dividend out of its distributable profits and reserves
and determine the amount of dividend. For further details,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Dividend Policy” under
the Corporate Governance report on page 42 of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Exgws (&)

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately RMB26,000.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AND
DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange at the stock code
1871. The initial public offering comprised the public offering
of 560,000,000 new Shares and the placing of 50,000,000 new
Shares. For further details of the IPO, including, among other
things, the reasons for making the issue of and the issue price
of the Shares, please refer to the Prospectus published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and of
the Company (www.china-oriented.com).

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other shares or debentures
were issued by the Company since the Listing Date and for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares, or that requires the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19
September 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Company to grant options to the employee,
adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customer, partner
or joint-venture partner of the Company or any subsidiary
(including any director of the Company or any subsidiary)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise
engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at the time when
an option is granted to such employee, adviser, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner or any person who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board has contributed or may contribute to the Group
(the “Eligible Participants”) as incentive or reward for their
contribution to the Group to subscribe for the Shares thereby
linking their interest with that of the Group. On and subject
to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and all applicable
statutory requirements, the Board shall be entitled at any time
within 10 years after the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme to make an offer to any Eligible Participants as the
Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe for
such number of Shares as the Board may determine at the
subscription price.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
together with options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes for the time being of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed such number of Shares as equals
10% of the issued share capital of the Company. Any further
grant of share options to any eligible participant in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the other schemes (if any) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue (the “Scheme Mandate Limit") as at 19 September
2019, being the date of passing the resolution by the then
Shareholders through written resolutions approving and
adopting the Share Option Scheme. The Company may seek
approval of its Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time in accordance with the
Listing Rules.
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The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Group if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

Unless approved by the Shareholders in the manner set out
below, the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to
an Eligible Participant would result in the Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to
be granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such Eligible Participant and his/her close
associates (or his/her associates if the Eligible Participant is a
connected person) abstaining from voting.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an
Eligible Participant concerned in respect of all Shares which
are offered to such Eligible Participant when the duplicate
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
Eligible Participant, together with a non-refundable remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company within 21
days from the date of offer or within such time as may be
determined by the Board.
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Any offer may be accepted by an Eligible Participant in
respect of less than the total number of Shares which are
offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot
for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral
multiple thereof.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Company (i) has not granted any share
option under the Share Option Scheme; and (i) does not
have any share options outstanding for issue under the Share
Option Scheme.

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds from the
IPO were approximately HK$108.4 million after deducting
the underwriting fees, the Stock Exchange trading fee, the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong transaction
levy for the new Shares in the Company and the listing
expenses in connection with the Share Offer.
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As at 31 December 2022, a total of approximately HK$37.0 R2022F 128310 » NEBERELI TR
million had been utilised by the Group according to the &MOEEEESHAESHELAI7.0BEBT:
allocation set out hereinbelow:

Utilisation
during the
period from Expected
the Listing Unutilised  timeframe for
Date to amount as at intended use
% of net Net proceeds 31 December 31 December of unutilised
proceeds from IPO 2022 2022 amount
BLmAHE
20224F
ZEN 12A31H #20225 RERZE
FIEME AHBEZ ILER 12B31BZ  XEBRIEN
B8% FERERE BRRERL ABALE TR R R
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Acquisition of a parcel of land U EE— 123133 45.7 49,547 - 49,547 By the end of
December 2023
BE
2023F 128K
Construction of training fields & I5I5H 12.3 13,333 - 13,333 By the end of
December 2023
BE
2023F 128K
Purchase of training vehicles EEaE 9.7 10,517 8,063 2,454 By the end of
December 2023
BE
2023F 128K
Recruitment and training costs ~ $RE2 K& 1404 9.6 10,408 4,305 6,103 By the end of
for 40 new driving instructors ~ HERHGNER December 2023
BE
2023F 128K
Repayment of bank loans EBRIRTER 12.7 13,769 13,769 = =
Working capital and general HEEE R
corporate purposes —RABER 10.0 10,844 10,844 = =
Total st 100.0 108,418 36,981 71,437

The Board does not anticipate any change to the intended use EEEATEHLANIERER BN
of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus. BRIBFEREARSAEMNES-
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, reserves of approximately
RMB44,040,000 were available for distribution to our
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong'
Ms. Zhao Yuxia?

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong?®

Independent Non-Executive Directors

. Cheng Chun Shing*

. Chan Siu Wah®

. Goh Teng Hwee®

. Wan San Fai Vincent’
. Xu Jianpo®

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong was appointed on 22 February 2017 and was
redesignated as an executive Director and was appointed as the
Chairman on 22 May 2017.

Ms. Zhao Yuxia was appointed on 22 May 2017 and was redesignated
as an executive Director and was appointed as the chief executive
officer and the chief financial officer of the Group on 22 May 2017.

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong was appointed on 8 June 2018 and was
redesignated as a non-executive Director on 19 September 2019.

Mr. Cheng Chun Shing was appointed on 19 September 2019 and
resigned on 1 March 2023.

Mr. Chan Siu Wah was appointed on 19 September 2019.

Mr. Goh Teng Hwee was appointed on 19 September 2019 and passed
away on 11 January 2023.

Mr. Wan Sau Fai Vincent was appointed on 1 March 2023.

Mr. Xu Jianpo was appointed on 20 April 2023.
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Articles 84(1) of the Articles of Association provides that
notwithstanding any other provisions in the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong and Ms. Zhao Yuxia shall retire from office by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves to
undergo re-election at the AGM. Articles 83(3) of the Articles
of Association provides that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall
be eligible for re-election at such meeting. As disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 1 March 2023 and 20
April 2023, Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent and Mr. Xu Jianpo are
appointed by the then Board and are accordingly subject to
and will undergo re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
For the biographical details of the Directors who will undergo
re-election, please refer to the section headed “Details of
Directors Proposed for Re-election” in Appendix Il to the AGM
Circular.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, a letter of confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee considered and the Board took the
view that each and every independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

With effect from the Listing Date, service contracts were
entered into between the Company and each of the executive
Directors. Letters of appointment were also entered into
between the Company and each of the non-executive Director
and the independent non-executive Directors.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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For further details including, among other things, the principal
terms and the names of the Directors having material interest
in such service contracts and letters of appointment, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Service Contracts and
Letters of Appointment with Directors” under the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 26 to 27 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts by which any person undertook the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company existed or was entered into between
the Company and any person who is not a Director or not
engaged in the full-time employment of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director and
the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2022 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN
THE COMPANY AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (OR THEIR SUBSIDIARIES)

Furthermore, no contracts of significance between the
Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and a Controlling
Shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries), or contracts of
significance for the provision of services to the Company (or
any of its subsidiaries) by a Controlling Shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) were entered into as at 31 December 2022 or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which was recorded by the Company in its register
of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short position
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise should be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

() Long position in Shares

Capacity/nature

Number of Shares
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() RITHNEFE

Percentage of

Name of interest held/interested shareholding
FR¥E A

) B #mtE EmRROEE FRESHL

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Interest in a controlled 206,400,000 51.6%
corporation (Note 1)

RS NREGEENER 206,400,000 51.6%
(FfysE1)

Note: BIsE -

1. The Shares are registered in the name of Alpha Leap, the entire 1. ZERMHIBOUERZLEZL MESIBE

issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong.
Accordingly, Mr. Qi is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Alpha Leap for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

(ii) Long position in the shares of associated corporation

Name of
associated

Capacity/nature

BITRABTARSTEES - FIt - RIBE
5 R ARG ARG EXVED > T R E MR DI E R
FIfAEBRNPER B

(i) RAEBEERONGEE

Percentage of
shareholding in

Number of the associated

Name of director corporation of interest share(s) held corporation
T AR Bk A B 1Y
SR MR E L E R B/ fEamtE Frisizin 8B FREaL
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 1 100%
TTRPEE Eli EnEBEA
BRERERERAE o« “ZT-"FFRW
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) will have interests or short positions in Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who will be directly
or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the issued shares
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries:

() Long position in Shares

FERRN IR KRAER ARG S
MEmRXE

R2022F 128310 ' IBREEFHA > T3
AT GEEEHARTRBTEHAS) &
RO SAEBRNEEREES NS
BB EXVERFE 2R3N 2 & X B R 2
NE KRBT EN R RE ; HE
EABEBEEENGEANTREMABE T T
RAEARBHEFTRARBABKREAE L
REMNETAERNRAZ BETRMOEE
10%3 U =R -

() RIZEVEFE

Number of

Capacity/nature Shares Percentage of

Name of interest held/interested shareholding
Frfs BB

e, LB B/ HmtE R #E FREaL
Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 206,400,000 51.60%
E): BmEAA 206,400,000 51.60%
Ms. Gao Dongju (Note 1) Spouse interest 206,400,000 51.60%
BEREL (M) [ 206,400,000 51.60%
Cosmic Hero Beneficial owner 39,600,000 9.9%
1 BmEAA 39,600,000 9.9%
Mr. Ling Wai Leung (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 39,600,000 9.9%
ERRELE (HiE2) KR EGDEE R 39,600,000 9.9%
Ms. Hui Ching Ping (Note 3) Spouse interest 39,600,000 9.9%
FEE Lt (MEE3) R 39,600,000 9.9%
Great Sino Beneficial owner 42,000,000 10.50%
= BmBEAA 42,000,000 10.50%
Ample Star (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 10.50%
wE (524) KR EE R 42,000,000 10.50%
China Internet (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 10.50%
hE B K (ffsEa) KR EGEE R 42,000,000 10.50%
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Notes:

1. Ms. Gao Dongju is the spouse of Mr. Qi Xiangzhong. She is deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Qi is interested in under Part XV
of the SFO.

2. The Shares are registered in the name of Cosmic Hero, the entire issued
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Ling Wai Leung. Accordingly, Mr.
Ling is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Cosmic Hero
for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

3. Ms. Hui Ching Ping is the spouse of Mr. Ling Wai Leung. She is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Ling is interested in under
Part XV of the SFO.

4. The Shares are registered in the name of Greater Sino, the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Ample Star, which is in turn
owned by China Internet. Accordingly, Ample Star and China Internet
are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Greater Sino is
interested under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interest or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the
register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Neither the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their offices
(provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
such Directors).

Directors and officers insurance are currently in force and
in place to protect the Directors and/or the directors of its
associated company against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Directors. Permitted
indemnity provisions are set out in such liability insurance.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has any interests in any business which,
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

The Directors has confirmed that other than business of the
Group, none of the Directors holds any interest in business
which directly or indirectly competes or is likely to compete
with the business of the Group.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emolument packages of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board with
reference to the recommendations given by the Remuneration
Committee, and having regard to, among other things, the
operating results of the Group, performance of individual
Directors and senior management and comparable market
statistics.

For further details in respect of the policy on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Policy on the Remuneration of Directors
and Senior Management” under the Corporate Governance
Report on page 38 of this annual report.

For further details on the emoluments of the Directors and
the five highest-paid individual of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022, please refer to Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other payments have been
made or are payable, during the year ended 31 December
2022, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

The Group participates in a state-managed defined
contribution retirement scheme organised by the relevant local
governmental authority in the PRC. The Group is required to
make monthly contributions to the retirement scheme for the
eligible employees at specified percentage of the payroll and
the local governmental authority is responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees upon their retirement.

No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) were used to reduce the existing level
of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 to reduce future years’
contributions.
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For further details, please refer to Note 4(q) to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The financial condition, results of operations, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Hereinbelow is a list of principal risks and
uncertainties identified by the Board with the understanding
that the list is by no means exhaustive or comprehensive,
and there might be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Company
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

1. Business risks: The revenue and profits of the Group
are greatly affected by the level of course enrollment and
the fees that the Group is able to charge. Throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was under
pressure to downward adjust the course fees for our
driving courses of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles
because of keen competition following the outbreak of
Covid-19 pandemic, putting further pressure on both
Tong Tai School and Shun Da School in adjusting course
fees to capture market shares and affected by the
decrease in the actual number of training hours provided
by the Group due to travel restriction occasionally in force
in Suiping County, Zhumadian City, caused by sporadic
outbreaks of COVID-19 cases. If the Group is unable to
adjust the level of course fees for driving courses and
increase the level of course enrollment and actual number
of training hours in the future, the gross profit margin
for driving training services business may continue to
decrease.
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Operation risks: Operating risks refers to the risks
resulting from inadequate internal processes and the
risks resulting from human errors in internal operations
or other reasons. In order to manage these risks, the
Company has established an internal control system
so as to minimise the adverse effects of such risks on
the Company. However, failure to maintain an adequate
internal control system may potentially lead to financial
loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

For further details in respect of the internal control and
risk management system of the Company, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control System” under the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 39 to 41 of this annual report.

Legal and regulatory risks: All of our operations are
conducted in the PRC and are governed by the PRC
laws, regulations and rules. The PRC legal system is a
civil law system based on written statutes, and prior court
decisions can only be cited as reference and have limited
precedential value. As many of these laws, regulations
and rules are relatively new, and the published court
decisions are scarce and of non-binding nature, the
interpretation and enforcement of the laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC may involve uncertainties and
may not be consistent or predicable as in other more
developed jurisdictions. Furthermore, since the Shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date,
more effort is incurred to comply with the applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong, including but not limited to
those relating to securities transaction, listing, disclosure
and corporate governance. Any litigation or regulatory
enforcement action in the PRC or Hong Kong could
result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and
management attention.

For further details in respect of the compliance with laws
and regulations and the corporate governance practices
of the Company, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Legal and Compliance” below on page 131 of this
annual report, and the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 22 to 46 of this annual report.
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4. Financial risks: The business and operation of the
Group are exposed to financial risks on foreign currency,
credit, liquidity and interest rate.

For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 5 to
21 of this annual report, and Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In response to the aforesaid potential risks and
uncertainties, the Board will continue to implement and
maintain internal control and strategies to adapt itself to
cope with such risks and changes. The Board will also
develop and review strategies, policies and guidelines
on risk control from time to time to enable the Group
to monitor closely and formulate business strategies to
respond to risk promptly and effectively.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, approximately
39.2% of the total purchase of the Group were attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group, and approximately 87.7% of
the total purchase of the Group were attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group.

Due to the nature of our business, there were no customers
accounted for more than 5% of the revenue of the Group and
the five largest customers of the Group did not account for
more than 30% of the revenue of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any of the Shareholders
holding more than 5% of the Shares have any interest in any of
the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE

Legal proceedings

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group was not engaged in any litigation, arbitration,
administrative proceedings or claim of material importance
pending or threatened by or against the Group, which could
have a material adverse effect on the financial position and
results of operations of the Group.

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group is not
aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the
principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as fundamental guidelines for the corporate governance
practices of the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

For further details of the corporate governance practice of the
Company, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 22 to 46 of this annual report.

Compliance with the Model Code

For details of compliance with the Model Code, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Securities Transactions”
under the Corporate Governance Report on page 22 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Due to the nature of our business, our operational activities
do not directly generate industrial pollutants, and we did
not directly incur any cost of compliance with applicable
environmental protection rules and regulations.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group did not receive any complaints from any other
parties concerning any environmental protection issues, nor
did the Group experience any material environmental incidents
arising from its operations.

For the details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report from pages 47 to 101 of this annual
report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that a good relationship with its
employees, customers and business partners are keys to
achieve its long-term goals. The Group has been striving
to establish and maintain an effective communication
channel with its employees, providing quality services for
its customers, collaborating with business partners and
supporting the community.

For further details in respect of the relationships of the
Group with the stakeholders and how the Group has been
responding to stakeholders’ concerns, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns”
under the Environmental, Social and Governance Report from
pages 53 to 55 of this annual report.
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DATE OF THE AGM AND BOOK CLOSURE
PERIOD

The AGM will be held on Friday, 30 June 2023. The notice of
the AGM, together with the AGM circular and the proxy form
will be published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.china-oriented.com) and dispatched in due course in
the manner as required by the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws and regulations.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 23 June 2023 to Friday, 30 June 2023, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend the AGM, during which period no
transfers of Shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend
the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 June 2023.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

Shareholders who are unsure about the taxation implications
of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the Shares, are suggested
to consult an expert.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2022 which would materially affect the operating and financial
performance of the Group as of the date of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 on 30 March 2023, being the date on which
the audited annual results of the Group were published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For further information in respect of, among other things,
the composition of and the work performed by the Audit
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Board
Committees — Audit Committee” under the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 31 to 33 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 have been audited by Messrs.
Moore Stephens CPA Limited. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
the re-appointment of Moore Stephens CPA Limited as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

27 April 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Oriented International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Oriented International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 142 to 231, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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B ZHBEMEREE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTER AR ESTEIE

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional FRAEEtFIESRIEBEESMNEEHE
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the FRAHRAFELRSHBZRENESNRE
consolidated financial statements of the current year. This BN EIE ZEETESHIEEES
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the HMBEHREKEHEEEERRERE - EELG
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming Fh&ZEBIREEBNER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on this matter.

Recognition of revenue from driving training services

ST R B R Sl AR TS UL A

Refer to Notes 4(m) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
55 2 Bk e I B # A M 5 4(m) K6
Key audit matter

HEEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENMAHRAREFFTEETERE

We identified the recognition of revenue from Our procedures in relation to the recognition of
driving training services as a key audit matter due revenue from driving training services included:

to the significance of the amount of revenue to BEMERRKBEERHZIRBZWANERE
the consolidated financial statements as a whole #& :

and the large number of customers as the Group

operates two driving schools in Zhumadian City,
Henan Province, the People’s Republic of China.
mr EEERPEARANBEAEmEHEEHE
EMMERSERERZEXR > BERIEINRB WA S
REMBRREEMEBEEN ALEEFRERE
AR AT AR Tt R
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Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
revenue recognition policy (including
forfeiture and refund) and key controls over
revenue recognition;

T BEEMKHAESEEER (8RR
RIB) R SRR RS IE S

Evaluating the accuracy of revenue
recognised based on the output method
by checking their computation on a sample
basis;

BAHEREHSESER  TEERBLE
PSSR A R ZEFE S

Inspecting to customers’ files, on a
sample basis, checking the corresponding
supporting documents, including but not
limited to customers’ identification card,
driving license, agreements with customers,
registration forms, attendance records and
payment receipts; and

HEERERER REEREENRmEEIAE
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Recognition of revenue from driving training services

HE S B A AR WA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BUZBERESE (B)

FEEsT=1E (8)

Refer to Notes 4(m) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements

58 2R 5 R B R M 2 4(m) K& 6
Key audit matter

FHEESEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNEANMAHAREAFTRETRE

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises driving
training service income which is derived from
offering packaged driving courses for preparation
for driving tests to large number of customers and
during the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recognised approximately RMB47,734,000
of revenue from these driving training services. As
set out in Note 4(m) to the consolidated financial
statements, the revenue recognition is based on
output method by measuring the training hours
provided for the customer relative to the total
training hours promised under the contract.
BEEENRG T EOEARETREFEREZAM
RUBHIFIEBZEREFME LR R IF RS K
AN UK E2022F12A31BILEFE > E5£EME
Pz E R BIE AR WAL AR 1E47,734,0007T °
MRS BWRRMFTAM)PIE > Wk ERE
Hi% BRANAENAE SR EERMTE
P By EFI R o

Assessing the accuracy of the Group’s
record of training hours provided for
customers during the year by matching
them, on a sample basis, with driving
training records certified by the relevant
government body.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine the matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and is therefore the key audit
matter. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ngai Yan
Practising Certificate Number: PO7422

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
raiEmREMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE2022512331HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETT ARET T
Revenue Y & 6 47,734 67,151
Cost of services rendered B AR A A& (36,433) (44,488)
Gross profit EH 11,301 22,663
Other income and losses, net HMug A K548 (F%8) 8 1,602 2,595
Reversal of allowance for expected ~HthfEWFIBTEEAE BB HE
credit loss on other receivables By (o] - 40
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAS (3,431) (3,027)
Administrative expenses THEHR (15,130) (16,764)
Finance costs MBER 9 (4,588) (3,894)
(Loss)/profit before income tax  FRFFS#R AT (B548) /& #) 10 (10,246) 1,613
Income tax credit/(expense) FTiEMiEe/ (BR) 11 1,579 (5,063)
Loss and total comprehensive  ZAFEEABRGEFEEGER
loss for the year attributable to 2 EE5EALE
the owners of the Company (8,667) (3,450)
Loss per share attributable to KTRAFEEAELEREE
the owners of the Company
- Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAKEE (ARED) 14 (2.17) (0.86)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMTINRR

At 31 December 2022 F22022%12H831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET ARETT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BERRE 15 72,735 82,113
Right-of-use assets FHRAREE 16 46,938 46,644
Intangible assets mEEE 17 - -
Deposits paid for construction in MERLIREZ MRS 18
progress 1,739 1,739
Prepayment paid for property, plant  FE¥1% B E Kk B 21K 18
and equipment A RIE 720 1,080
122,132 ' SjPS 76
Current assets mEEE
Trade and other receivables, deposits B 7 R EtEWIE & K& 18
and prepayments AT RIE 770 2,997
Bank balances and cash RITHEHKRIRE 19 182,326 175,242
183,096 178,239
Current liabilities pEI=NE
Trade and other payables and BEINREMEMNRIERESER 200
accruals 17,426 17,200
Contract liabilities EHaE 20(b) 23,257 30,463
Tax liabilities M\E&RE 1,432 3,073
Lease liabilities HE&R 21 1,130 962
Borrowings (i 22 55,230 32,750
98,475 84,448
Net current assets MEHEEFRE 84,621 93,791
Total assets less current liabilities 42 & i 81 & & 206,753 225,367
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
fRE MBI IR (&)

At 31 December 2022 1320224128 31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

iy 55 AREFT ARETT

Non-current liabilities JERENEE

Lease liabilities HESE 21 2,619 1,298

Borrowings R 22 - 9,000

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBARE 23 6,122 8,390
8,741 18,688

Net assets BEEE 198,012 206,679

EQUITY -

Equity attributable to owners of AT HEE AREG#EZ

the Company

Share capital %N 24 3,608 3,608

Reserves ] 25 194,404 203,071

Total equity R 198,012 206,679

The consolidated financial statements on pages 142 to 231 E R FE142E231EM S HRERL
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of F 202353830 H #H / R 3% #E I AR
directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: UTEEARBZETURIE .

Qi Xiangzhong Zhao Yuxia
FTE A HHEE
Director Director
EE EE

144 China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEaEmEER

Attributable to the owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;E20226FE12831HIEEE

FATER AL
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
g2 R iEE B EEGE RERF Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT AR®BTR ARETRT ARETRT ARBTR
(Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(HFzko4) (KFz¥25) (Ff5£25) (PifzE25)
At 1 January 2021 120211 B1H 3,608 105,636 22,000 10,995 67,890 210,129
Loss and total comprehensive EE BB M2 EEEEE
loss for the year - - - - (3,450) (3,450)
Appropriation to statutory BEATHE
reserve - - - 5) 5) =
At 31 December 2021 and 12021412531 H k2022
1 January 2022 F181H 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 64,435 206,679
Loss and total comprehensive 518 K& 2 @5 4858
loss for the year - - - - (8,667) (8,667)
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 55,768 198,012
BRERERERAE o« “ZT-"FFRW
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE2022512331HIEFE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B oE ARETT ARET T
Cash flows from operating RETBEENRERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax bRETEMAT (B51B) /& F) (10,246) 1,613
Adjustments for: AR
Interest income F BURA 8 (609) (657)
Loss on disposal of property, HEVE -BERRERSIR 8
plant and equipment 177 28
Finance costs HEER 9 4,588 3,894
Depreciation of property, plant ME BB MR ENITE 10
and equipment 10,149 10,350
Depreciation of right-of-use FHEEEZITE 10
assets 2,500 2,318
Reversal of allowance for HiEWEIBTEREEEE
expected credit loss on other BENED
receivables - (40)
Operating cash flows before SEETEHNKERERE
movements in working capital 6,559 17,506
Decrease in trade and other B REMERGIE BE K
receivables, deposits and AN RERD
prepayments 2,587 2,539
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B REMENREBRESER
other payables and accruals #m,/ R 226 (3,219)
Decrease in contract liabilities anadERb (7,206) (4,348)
Cash generated from operations KEFFSHE 2,166 12,478
Income tax paid BIRER (2,330) (3,488)
Net cash (used in)/generated REEE (R /PSR 35
from operating activities (164) 8,990
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

HFeRERER(B)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Cash flows from investing REZSREBRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEVWE MENRE
equipment (1,054) (4,313)
Repayment from a director —REEREN - 2,283
Interest received BUWFH B 609 657
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BE k&R EFTESHIE
plant and equipment 106 188
Net cash used in investing RETHFFAREEE
activities (339) (1,189)
Cash flows from financing REFHFFRRERE
activities
New borrowings raised MEEMEW 46,230 41,750
Repayment of borrowings BEER (32,750) (36,800)
Interest paid on borrowings BB (4,452) (3,655)
Repayment of lease liabilities — BEEHEAG—FE
principal (1,305) (1,207)
Repayment of lease liabilities - EERHEREFE
interest (136) (239)
Net cash generated from/ MEEEFRE (FTE) RAEP2EE
(used in) financing activities 7,587 (151)
Net increase in cash and cash RERFESEEBYIEMBE
equivalents 7,084 7,654
Cash and cash equivalents FREREEEBM
at the beginning of the year 175,242 167,588
Cash and cash equivalents FRRERREEEGM
at the end of the year 182,326 175,242
BHERERBRAT o« “EZFEFIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE T ERARMYEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE2022512331HIEFE

GENERAL

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 February
2017 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company is set out in the
section headed “Corporate Information” of the annual
report issued by the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Alpha Leap Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is wholly-owned
by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (“Mr. Qi”), who is also an executive
director of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
29. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the currency of the
primary economic environment of all the group entities’
operations (the functional currency of group entities).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs

(@) Application of amendments to HKFRSs

effective from 1 January 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time,the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant and
mandatorily effective for the period beginning on
1 January 2022 for the preparation of the Group’s

consolidated financial statement:

Amendments to

HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment
HKAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended

Use
Amendments to

HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle

In addition, the Group has adopted the Amendments
to AG5 (Revised) — Merge Accounting for Common

Control Combination.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and
AG5 in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

IR 5] RAEMETT B M
BISEL (B)
(b) BB R 4 B0 3T R A

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

BEAUMBRESENF7HR
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
BHEMBER G ZER]
F10H/REB G5
#ERI 55285k (1BET 4)
Amendments to HKAS 1

ARG ERE1%
(EET %)

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

SRR ENF IR
SRV BEREEREE
R ZEoSE (BT 4S)

Amendments to HKAS 8

HAE G ERF8E
(ST )

EIERMBHRSER

AERTEREFEAUTER
M EEREMBIFET REIEST

BBMBREER

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments

R &N REREE]

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

KREEZHRHBERABRNAE AR ZENE
EHETEA

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

BEIBSMNEIERE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

EEERLEEE

mhERERARAE

on or after
RUTHER
ZERBNEE
HAR £ 3K

1 January 2023

2023F181H
To be determined

N

=\

T RE

1 January 2024
2024%F1H1H

1 January 2023

2023F181H

1 January 2023
2023FE1HA1H

s TETTHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JAT =S
Jg i = |

Bt #5 ¥R M 5E (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. i AT R&EETIEHHB

HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but (b) BiEMERKREROITRE

not yet effective

Amendments to HKAS 12

BAGTERIE1258
(BT &)

Amendments to HKAS 1

BAEGSERAE15
(CREN,

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BAMBIREERE165%
(BT &)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

HwEER (R)
BT EBUBREER (&)

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RIXTBHEH
ZERBNEE

HAR 4 %%

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a Single Transaction

HMEBE-RZETNEEKEBHEBNIEIL 2023F181H
MIE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024

s EEZ IFREEE 2024F181H

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024

EBMRCHEHEESE 2024F181H

Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2024

Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

BAREHST MEBRRNET - ERAHBSIBEE 2024F1H1H
(RR1EET) KREZRERNOEHRERN D LE

The directors of the Company are in the progress of KAB)EERENERBZENG]

assessing the impact to the Group’s consolidated RESTEBUBREERNHAE

financial performance and position when it adopts BaREaMBEREMMIENEE.

these new and amendments to HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (l.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:—-

° the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any investment retained and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) are stated at cost, less
provisions for depreciation and impairment losses, if
any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the item has been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the
consolidated profit or loss in the year in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the item, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of the item. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is sold, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the consolidated
financial statements and any gain or loss resulting
from the disposal, being the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, is included in the consolidated profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. E K25t HE (88

(continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

b) ME-BERKBEURITE

(continued)

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the estimated economic useful life of the
individual assets, as follows:—

Buildings Over the shorter of lease term
or 5% per annum

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of lease term
or 5% to 20% per annum

Equipment 20% per annum

Furniture and fixtures 20% per annum

Office equipment 20% to 33.33% per annum
Motor vehicles 12.5% per annum

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Intangible assets

Software acquired separately and with finite
useful live are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

The Group’s intangible assets have finite useful lives.
All intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets), the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the value in use of the asset
or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the consolidated profit or loss in the
period in which it arises
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets are added to the fair value of the financial
assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the
consolidated profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income
if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 (Revised) Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables and other receivables, deposits,
amount due from a director of the Company and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

For trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, and
contract assets, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECL. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The
Group has applied loss rates which are reference
to the default rates from international crediting
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
G S R M BE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VA=RIEAN
7 =

MBHRRWE (])

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; or

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data and adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

4. EXREEER (B8)

() ERMEE (B
EHEERE (B)
(iv) MHE T

v)

EEEMBTXSHTF
ABREMN BIESE
BRUK[E] B9 T E = B (B0
REHFEBEERNEA
RERERF HTE 7B
MIBEMS > S B A
BEWE URRELE
mE) > AEBRTHMIEE
RMEE CHMENERE
£ 5 BT AR 15 2= 55 B B9 R
[O] 72 Fr B M 52 ) 1T 0 £
BEBRTERERER
B EMRERIEERE
m ST o

FRHIIE B 1RBY 5 B R
E
BHEEBEENSESD
BOAMEKR EBHNEIEX

(AMENRNBEEE)
RENRBEBENREH-
FHENERRENES
BENKBEEBEHE
WIZAIEMEER AR
HEEmIBZ G kIR
EREMB RN
HILRBEMEZBEE
MR REE °

—iRMmE RHEEER
HBBEENENEIEER
WArEENRERE A
AEBERSWEBNFRA
REME R IB D
BENBERENRITR) =
BIRVZEER

FMEWRATSREREE
AUEREAREE  HHIR
EERENEMEEK
Sho FEEE R T R B UL
AR %/ E ER #
PR A5 H ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax from the proceeds.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities (other
than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement
(continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net

of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables and other payables and accruals,

liabilities and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as lessee
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

4. EXRGEER (@)

(i)

APERZERERAT o

HE

THEHNEFE
HENRRERAEMAE T E—
BB B 2  m] 58 Bl B EE 2 R
RN AIZENEEENE
SHE

MERERBERASN 2B
BIIRREXEFGHEENS
WME > AEBREEBME
WEERB165EIN L BT
AR (@A) NE
ZIGENESAEERES
HE - FRIFEERBELSAIR
R ARt BRI & EH T Z

s A
él:l:éﬁ\ °

FEEEZBE-A

HEER

REERKA  AEBERZ
AR AMHEENRBIRERE
RARFTEHEERE - RNEEH
ENRPRER  HEERH
NEFRIEBREZMETE
AlxEEERAREERKA

SEEE TGRS

TETTEER

169



170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
() Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
The lease payments include:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

° the amount expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. EXRGEER (@)

(continued)

(i)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the estimated economic useful life of the
individual assets, as follows:—

Leasehold lands
Leased premise
Motor vehicles

2.50% to 20% per annum
17.91% per annum
12.50% per annum

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-alone
price for the increase in scope and any
appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances
and cash and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

U]

(m)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control
of the services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a service (or
a bundle of services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAZHEE (&)
(continued)
(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(m) EREHWE (B)

(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point of time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Contracts with multiple performance
obligations (including allocation of transaction
price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised
service separately to a customer. If stand-alone
selling price is not directly observable, the Group
estimates it using appropriate techniques such
that the transaction price ultimately allocated to
any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date, driving training service contracts
in which the Group bills a fixed amount of service
provided, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAZHEE (&)
(continued)
(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(m) EREHWE (B)

(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (continued)

Specifically, for driving training service income of
which the control of services is transferred over
time, the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation is measured based on
the direct measurement of training hours provided
by the Group to the customers relative to the total
training hours promised under the contracts.

Payments are typically received from customers
in advance of revenue recognition and they are
presented as contract liabilities under current
liabilities. Customers may not exercise all the
contractual rights of the prepaid driving course upon
expiry of the service period, and such unutilised
portion are referred to as breakage. If an entity
expects to be entitled to the breakage amount in
a contract liability, the entity shall recognise the
expected breakage amount as revenue in proportion
to the pattern of rights exercised by the customer.
If an entity does not expect to be entitled to a
breakage amount, the entity shall recognise the
expected breakage amount as revenue when the
likelihood of the customer exercising its remaining
rights becomes remote. The Group considered the
breakage arising from the prepaid driving course
is insignificant, and the unutilised portion of the
prepaid driving course is recognised in the profit or
loss upon expiry of the service period.

A refund liability is recognised if the entity expects
to refund some or all of that consideration to the
customers, which is measured at the amount of
consideration received for which the entity does not
expect to be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax represents the sum of current and
deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except.—

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements
to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the year in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(a)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable. Such grants are presented
under other income and losses, net.

Other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are required to participate in the central
defined contribution pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme
as specified by the local municipal government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(g) Other employee benefits (continued)

(r)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period

Employee long service payment

The provision for long service payment is provided
based on the employees’ basic salaries and their
respective length of service in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations in their respective
countries of employment.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s

parent.

OR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VA=RIEAN
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(r) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(M

(i

(i)

(vii)

(i)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entities and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statement,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the executive directors of the Company
for the purpose of allocating resources to and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the directors of
the Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
the revision and future years if the revision affects both
current and future years.

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
twelve months.

EHARERENTER

/4N

RERAEEN S EBR (R a4
SO B> KRB EFRHREEE
HithmRREENEERABNIRE
BEfFH s R - & F b5t &I\
FRRGDERBEERERAEMES
HENAR BRERIERZST
fhstBE&Ee

FEBFERSNZF A5t RBRER
R MH G GENETEREE
TESINEE IIRNZFERES
R ES] L EBRI R AREKRFE  {
PAES] e AR IR F EFERD o

UTRBERARNEZREK > R
WS R MG S AR E E R HE A
FERR RASEHRR+T @R
WEEKBRINREEENEKRSH

o

BRERERERAT o T _HFER

185



186

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
Estimated useful lives

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, generally from 3 to 20 years or over the shorter of
the lease terms (2021: 3 to 20 years or over the shorter

of the lease terms).

The leasehold lands and building recognised as right-of-
use assets are depreciated on straight-line basis over the
lease terms (2021: over the lease terms), whereas the
motor vehicles recognised as right-of-use assets that the
Group expects to exercise purchase options with minimal
exercise price and the related assets are depreciated over

their useful lives (i.e. 8 years (2021: 8 years)).

The estimated useful lives that the Group depreciates the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the assets. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result
in a change in useful lives and therefore depreciation and

impairment losses in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belong.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
approximately RMB72,735,000 (2021: RMB82,113,000)
(Note 15) and approximately RMB46,938,000 (2021:
RMB46,644,000) (Note 16) respectively.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgement and estimates is required in
determining the amount of the provision for taxation and
the timing of payment of the related taxation. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax provisions and deferred tax provisions in the periods
in which such determination are made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

6. REVENUE 6.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the income from provision of driving training services and
is recognised on an over time basis. Revenue recognised
during the year is as follows:

Wi &=

Wik R EEEXETR) EER
AN AR F5 PG WA > I B8 B I HE 72
FESD o M EFE A FERAIR a0 T

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ABRTT ARETT

Driving training service income SR E T ON
Standard course IEAERE
Premium course SHES
Additional training fees REIMEBINE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

The Group is principally engaged in provision of driving
training services. For the purposes of assessing
performance and allocating resources, the Group’s
operation is regarded as one reportable and operating
segment which is provision of driving training services.
The executive directors of the Company review the profit
or loss for the year of the Group as a whole. Accordingly,
no segmental analysis is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as the
Group’s revenue is all derived from the PRC based on the
location of services provided and all of the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the PRC by physical location
of assets.

Information about major customers

The Group offers packaged driving courses for
preparation for driving tests to large number of individual
customers. No individual customer accounted for over
10% of the Group’s total revenue during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

8. OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET 8. HhWr ARE51E > /358
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Income from issuance of certificate of REBEBERRDEBEMERA
qualification validation 546 1,270
Interest income FEUWA 609 657
Value-added tax refund BERER 122 606
Income on expiry of driving courses BERUERFREDH
withdrawn by trainees PRIZWA 229 252
Government grants (Note) BUN B (M5E) 140 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ {HEY ¥ BE KR EEE
equipment (177) (28)
Exchange loss, net ERE1E F (82) (196)
Others HAth 215 34
1,602 2,595

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received
government grants amounting to RMB140,000 from Municipal
Bureau of Commerce and the Municipal Bureau of Finance of
Suiping to support the stable development of foreign-invested
enterprises. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to these subsidies.

Mist @ BE2022F12B31HIEFE > A&
BRTHEHRRMER WA
REFIHIBRECERTEERNE
5 4 B A R #5140,0007T © 3% % 45 BY
1R 2 Y S SR JE R B RO IR R B EL A
BFE-

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MFEEH
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT
Interest on bank loans IRITERNAE 4,452 3,655
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16) HESENFHE (f:E16) 136 239
4,588 3,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10.BRFr18# A1 (E518) & F
BREFISHAT (B518) /R A b

(Loss)/profit before income tax has been arrived at after
charging:

UTEBRBEN
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Directors’ remuneration (Note 12) (Note a) EE %8l (:E12) (Mizta)

Other staff costs (Note a) HETaA (fizta)
— Salaries and other allowances — e R EMER
— Retirement benefit scheme —BIKENE B R (5Ec)

contributions (Note c)

Auditor’s remuneration 1% 206 B

Depreciation of: (Note b) e - (MysEb)

— Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) —#)% « B = K z& 8 (M45E15)
- Right-of-use assets (Note 16) —FREEE (F5316)
Donations g

Gasoline expenses MBS

Notes:

(a) Total directors’ remuneration and other staff costs of
approximately RMB12,804,000 (2021: RMB18,027,00),
RMB1,680,000 (2021: RMB1,483,000) and RMB5,280,000
(2021: RMB5,121,000) have been charged to cost of services
rendered, selling and marketing expenses and administrative
expenses, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022.

(o)  Total depreciation of approximately RMB10,787,000 (2021:
RMB10,950,000), RMB32,000 (2021: RMB29,000) and
RMB1,830,000 (2021: RMB1,689,000) have been charged to
cost of services rendered, selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses, respectively for the year ended 31
December 2022.

() As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 1. FR1G1R (%) &

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT") B XFER (HXEMRER))
— Current year —AREE - 3,007

— Under/(over)-provision in prior years - BEFEREFIR/

(EBRETE ) 689 (2,620)
689 387
Deferred tax (Note 23) RIEFRIE (M95E23) (2,268) 4,676
(1,579) 5,063

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdiction in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax under these jurisdictions during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
during the year ended 31 December 2022 as the Group
does not have income which arises in, or derived from,
Hong Kong (2021: Nil).

The PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25%
(2021: 25%) on the taxable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC during the year ended 31
December 2022.

FEBAREREENELEBNR
BREEREARFZMKREERE
Bl A& B E A B PT ISR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

11.INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
(continued)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be
reconciled to the (loss)/profit before income tax per

1. FriSH (B%R) &R (@)

FEPEKR ER) ' ERARSHE
m R H 2 W R A BRPR S IR AT

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other (B518) S FEELT .
comprehensive income as follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSHAT (B51B) /mF (10,246) 1,613
Tax at the domestic tax rate at 25% BRI E25% (20214 : 25%)
(2021: 25%) SFEMRIE (2,562) 403
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR B HIIRFE T 2E
tax purpose 294 1,878
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFEREBLRARE/ (BEERB) 689 (2,620)
Under-provision of deferred tax liabilities EEIRIBE BEEE R E - 5,402
(1,579) 5,063

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained earnings
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB106,607,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB114,047,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERES1THRAEME
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST EFAizEaMEES
PAID EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EFRESITHAEME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the Fre ENREMEEEAE
individuals as the directors and the chief executive of §$7§ZHE§[%TTBU\§W AIA
the Company during the year are as follows: THMEFBIT

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Directors’ fee BEE0E 960 960
Salaries and other allowances e R EAMERS 523 519

Retirement benefit scheme BIREF ST
contributions 32 35
1,515 1,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERESTTHRAEM S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST RAisEaMEEE (18)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEREBESTHRAEMNE (B)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE202512B31BLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Directors fee allowances contributions Total
HEk RKER
E5NE Hith2 HEEEA st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors BTES
Mr. Qi (Note ) TRE () 240 330 31 601
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HEEZT 240 193 1 434
Non-executive director FHTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong mEAREL 120 - - 120
600 523 32 1,155
Independent non-executive directors B IFNTES
Mr. Chan Siu Wah B/NERE 120 - - 120
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing (Note i) BEF LT (eti) 120 - - 120
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee (Note ii) REREE (5Tl 120 - - 120
360 - - 360
Total st 960 523 32 1,515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERES1THRAEME

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

kizrEaMEEE (B

EEREEITHRAEME (@)

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021E12831H LEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Directors fee allowances  contributions Total
ek RINEF
EENE =R p= 42 B w5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AR®Tx ARETn AR®Tx
Executive directors 0HE=x
Mr. Qi (Note ) e () 240 331 30 601
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HMEBLT 240 188 5 433
Non-executive director FHNTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong mEART 120 - - 120
600 519 35 1,154
Independent non-executive directors B FH{TEE
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BNELE 120 S = 120
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing (Note i) BEF LT (eti) 120 - - 120
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee (Note ii) REREE (i zTii) 120 - - 120
360 - - 360
Total st 960 519 35 1,514

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group while the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company.

EXFRTBRTESENE LA
REEEEARNBAREERER
E R BRF B & T £ PR
WIERITEFRBIUIFAITE
SHMEA A REFREIEAT
ESHRFME -

BRERERERAT o T _HFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Qi is the chief executive of the Company. The
emoluments shown above is also for his service as chief
executive of the Group.

(i) Resigned on 1 March 2023.

(i)  Passed away on 11 January 2023.

(b) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid individuals included two (2021:
two) directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure in (a) above. The
remuneration of the remaining three (2021: three)

NREFAERSETHRASMNE
kizrEaMEEE (B)

(a) EFRRSTHRAEME (&)

B 5E -

() THRERSTATNITEHAEH-
EXFRRBIB R R REEE
EETBBENRBTHME -

(i)  H2023E3F1HEFHE

(i) 7R2023F1H11HEHE -

(b) EHEEMEES
XN ELERESMEALTE
HEM% (20214F - %) &%
HMES BN EX@IE T
=% (20215F : =) A8H

individuals was as follows: N0 :
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AEREF T
Salaries and other allowances e R HEAMER 1,085 954

Retirement benefit scheme RIKTEH ET B K

contributions 11 11
1,096 965

The number of individuals whose remuneration was

#F T AT sEE BV E R A L

within the following band: Ed=RIN
2022 2021
20224 20214
Nil to Hong Kong Dollar T 1,000,000 75 (& 7))
(“HK$")1,000,000 3 3
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12.

13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERESTTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST RismaiMEEE (B)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(b) Five highest paid employees (continued) (b) ELEEMEES (8)
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the PREFEERRZE AEEHRR
Group to any of the directors of the Company or the HERAEAATAEEN LG EDS
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join FMATEZAEAME /S
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for MAXERHMAREREN
loss of office. None of directors or the five highest RESEABREE - I mE
paid individuals of the Company has waived any FEHE ENATEEI
emoluments during both years. T ESEFMA THRETAH
A o
DIVIDENDS 13. I B
No dividend was paid/declared or proposed for ordinary REE2022F12831HIEFEEW
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31 HIKT /BRI EZIRNT, EIK
December 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed FARANTIZEERKEZRE B
since the end of the reporting period (2021: Nil). EHR R M RN E EH IR E AR 2
(20214 © #®)
LOSS PER SHARE 14. SR E1E
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable KABIEBE ANELSREREETY
to the owners of the Company is based on the following RETY &ESTE .
data:
2022 2021
20224 20214
Loss 518
Loss for the year attributable to the BRI ESRELBENALF
owners of the Company for the BEAEGEFESE ARET
purpose of basic loss per share 7T)
(in RMB’000) (8,667) (3,450)
Number of shares & E
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESREXREENMET
shares for the purpose of basic loss JEEREE
per share 400,000,000 400,000,000

There were no potential ordinary shares in issue for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

APERZERERAT o

B ZE2022F12H31HIEEE > W
ERBEEBITEBIEZSER (20215 :

") o

TETTEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.

YE BB RsE

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
Buildings  improvements Equipment and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HER
BF HE%E & EERE WARE AE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INEL ST ARETR ARBTR AEETFR ARETR NSO NSO
(Note a) (Note b)
(G (R
COST B
At 1 January 2021 20211818 32,735 49,558 10,842 1,009 1,621 24,127 119,892
Additions RE 52 - 640 152 260 3,620 4724
Disposals HE - - - - - (778) (778)
At 31 December 2021 and 20214128318 K
1 January 2022 202F151H 32,787 49,558 11,482 1,161 1,881 26,969 123,838
Additions RE 56 37 340 16 360 245 1,054
Disposals HE - - - - - (2,889) (2,883)
At 31 December 2022 120226128318 32,843 49,595 11,822 1177 2,24 24,331 122,009
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RitE
At 1 January 2021 20211818 5,286 8,596 4,520 557 874 12,104 31,937
Provided for the year (Note 10) FEEE (1:10) 1,559 4,277 1,232 99 292 2,891 10,350
Disposals HE - - - - - (562) (562)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021% 128318 K
1 January 2022 202F181H 6,845 12,873 5,752 656 1,166 14,433 4,725
Provided for the year (Note 10) FREE (1:10) 1,563 4,137 1,460 109 380 2,500 10,149
Disposals HE - - - - - (2,600) (2,600)
At 31 December 2022 1420226128318 8,408 17,010 7212 765 1,546 14,333 49,274
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 1420226128318 24,435 32,585 4,610 412 695 9,098 72,735
At 31 December 2021 120218128318 25,942 36,685 5,730 505 715 12,536 82,113
Notes: Bz

(@) As at 31 December 2022, the Group has pledged certain
buildings with carrying amount of approximately RMB24,123,000
(2021: RMB6,404,000) to a bank to secured certain borrowings
(Notes 22(a)(ii)) and 22(a)(iii).

(b)  The leasehold improvements relate to costs of construction of the
driving training venue which is situated on leasehold land.
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(@) R2022FE12831H  ZEBEBA—X
IRITERIREMELN AR24,123,000
7t (20214 © AR %6,404,00070) B9
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(i) F222(a)(iii) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EFAEEE
Leasehold Leased Motor
lands premise vehicles Total
gL HEmE _E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRE ARBTR ARETT
(Note)
(Ffy =3)
COST W
At 1 January 2021, 31 December ~ 12021E1818
2021 and 1 January 2022 2021128310 &
2022F181H 45,500 126 7,459 53,085
Additions HE - - 2,794 2,794
At 31 December 2022 %2022%12831H 45,500 126 10,253 55,879
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:tirE
At 1 January 2021 P2021E1818 2,625 45 1,453 4,123
Charges for the year (Note 10) FEBZ ([H:H10) 1,355 23 940 2,318
At 31 December 2021 72021128318 3,980 68 2,393 6,441
Charges for the year (Note 10) FERY (10 1,354 22 1,124 2,500
At 31 December 2022 2022128318 5,334 9 3,517 8,941
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 2022128310 40,166 36 6,736 46,938
At 31 December 2021 720215128310 41,520 58 5,066 46,644

Note: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all motor vehicles in right-of-
use assets are under hire-purchase arrangement with purchase
options. The Group is reasonably certain to exercise the purchase
options and the exercise price of purchase options, if any, were

included in lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has pledged a
leasehold land with carrying amount of approximately
RMB39,145,000 (2021: RMB40,334,000) to a bank to
secured certain borrowings (Notes 22(a)(ii) and 22(a)(iii)).

=
anp

F o R2022F /2021512831 H  #F A

BEENNRAAESNRBEES
BHOABZE T NERSER
ETERBESE MXRBEER
BITRME (NA) StAHEAR:.

2022 12831H  ZEBBERE
B4 AR 139,145,000 (20214 :
AR #40,334,0007T) HIFE & + #h

AR T IR 17 LAEY

22(a)(ii) & 22(a)(ii)) °

APERZERERAT o

"sETER M

TETTEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

16.

ERAEEE (|
ERGSBHERNAEERNE
RIEESFMT

2022 2021
20225 2021%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZINE (RN
(as above) (Note 10) (H$5%10) 2,500 2,318
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) HESBENFE (H59) 136 239
Total amount recognised in consolidated K 4r & B R A48 %8
profit or loss 2,636 2,557
Properties and assets leased for own use HEFERANMEREE

The Group leases a number of property, land parcels and
motor vehicles to operate its driving school. The leases
are typically made for fixed periods of five to thirteen
years (2021: five to thirteen years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants.

Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own
use

In addition, the Group owns several buildings and is the
registered owner of these property interests, including
the underlying leasehold lands. Upfront payments were
made to acquire these property interests, and there are
Nno ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the
land lease. The leasehold lands were leased for 40 years
for commercial use. The leasehold land components
of these owned properties are presented separately
because the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The lease liabilities of the Group are arising from the right-
of-use assets, except for the leasehold lands in the PRC
with carrying amount of approximately RMB39,145,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB40,334,000) which
the lease payments had been fully prepaid upfront and
have no corresponding lease liabilities.
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SEBREETYE WMIBKSE
DS EHER - HNBEE ASE13E
BIEE HARS (20214 : 5E134F) o FH
ERFUBEAAERER 88%
BARNERMNEYE BEHELR
B CEREE2EE

REFEEREE L MPFREEE
m

ESh > A B B R BB T I 25 5%
FYpE s (BEAARAE L) /1Y
ZREA A EXEMRENE
ZEMERD BEARE LM
HERRIFHEFBEI R -HE it
EHBAOFIFEERZ -BAREN
MIRSERI e DB M F B EY)
ENHELHBOREBZS] -

rEENHEESGBHIELERFEHE
BEEER2022F12831HEREE
#9745 N R %39,145,0007T (20214 :
AR #40,334,00070) WP EIEE +
BRI MBENREBLEHE
TETEAAERESERRIN -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BAZEE
System
software
AR
RMB’000
ANERETIT
COST R
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R2021E1B1H ~2021F128318 ~
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 20221818 &2022%F12831H 540
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION REtiss
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R2021FE1H1H ~2021F128318 ~
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 202218 1H K20228F12831H 540
CARRYING VALUE IREE BREE
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 R20218 &2022%12H31H =
The above intangible assets have finite useful life. Such i EEREEEBRUERSF
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis HozEmPLEEN G OIERE
over the estimated useful lives of five years. HAFUEGEEE#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 18. B R HMthEURRIE « %

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS EKRFACHRIE
2022 2021
20221 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFRT ARETR

Trade receivables B 2RI 60 112
Other receivables H A FEUFRIE 1,500 1,467
Less: allowance for expected credit loss 75 : TEHAS BE B R (1,428) (1,428)
Other receivables, net of expected BRI NpRTEHEEEE
credit loss 72 39
Prepayments BARIE 1,358 3,926
Deposits b 1,739 1,739
3,229 5,816
Less: Prepayment paid for property, B DEAERBEEN
plant and equipment classified as non- ¥ % = KR HEHY
current assets BTN RIE (720) (1,080)
Deposits paid for construction NERIERDEEN
in progress classified as ERIREGES
non-current assets (1,739) (1,739)
Current portion BNEAER > 770 2,997
The Group’s payment methods with its customers for AEBMIEHERBFIRFTTER
provision of driving training services are mainly on cash FRNRAZEEERRERBEB
and through online payment platforms. Generally, the BENRTEE - —RME » FER
course emolument fees are billed in advance with no LEEAGE TERFEREE
credit period granted to customers. The Group seeks to HoAEBESKEFHEREBER
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables WHRIBNERIZESUEERBEEE
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed A -mhEEECHERARE
regularly by senior management. The Group does not FRoAEBUEMEE S EBWHRIE
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its EREAEEMREFLREMEERR
trade receivable balances. Fo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates:

18. BB R H R IRk IH ~ 4%

ERFEMRIE (&)

RERAHEINE 5B WRIER
ORI

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT AR¥EF T

0 - 30 days 0E 30X 60 112

No balance as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil) which is
past due more than 90 days was considered as in default
as those balances were mainly with those government
authorities with good credit quality and pending for
completing their allocating funds procedures. Based
on the historical credit loss experience and/or general
economic conditions of the debtors, the directors of the
Company consider the expected credit loss on these
debtors to be insignificant.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised reversal of allowance for expected credit loss
on other receivables of approximately RMB Nil (2021:
RMB40,000) due to recovery of other receivables.

The trade and other receivables and deposits are all
denominated in the functional currency of the respective
entities in the Group.

202212831 H » W E B BB
Q0K BIAEER (20214 @ 4E) I AE
Ko RAAZEEGTIEREES
ZREMHTSMEERBE M ERTR
BNk EF -REBFEEESE
KB R W EETE AR
R BEFTDAZEBEHEANERS
EEFET K

HE2022F128310 R UR[El H
e W TR TS » AN 5 B FE ER H M FE U
RIBTEHAE EEEBENE RO A
RIEZ 5t (20214 ¢ AR #40,000

7)) G

FRE B 5 Kk HAEBGRIE R & L
FEERRERNINEERE

BRERERERAT o T _HFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4o A
E =]

Bt #5 ¥R M 5E (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

19.

20.

China

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash and bank balances represent cash at banks and
on hand. Bank balances carry interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rate. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

As at 31 December 2022, there was approximately
RMB182,084,000 (2021: RMB174,732,000) denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations in the PRC, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised
banks to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(a) Trade and other payables and accruals

19.

20.

RITHERREAE

R RIVTERIERTRFAR
& o RITREBEN G B RITERA
KT BN EH B o RITEBE N
RSB RIF BILEA N S R AL 83 9
1T

R2022F12831H AR
182,084,0007¢ (20214 : AR
174,732,0007T) U AR EL 17
RPENIRT AREATBERSR
MAEMEE AT BEFPRHBN
SNEEIBIER REE - EEKRGE
EEATC AEEEEEBERE
ETINEXBZHIRITEAR B RIKR
AHEHMEE

85 REME A RIERE

stERAREHNER

(a) B8 53 R LAt A W0 T FE 5t 2
=

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTF T ARBT T

Trade payables (Note (i) B2 EARIE (BEE) 1,273 1,357

Construction costs payables FEfT ISR A A 5,396 5,741
Accrued salaries and Estfe hEMBTIRA

other staff cost 2,090 2,163

Accrued directors’ remuneration EEtEEME 1,616 1,096

Examination fees payables BNEHE 2,039 1,877

Other tax payables Hi L RIE 1,290 1,722

Other payables (Note (ii)) HApE M FRIE (B 5% (i) 3,722 3,244

17,426 17,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(@) Trade and other payables and accruals
(continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i

No credit period is granted by the trade creditors. Trade
payables are normally settled within 30 days from the
invoice date.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

20. B 5 B H fth & {4 7 18 & &
stERAKREHNER (8)

(a) BEZKRHEMEMRIERESE
B (@&
FM5E -

(0

HEZERATLERHESEH-
ERREOIRE-—RNERAH
HESOR M fE (T o

REZHH2INEZEMR

presented based on the invoice date: ERERE DITIT ¢
2022 2021
2022%F 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTFT
0 - 60 days 0E60F 457 1,132
61 - 90 days 61ZE90K 412 34
91 - 120 days 91 ZE120K 217 4
121 - 365 days 1217E365% - -
Over 365 days BiB365% 187 187
1,273 1,357

As at 31 December 2022, other payables mainly comprised
of accrued audit fee, accrued legal and professional
fees and refund liability amounting to approximately
RMB972,000 (2021: RMB750,000), RMB1,360,000 (2021:
RMB1,340,000) and RMB870,000 (2021: RMB910,000)
respectively.

(i

mhERERARAE

R2022F 12831 H» EfthfE
TREFEQREESEZE
B Bt ZEREEERALE
REEPNHARIEEI72,000
7t (20214 | AR #750,000
7t) ~ AR #1,360,0007T (2021
£ AR#81,340,0007T) R AR
#870,0007T (20214 : AR &
910,0007T) ©

s TETTHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. B 5 R EMENHIERE

ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(continued)
(b) Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent advance payments of
driving course fees from customers upon enroliment

of driving courses.

(b) EHER

stERAKRENER (B)

GHERERVENRERHN
RREFERREERMMN

Movement of contract liabilities is as follows: EHNeEEEUWT -
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
At 1 January P1B1H 30,463 34,811
Decrease in contract liabilities as ~ FERRERAWRFIERNED
a result of being recognised as aERL REYHAGHNER
revenue during the year that was
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (24,606) (24,096)
Decrease in contract liabilities asa AR RAEHNEHEER D
result of refund to customers (1,219) (735)
Decrease in contract liabilities as a R E BB WHER AR EZER
result of forfeiture due to expiry aHadER
recognised as revenue (256) (252)
Increase in contract liabilities as FRAWBRERBEEMENNEN
a result of receipt of customer I=REppll
deposits during the year 18,875 20,735
At 31 December 128318 23,257 30,463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(b) Contract liabilities (continued)

During both years, the Group allows refund of the
total amount of the course fees to the customers
before they complete the driving skill written test,
after deducting the registration fees. Depending
on the contract terms, the Group allows refund
of 51% to 58% of the total amount of the course
fees excluding the registration fees, to customers
after completion of the driving skill written test
but prior to provision of driving training services.
The Group does not allow refund of the course
fees to the customers after the commencement
of providing driving training services to them. The
Group recognises refund liability under “Trade and
other payables and accruals” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from contracts with customers
and expected time to be recognised as revenue:

20. B 5 B H fth & {4 7 18 & &
stERAKREHNER (8)

(b)

EH8EaE EB)
RmEEERRB > ~EBE 2T
EEPSEMENE SRR
BRROKINBRGENERE
BHEE - RBSNET &NE
BiETRERTEEAEREIR
HEREINIRS  IRER
BEZFREE (FEELSNKRR
L B) BEENI51%E58% © A&
EARAHFERAATRIREE
BiZdIRF R AT P REERE
B AEBBENEBERIA
REMBERRRTNIES &
HhERIEREtEA] o

TRINTRERENEEZRE
TERHOEEKRBEARESE S
mBYEFRA

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ABBTFRT  ARETR

Expected to be recognised as TRHAR S0 A W 2
revenue
— Within one year ——&FR
— After one year ——F%&

17,443 21,324
5,814 9,139
23,257 30,463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

21. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as follows:

21.FHE&E

HEEREREMHERIKRTZ27
W

2022 2021
20225 2021%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: RUTHERIENEESRE:
— Within one vyear ——&FR 1,481 1,098
— Within a period of more than one year ——FE FBARBBEMRERH
but not exceeding two years EA 1,207 445
— Within a period of more than two —-MEULEBRBERENH
years but not exceeding five years Gl 1,376 514
— Over five years —HAEMNE 539 710
4,603 2,767
Less: Future finance charges B R BEREE (854) (507)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAERE 3,749 2,260
Less: Amounts due for settlement within 78 : BREHREI12ES A
twelve months from the end IS ENEEE
of the reporting period (shown (ENARBEE)
under current liabilities) (1,130) (962)
Amounts due for settlement after twelve B REHIKRFE12E S %
months from the end of the reporting BN EEE
period (show under non-current (ENABIFERBER)
liabilities) 2,619 1,298

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 5.8% to 13.2%
(2021: 5.8% to 11.0%). All leases are entered at fixed
prices. The Group does not face significant liquidity risk
with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are
monitored within the Group’s treasury function.

As at 31 December 2022, lease liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB2,613,000 (2021: RMB935,000) in
relation to hire-purchase of motor vehicles which are
secured by corresponding motor vehicles and guaranteed
by Mr. Qi.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

22. BORROWINGS

22, &k

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBBTRT ARETRT

Bank borrowings, secured (Note a) RITER BIEA (Mista) 52,230 38,750
Bank borrowings, unsecured (Note b) RITIEF WIKE (5ko) 3,000 3,000
55,230 41,750
The carrying amounts of the above LFRERNEmERR
borrowings are repayable: MNTHAREEE -
— Within one year ——FR 55,230 32,750
- Within a period of more than one year —BREEKRIEF—FULE
but not exceeding two years from FEBMENEER
the end of the reporting period - 9,000
55,230 41,750
Analysed into: vaRii
- Current — e 55,230 32,750
- Non-current —IEmE - 9,000
55,230 41,750
Notes: BosE -

(@) As at 31 December 2022, secured bank borrowings consisted of
five (2021: four) bank borrowings:

(i) a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB17,730,000
(2021: RMB17,750,000) was secured by the operation right
of a subsidiary of the Company, Tong Tai School and was
guaranteed by Mr. Qi (2021: only secured by the operation
right of Tong Tai School), bearing a fixed interest rate at
9.8% (2021: 11.2%) per annum and repayable in July 2023
(2021: July 2022);

(@ F2022F128318  BIRFIRITEMR
HA (2021 @ M) HIRITEREAR

0] x4& AR1K17,730,0007T (2021
£ AR¥17,750,00070) KR
FTEIUERE—KKB A
ERE R R IR
TR (20214  ELUB SR
ERMEE IR » FET
K A9.8% (20214 : 11.2%)
I AR 2023FE7H (20214 ©
2022%78) BE ;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

22. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(@) (continued)

(i) a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB10,000,000
(2021: RMB10,000,000) was secured by the leasehold land
and building of Tong Tai School with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB39,145,000 (2021: RMB40,334,000)
and RMB5,969,000 (2021: RMB6,404,000) respectively
(Notes 16 and 15) and was guaranteed by the spouse of
Mr. Qi, bearing a fixed interest rate at 6.6% (2021: 7.6%)
per annum and repayable in May 2023 (2021: May 2022);

(i) a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB13,500,000
(2021: Nil) was secured by the leasehold land and building
of Tong Tai School with carrying amount of approximately
RMB39,145,000 (2021: Nil) and RMB18,154,000 (2021:
Nil) respectively and was guaranteed by Mr. Qi and his
spouse, bearing a fixed interest rate at 5.2% (2021: Nil) per
annum and repayable in January 2023. Subsequently on 5
January 2023, the repayment date has been extended to
30 December 2023 and other terms remained the same;

(iv)  a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB9,000,000
(2021: RMB9,000,000) was secured by the operation right
of a subsidiary of the Company, Suiping County Shunda
Driver Training Company Limited, bearing a fixed interest
rate at 10.4% (2021: 10.4%) per annum and repayable in
August 2023 (2021: August 2023); and

(v) a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB2,000,000
(2021: RMB2,000,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Qi and his
spouse, bearing a fixed interest rate at 4.9% (2021: 4.4%)
per annum and repayable in August 2023 (2021: August
2022).

(b)  As at 31 December 2022, an unsecured bank borrowing with
principal amount of RMB3,000,000 (2021: RMB3,000,000) was
bearing a fixed interest rate at 4.45% (2021: 4.65%) per annum
and repayable in June 2023. (2021: January 2022. Subsequently
on 6 January 2022, the repayment date has been extended to 9
July 2022 and other terms remained the same.).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

22. BORROWINGS (continued) 22. fam (&)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: AEBNEREARENOT !
2022 2021
2022%F 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBBTRT ARETRT

Fixed-rate borrowings EEMER 55,230 41,750
The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s KEBBTNERNZRLENT !

borrowings are as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ABRTRT ARETRT

Effective interest rate per annum: BRERN xR

— Fixed-rate borrowings —ERBMER 4.45% 10 10.4%  4.4%to 11.2%
4.45%%10.4% 4.4%%11.2%

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB which KEBBRUARESE BAKxE

is same as the functional currency of the respective EAAEEENIIEEEMER -

entities in the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/

23. BEMEERE  (BE)
MU AR E RN EBRERE

(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the B8E&/ (BEE) MEMEH .
year:
Temporary
difference on
depreciation Temporary
of property, difference
plant and on interest Revenue Deductible
equipment  capitalisation recognition tax losses Total
MERE &
RENEN FMEELRLH R IE
YEFERE YEFEEE W s e B Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 120211 B1H 297 2,047 1,370 - 3,714
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 1k E,/ Gt A) 8%
(Note 11) (M5E11) 3,085 (151) 1,762 = 4,676
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12831H K
1 January 2022 20221 H1H 3,362 1,896 3,132 - 8,390
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss ~ #1B& 8,/ (Gt A) 8%
(Note 11) (M5E11) 136 (148) (867) (1,389 (2,268)
At 31 December 2022 $2022512H31H 3,498 1,748 2,265 (1,389) 6,122

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB5,556,000 (2021: Nil)
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
operating subsidiaries in the PRC. Based on the business
plans of the Group, it is expected that the operating
subsidiaries in the PRC will generate sufficient future
profits to utilise these tax losses. Deferred tax assets in
respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
RMB1,389,000 (2021: Nil) was provided as at 31
December 2022. The tax losses will expire after 5 years

from the year in which the losses were incurred.
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24.

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

SHARE CAPITAL 24, IR 7
Number of Share
shares capital
in B fg 2
RMB’'000
ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRO.01BTHNEBER
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021,  732021F181H 20214
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 12831H2022%F181H
2022%F12831H 10,000,000,000 90,179
Issued and fully paid EEITRAR
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021,  7A2021F181H 20214
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 12831H2022%F181H
T2022%F12831H 400,000,000 3,608
RESERVES 25. f#f&

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity

Share premium

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents cash contributions from Mr. Qi.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory
profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses)
determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve
until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital. The statutory reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses and may
be capitalised as registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance of the statutory reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

APERZERERAT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 26. FEAgHEET 2
Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of RIFFL2020F 9B 19H E AR A B K
the Company on 19 September 2020, a share option RIBBAVARR BRI
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted. (TRERE RESTEY)
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide EREE ST EREAE
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their BEHEMBEBETEMNEGERA
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. To
The board of directors of the Company may, at its AABEEGHNBERIEERHE
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such B U EERBES S
number of new shares as the board of directors of the ETHNERAENMKRMD  ZEBE
Company may determine at an subscription price at a BABER T ZEEE ((ROK
price which shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing ERERZEAPNKHE ;(i)RH
price of the shares on the offer date of the option; (i) NEEEREREQPI AEES
the average closing prices of the shares for the five SEEHZTFHWRHE ; R(i)kRH©®
consecutive business days immediately preceding the BREEZHANEE.

offer date of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a PRIEMEBMN KRB AT LIERIAR L
period of ten years from the date of the adoption of HRIBRKRERBERES S ERMA
Share Option Scheme and shall expire at the close of HAEST10OF AR R B AR
business on the business day immediately preceding the EZtE T EFE 2 HAINE XA
10th anniversary thereof unless terminated earlier by the EEREARRE R

shareholders in general meeting.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within REBEBREZIREENIREERQLE
21 days inclusive of the day on which such offer was Fo1HR (BEER) B - BiEM
made. An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted RERNGIAKERNEE  REA
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of BINEIUAARRBEl AR m AEAEH
the offer is duly signed, together with a non-refundable B EMNE1.00B TR RE
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way R BIEER KA AEEM-
of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the

Company.

Save as determined by the board of directors and BREESETE RO EBRE
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant options, ZIREMEEINN RITEERER
there is no minimum period for which an option must be BMEABEREERENRTBRR
held or the performance target which must be achieved WBERZRITEZ

before an option can be exercised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

27.

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)  26. BBi& T2 (B)
The maximum number of shares in respect of which RIEBERE S A RQABRILNE
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme I EMERESE (NB) AR
and any other share option scheme established by the HERERANESROBE S
Company, if any, is 40,000,000, representing 10% of the 40,000,0008% > HHE R #1%8 £ B
issued share capital of the Company upon initial listing. KABDEITRAN10% - B #
The total maximum number of shares which may be sHEI R R EMBIRESE A)
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted ETHMEEREBEFTENER
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme RETEMAIEZETHNRSRMDAR
and any other share option scheme, if any, shall not FAEBBARBFKFEEITRA
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company #910%
from time to time.
No share options have been granted under the Share EIRMBI T EEE > MBI IRE
Option Scheme since its adoption. ARSI LG -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. BN K I
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not FtEEYIE « ME K&z HE
provided for in respect of construction ~ BETAEE R BEENE RS H
of property, plant and equipment - 1,392
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 28. Rk B

28.

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group does not have any
material related party transactions in the normal course of
its business.

Compensation to key management personnel

The directors of the Company were considered to be
the key management personnel of the Group. The
remuneration of the directors of the Company is set out in
Note 12.

APERZERERAT o

BREaVBRREAMBIMES
Sy AEERBEEHBEDILE
ERIERRAB SRS o

R EEA S M

FABDEERAHTEBNRREE
BAB - AATEE M N E
120

TETTEER

215



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

29. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 29.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022

REBATNKE
R2022F 12831 HMM B AT 15

are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

L1

Issued and fully paid share Equity interests attributable Principal activities and

capital/registered capital

to the Company

place of operation

HRRL/ BEARMERE,/ i o
WEAEHE P33t 2 B BB HfER KATEIERIE TEFPREEME
2022 2021
2022 20214
Directly held:
EERA:
Ample Best International Limited The BVI Authorised: US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
15 December 2016 Paid up capital: US$4
BEERERAT EBEUHE AT ¢ 50,000% 7T REER
20165128150 BREL 4ET
Indirectly held:
MERE !
Maxi Access Limited Hong Kong Paid up capital: HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 January 2016
RRBRAR &% BEEL 1B REZRK
2016515288
Wincox Limited Hong Kong Paid up capital: HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 December 2016
BHERAE B BREL BT REER
2016512528H
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* The PRC Registered: RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Notes (i) and (ii)) 2 June 2016 Paid up capital: RMB71,000,000
HEEBRRCEEERAR (HaH0K() R = - AR 100,000,000 REER
2016%6H2H BEEA : AR¥71,000,0007T
Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver Training The PRC Registered: RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of driving training
Company Limited* (Note (i)) ) 24 April 2014 Paid up capital: RMB20,000,000 courses in the PRC
HEERFZALKHBEREENFRAA (FEH) FE = - AR 20,000,000 TR B A R B B HI R
2014545248 #eER 1 AE20,000,0007T
Suiping County Shunda Driver Training Company Limited*  The PRC Registered: RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of driving training
(Note (i) 25 December 2012 Paid up capital: RMB2,000,000 courses in the PRC
BYRIRZESEENFRAT (H=Z0) g = - AR#2,000,0007 R R R B B IR 2
20126128258 HREX AK2,000,0007
Suiping Tongtai Occupational Training School The PRC Registered: RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of occupational
Company Limited* (Note (i)) 20 July 2020 Paid up capital: RMB3,000,000 training services in the PRC
BEERBEEIZRERAD (H:26) R st © AK#3,000,0007T TR R B4R B 2 3R AR S
2020575208 BRER  AR3,000,0007

*

official names of the companies are in Chinese.

Notes:

(i) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC.

The English names are for identification purpose only and the

(if) The registered capital has not yet fully paid up during the
years ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had unpaid share capital of RMB29,000,000 (2021:
RMB29,000,000) for this subsidiaries.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes lease liabilities and borrowings disclosed
in Notes 21 and 22, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

30.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31.£fTH
Categories of financial instruments EMITAESEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®EF T

Financial assets at amortised cost: IR TNERNBE !
Trade and other receivables B 5 KEMEWRIE 132 151
Bank balances and cash RTEFKRIRE 182,326 175,242
182,458 175,393

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R#HFEMANEHEE !
Trade and other payables B REMENRIE 12,430 15,478
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,749 2,260
Borrowings EEN 55,230 41,750
71,409 59,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. These has been no change
to the Group’s exposure or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from lease liabilities, borrowings, and bank balances.
Lease liabilities, borrowings and bank balances at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management.

2. £ EMEEBERER

FEBNIETHRTAGEES K
H M WRRIE  IRITAE R IR E
B REMEARE -HEERER
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38 4N {2 5% =5 R B BY B SR A
NT-EEEHZSARETER
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e AEEFMEBENREBNAEER
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FARKRIRE R EREHIHH R

MERBRETEREHEER
BEMRIRTTEER F ERER
WHEE&E B AIRITHER
DRSAERAZREREN
KEBRAFENKRR 7
EETEERSHMITETARN
HAMERER - AEBAEE
BERMRMRT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. ¢RiRAMEEEHERLRKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(@) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s net debts (being interest-bearing
financial liabilities less bank balance and cash) at the
end of the reporting period.

(48)
(a) FIEER (@)

TREFLEERFES BIN
BEEmAafERTERKIR
&) KRB EHARBFRAR D

2022 2021
20225 20214
Interest Interest
rate per rate per
annum (%) Amounts annum (%) Amounts
FFE(%) &8 FRE(%) &%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR ARBEFTT
Fixed rate borrowings ~ EBE™
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.8% to 13.2% (3,749) 5.8% to 11.0% (2,260)
5.8%ZF13.2% 5.8%%F11.0%
Borrowings RN 4.45% to 10.4% (55,230) 4.4%to 11.2% (41,750)
4.45%%10.4% 4.4%E11.2%
(58,979) (44,010)
Variable rate deposits ~ EBEM
Bank balances RITHE 0.3% to 0.4% 182,326 0.3% t0 0.4% 175,242

0.3%%0.4%

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 10 basis points in saving
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss before income tax and decreased/increased
the Group’s retained profits by approximately
RMB182,000 (2021: RMB175,000).
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0.3%%£0.4%

BB S
12022F128318 » [z ]
KIBEETIE,/ EFA10BF M
FrEEMESERFIE B
EENRFIERAIEBEGEE
1@, R R A E B RE &
MR EMA AR
182,0007¢ (20214 : AR &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. ¢RiRAMEEEHERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
(b) Currency risk (b) E¥EE &

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
related primarily to certain bank balances and
other payables denominated in HK$. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

ERERETMITARKRES
REN AT ERREREEHM
B EN Y R B2 o

AEBAENIINERRERE
DA TTHERE TIRITA R K
HitENRBEERM -A&HE
A 6 48 S IS 300 SR o SR T
EEETERIINERAR LR
BRERZBHEIPINEREE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign REBLSMNESHENEBEE
currency denominated monetary asset and liabilities ReEnNEREEwT
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARETT ARBTR ARETR
HK$ BT (2,524) (2,032) 152 435

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in
RMB. No currency risk has been identified for the
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currency of the
subsidiaries in the PRC to which these transactions
relate. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
primarily arises from certain financial instruments
including bank balance and other payables which
are denominated in HK$. During the years, the
Group did not have foreign currency hedging policy
but management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure.

APERZERERAT o

AEERTERREEE K8
DEBUANRESERER
AEEWELUAARESHEN
THMEEREMEREHAEM
ERAR ARBEREZEFER
ZE R TEIM B AT ZIEE
B o REE AR INE B
FTERETFUBITHENEHR
TH(BERTEGRREME
HRRIB) MEE -FR > ~EE
TR SNEERER  BEEEE
SRERRIIERR -

TETTEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. ¢RiRAMEEEHERLRKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (4&)
(b) Currency risk (continued) (b) E¥EE (48)
Sensitivity analysis B E 2T
2022 2021
2022 20215
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign  (Increase)/ in foreign  (Decrease)/
exchange decrease exchange increase
rate pre-tax loss rate  pre-tax profit
BX [RRAIGE BX  IRRADEF

£/ (FR) (8m) /@ £t/ (FR) (AL /1810
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

HK$ BT 5% (119) 5% (80)
HKS BT (5%) 119 (5%) 80
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERMERRET

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum 20225128310 » AEEFRT
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial HYE=EERMBEERAE
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an BRRZHFRERBITEEM
obligation by the counterparties is arising from EEMBER JIRBLAAER
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised BN RFA B C B TR
financial assets as stated in the consolidated BEENREE

statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. &RiRAMSEEEHERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERMERREN G (&

(continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group regularly
monitors the external credit ratings of the financial
institutions based on available information at each
reporting date for its bank balances which are
placed in these financial institutions. The credit
rating information is supplied by independent rating
agencies where available and, if not available,
the credit management team uses other publicly
available financial information. The Group’s exposure
and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties.

For trade and other receivables, the Group
determines the ECL on these items individually by
estimation based on historical credit loss experience
of the debtor, general economic conditions of the
industry and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk arising
from bank balances as there was a bank which
individually contributed 74.6%(2021: 59.8%) of the
Group’s bank balances as at 31 December 2022.
The management considers that the credit risk on
liquid funds is low as counterparties are financial
institutions with good reputation.

mEEFREERR ~EH
BEREFAZREBRIRITERR
RERSHERFER > EH
ERTRIEBINERE &
R EEFRER BEILTR
WiE A ' R E8
BEEERSEREMARAA
MHBEH AERFEREH
REMOKRERZZHFHNEES
ST 4R o A P ZE Y B 32 57 4B (B
ERRERZHFHEETH

)

B Sk EMEWRIEMS
FEBRBEEFANBEREE
BN TTENBREERER
RS BB ER AFBAGRGT
[ a7l - LU E % F 18 B 18 5
FBHEEER

REBBIRTEREENESR
REBE > T5 R FR202248E12 831
H—XBITEHAEBIRITHER
74.6% (20214F : 59.8%) B
REHFAEBERGTEENSE
g SEEBIXARIES
HEERREIK-

BRERERERAT o T _HFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to

ECL assessment:

Internal

credit rating

AR s TR

Description

B

R.TMAMKEERR

(48)
(c) EERME

R LR

Rim BT S ()

T%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%l%ﬁf?

BE & R kA s E R TEHR
ﬁ:EﬂFﬁﬂ%u?TE‘
Other financial
Trade receivables  assets
BREKIE HtEMEE

Low risk

ER

Watch list

ERLE

Doubtful

RER

Loss

B

Write-off

155

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts
REHFENRBERE B RERANESE

Debtor frequently repays in full after due dates
but usually settle in full

BHEAEERIBRETUERRBE LT
R

There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or external
resources

BEBNBRENERSIINIE R D
EERBESEN

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

ERBRAZEEFREERNE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery

BRERAZGBHE A ARARBMBREERE
gy I
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Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired
Yo BREREES
B-REERHE

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired

EoEREREES
B-REERHE

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired
Yo BREREES
B-REERHE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
Yo BREREES
B-EERE

Amount is written off

G ERRE

12-month ECL

12ERRMEERE

12-month ECL

12ERRBEERE

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

EnBRRBEES
B-BEEANE

Lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

EnBRRBEES
B-E5NHE

Amount is written off

i HR R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. ¢RiRAMEEEHERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERMERRETG (&)
(continued)

Internal 12m or
credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
A& 128 H & B
EET4& BHEERSE REAE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARETn ARETR
Financial assets at amortised costs
BEERAHENERMEE
Trade receivables 18 Low risk Lifetime ECL 60 112
B 2R WGIE B Rk SonBREREEEE
Other receivables 18 Low risk 12m ECL 72 39
=R e iyl 12ERBREEER
Other receivables 18  Loss Lifetime ECL 1,428 1,428
(credit-impaired)
H s IE B8 o ENBREERE
(EERME)
Bank balances and cash 19 Low risk 12m ECL 182,326 175,242
RITHEGRRE Bk 12 A EHEEER
The following table shows reconciliation of loss T 2R E Y L E A FE R IE R 5T
allowance that has been recognised for other BB EER
receivables:
Loss
allowance
BiaRAE
RMB’000
ARETF T
As at 1 January 2021 FR20215181H 1,468
Reversal of impairment loss BB RS E (] (40)
As at 31 December 2021,1 January 2022 and 220215128318 * 20225
31 December 2022 181H %&2022%F12H31H 1,428
BHERERARAT o —_T__HFFH 225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBHRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows

R2.EMAMREEBRRRER
(%3)

(d)

MEE = AR
REERBETRARE  £&
EEREK ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%w%E%
WIRERREFEY KT
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ
BRI E -

TRFVAEEERERNER

GREHR - TRIOBESE
EEUERRNTNRTE BN
WEMERAMRRTRE
R TREEMNEREER
TRE-NFMERESFHA
FOoRAARBREEREEEANS

are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived RERRNF] R
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
Weighted
average Over 1 year Total
interest rate Within one but within undiscounted Carrying
perannum  On demand year 5years  Over 5 years cash flows amounts
mig KR
THERNE RER kDL 1258 BBsE REMELH REME
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT  AEBTRT ARETR ARETn ARETRT AEETR
As at 31 December 2022 120225128318
Trade and other payables ERRAMELTE N/A RER 12,430 - - - 12,430 12,430
Lease liabilities HEaE 10.8% - 1,481 2,242 880 4,603 3,749
Borrowings B3
Fixed rate EagiE 7.8% - 57,048 - - 57,048 55,230
12,430 58,529 2,242 880 74,081 71,409
Weighted
average Over 1 year Total
interest rate Within one but within undiscounted Carrying
per annum On demand year 5years  Over 5 years cash flows amounts
i KR
FHERE ZER TEMR 1255 BESE HRenmsRE fREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETR AREFT ARETRT ARETR AREFRT
As at 31 December 2021 120214128318
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 R EfE(IFUE
RIEHER N/A TR 15,478 - - - 15,478 15,478
Lease liabilities HE&E 7.9% - 1,098 959 710 2,767 2,260
Borrowings &%
Fixed rate EEH= 9.5% - 35,101 9,579 - 44,680 41,750
15,478 36,199 10,538 710 62,925 59,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
inputs.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate
their fair values at the end of the reporting period.

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

2. EMAMREEBRRER
(#5)

33.

(e)

AFE
SRMEERSMEA RN ATE
BAREB/ER U RRE
BB B 5 BRI EE A B
AMERITHRR SRR 7
Eo

AEEEEER D REHEAA
ARNEREERTHEER
HEAREFNRESHRLFE
EE o

MEZPMEEEENY

AR

TREFMTEBREDIRELE

SENEH SERERERSE

0

H-MELIMELEREAE IR
REERGEGRENERDELR
ERPFRBRENENHEEREN
KRR ME

BRERERERAT o T _HFER

227



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBWRMNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

33.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33.mtEZEFFESAENY

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES iR (48)
(continued)
Lease
liabilities Borrowings
HEaR EEN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBFT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 3,467 36,800
Changes from finance cash flows: MERTREED
- Proceeds from borrowings — &R ERIE - 41,750
- Repayment of borrowings —BEMEN - (36,800)
— Interest paid on borrowings —BERFE - (3,655)
- Repayment of lease liabilities principal —fEEHE&ELRE (1,207) -
- Repayment of lease liabilities interest ~—fBEHE&EF B (239) -
Total changes from financing cash flows FIEIRSRESE 4L (1,446) 1,295
Other changes: Hh&s)
— Interest expenses (Note 9) —FEF% (ME9) 239 3,655
At 31 December 2021 and 120216128318 K
1 January 2022 2022F181H 2,260 41,750
Changes from finance cash flows: RERESREEE .
— Proceeds from borrowings —fEMEERIE - 46,230
— Repayment of borrowings —EBEREM - (32,750)
— Interest paid on borrowings —BAERFE - (4,452)
- Repayment of lease liabilities principal —EEHE&EAXS (1,305) -
- Repayment of lease liabilities interest ~ —ERBAE&EF B (136) -
Total changes from financing cash flows BB RE& REEHEEE (1,441) 9,028
Other changes: Hithgg)
— Addition in lease liability -HhEHEGE 2,794 -
— Interest expenses (Note 9) —F 2R (MEF9) 136 4,452
2,930 4,452
At 31 December 2022 F2022%E12831H 3,749 55,230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR MR R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had entered into new lease agreements for motor
vehicles under hire-purchase arrangements. As a result,
the Group recognised addition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities at approximately RMB2,794,000 and
RMB2,794,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
additions of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB411,000 were resulted from utilisation
of deposits and prepayments paid in prior years.

4. TEFRERS

HE2022F12831HLEFE » AE
EEAMRBEZTEE THAEBEIILN
HEWZ At ZEEER DAY
HANRME2 794,000 2 AR
2,794,000t REINME R E E K
HEaE-

HZE2021F12B31HLEEE B
R FELZNNRERBAXR
B AEEYE- BE&RBEIEM
#9 A\ B #411,0007T ©

BRERERERAT o T _HFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4o A
E =]

Bt #5 ¥R M 5E (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. &xAFMEIR IR

OF THE COMPANY

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARET T

Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EBARNKE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries TS B A RIFUE 60,472 60,509
60,472 60,509

Current assets MEBEE
Prepayments AN RIE - 815
Bank balances RIT 4L ER 134 390
134 1,205
Current liabilities mENEE

Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 Kk E M 218 Kk Est & A 4,140 3,129
Amount due to a subsidiary e — R B A B 7B 8,818 9,291
12,958 12,420
Net current liabilities mEAaERE (12,824) (11,215)
Net assets BEERH 47,648 49,294

Capital and reserves B2 R ikt
Share capital g2 3,608 3,608
Reserves (B 44,040 45,686
Total equity MK 47,648 49,294

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Qi Xiangzhong
7T
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
frEaMBHRRWE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;ZE20225F12831HIEEE

36. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

36. =~ E) R

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B in B REtEE mat
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 1R2021FE181H 105,636 (67,704) 47,932
Loss and total comprehensive FREER 2 EEIBHEEE
loss for the year - (2,246) (2,246)
At 31 December 2021 and 2021128318 K%
1 January 2022 2022%181H 105,636 (569,950 45,686
Loss and total comprehensive FERNEE KR HEEIE4EEE
loss for the year - (1,646) (1,646)
At 31 December 2022 2022%12831H 105,636 (61,596) 44,040
BHERERBRAT o« “EZFEFIR
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FINANCIAL RESULT AND SUMMARY
LR G E SN

A summary of the published results and of the assets and ZHAEBRBFREMBEEREBKE
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted ZHBEBREXZEAMEE - SEHBE
from the audited financial statements, is set out below. IEFHYIUIT o 2B E A IEHE B K E 1%
The summary does not form part of the audited financial BAF§FzZ—84% e

statements.
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRE ARETRT AR®BFTRT AREFRT AREFR®
RESULTS e
Revenue WA 47,734 67,151 67,963 93,452 77,699

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFT S AT (F18) /

gl (10,246) 1,613 9,644 31,179 31,938
Income tax credit/(expense)  F{SMEE/ (BA) 1,579 (5,063) (2,819) (12,095) (10,663)

(Loss)/profit for the year EREEE NEL
attributable to the owners of EE(E518),/ % H
the Company (8,667) (3,450) 6,825 19,084 21,275

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZBERE&RE

Non-current assets ERBEE 122,132 131,576 140,147 123,178 123,054
Current assets MBEE 183,096 178,239 175,367 194,168 83,419
Current liabilities TEEE (98,475) (84,448) (99,411) (57,547) (65,462)
Non-current liabilities ErBaR (8,741) (18,688) (5,974) (56,495) (52,968)

Net assets attributable to the ZEATEE A
owners of the Company RILEEFE 198,012 206,679 210,129 203,304 88,043
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17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Henan Suiping Rural Commercial Bank Corporation Limited

Central Bank Corporation Limited, Suiping Branch

STOCK CODE
1871

WEBSITE

http://www.china-oriented.com
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

R & K i se) =

DEFINITIONS B

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the MRAFEIRA > BEXERBFAIEIN > LU
following expressions shall have the following meaning: SEEWNTHEE .

“AGM” the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at on Friday, 30 June

MRRBEKE

“AGM Circular”

MRRBEARGEER

“Alpha Leap”

=

“Ample Star”

a2,

“Articles of Association”

MAMEIZ4RA)

“Audit Committee”
BiZEEYE)
“Board”

MEEg)

“Board Committees”

EEZ89)

2023 at 11:00 a.m. at 2/F, 35-45B Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong,
or any adjournment thereof;

KATEEFTN2023F6H308 (28 R) EF+—RREEHE IR RA35-
A5BSR2AERITHRRBFASGHHEEMNEST ;

the circular dated 27 April 2023 published by the Company in respect The
proposals involving (1) general mandates to issue Shares and to repurchase
Shares; (2) re-election of Directors; and (3) notice of AGM;
KRABMMNBITRMDERBLORND 2 —RIEEQEREES; RQREBFAE
BETIR 2 BEAA2023F4827TAZBX ;

Alpha Leap Holdings Limited (B EBIZRBRAE]), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 5 May 2016, whose entire
issued share capital is owned by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong;

BREERERAB N2016FE5A5HN RBREXEESHMMIINERAE
HES BB TRAHTARTEES ;

Ample Star Global Limited (8 2IRIKBRAE]), a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability on 21 March 2014, whose entire issued share
capital is owned by China Internet;

MEIRKBRAR R2014F3R21HRN HB R R HEEFMRIINERAR
He2HEETRAEHPRHEBERES ;

the articles of association of the Company;

KRB EBERRAA

The audit committee of the Company, which was established on 19 September
2019 pursuant to the resolutions of the Board on 19 September 2019;
RATNBEZZE S HIRBEESZEN2019F98 198 BRZEN2019F9819
HE&1L ;

the board of directors of the Company;
KRBEEE;

The board committees of the Company, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee;

FAREFZEG BEZEZES FHNEETRELEZET,

BRERERERAT o T _HFER
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEkkMaz (B)

“China Internet”

e B B B 48
“close associate(s)”
MR8 A

“Company”

T4 AT

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”
TR AZ 3R

“core connected
person(s)”
Mz O REAL

“Corporate Governance

Code”
MEZEEBRTA

“Cosmic Hero”

M 5 )

“Director(s)”

=4

“Greater Sino”

IR,

“Group”
M)

China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited (P E B B 4818 B SR E H
ABR/A 7)) (Stock code: 810), a company continued into Bermuda with limited
liability and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange;

FREEHMEAKEEMERBRAR (RMMASE 810)  RERERFELENS
REERE] HROIEERPmTERLET ;

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules;

BELHRRIFAETZEE

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (B ERIZERBRAT), an
exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange;
RPEERERERAT RNHASHETMMINERRERAE > HRN BT
FRLET;

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the context
requires otherwise, refers to Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Alpha Leap;

BEALTRAUFMETFZHE RXESAEIN IETRARAEREE ;
has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules;
BELHRAMRETZEE ;

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules;

EHRAM R+ O EREEESTR

Cosmic Hero Investments Limited (Z#E®REBRAE), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 6 June 2016,
the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Ling Wai Leung;
SHKRERRAB N2016FE6A6HN EBRE X EEFMMIINERAE
H2HERITRAHEERILLERES

director(s) of the Company;

KABESE;

Greater Sino Ventures Limited (f£2£8# B PR A F]), a company incorporated in
the BVI with limited liability on 13 June 2014, the entire issued share capital of
which is directly owned by Ample Star;

RFERKRBERRE N2014F6A13B T RBRERHEFMAINEBR AR
HEWEBTRARKETRES

the Company and its subsidiaries;
KABIRENBRE ;
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“HK$”
M7t

“Hong Kong”
r&#)

“IPO”
ERABRE
“Listing Date”
rEmHEA

“Listing Rules

FEmRAL

“Main Board”

M3 Hx

“Ministry of Public
Security”

TRZEER]
“Model Code”
MEZESFA
“Nomination
Committee”
NRHZEEYE)

“PRC” or “China”

THa

“Prospectus”

MRS

“Remuneration
Committee”

=S g

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BarimaARz (K)

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;
BREEERBETT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
FEEBFIITHE ;

the initial public offering of the Shares, further details of which are set out in the
Prospectus;
RONEBRABEEE HE—FPHBFHNBRERE;

24 October 2019, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main Board

of the Stock Exchange;
AR B A PR =4k A HER > BI2019% 108248 ;

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended from time to time;

BERAMAERZBERABDRZSF LHRR EAEESD ;

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel to GEM of the
Stock Exchange

R ZPTEFENESF X Z M OF
1TEF

BERETS)  BILNBIFT GEM BEE Y

Ministry of Public Security of the PRC (12 A R H A1 A % 26) ;
FEAREMNEALZE ;

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules;
LEHRAIM ST Fr S LT AESFETES X ZHRETE

the nomination committee of the Company;
$ N1 ?E% éﬁ =

The People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report and
for geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special
Administrative Region and Taiwan;

BEARSAE ERARERMASEDE T

El/%;

BREEE RMFITHE

the prospectus of the Company dated 11 October 2019;
AR HEAA2019F10B11BENIBRER ;

the remuneration committee of the Company;

KABFHWNEES ;

BRERERERAT o T _HFER
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEkkMaz (B)

“RMB”

TAR)

“SFO”
N385 R EAE &6

“Shareholder(s)”
-

“Shares”

TRZ 1% 1

“Shun Da School”

Mg 1

“Stock Exchange
MBSk 32 P

“substantial
shareholder(s)”
TEFERR]
“Takeovers Code”
MY B <F Al
“Tongtai Cultural”

M@z X1t

“Tong Tai School”

NaRER

“°/o”

rc’/oJ

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;
FEZEEBARE ;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented and/or otherwise modified from time to time;
BEREFESER S RIAERE) KRBT - BAR HBITEN ;

holders of the Shares;

RODFTAEN

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
our Company, which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange;

RAABRAFEREEOIFATHNEEBR  RUBTEE RN TR L
w5

Suiping County Shunda Driver Training Company Limited* (& T 5% JIE 3 28 &
EZIIBRAT), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on
25 December 2012 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;
FERIBEEFEEIBRAT > R2012F12825HEFREMRILZBRA
8 /AR ABEEEENB AT ;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
BEBEMEXSFRAERAR ;

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules;
HELTRAMRETZEE

The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong, as amended, supplemented
and/or otherwise modified from time to time;
BEAESRAEEHERSZEGRNNATRE - SH RRMALEETE K1
FrEsT MRk, SHB1TEN;

Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* (5% 55 /& #8 Z= X AL 2 1E
BBR/AR]), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on 2 June
2016 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
HEEERXIEEEARAT R2016FE6 2B EFEMIIZERAR A
KABERZREERBRAR ;

Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver Training Company Limited* (& &[5 3@
AR BEER SEIERAT), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability on 24 April 2014 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company; and

HEEBEHRAMKEBBEEMBEIIARAB K2014F4824HFEFRBEMILZ
BRAR AXLCIEEEZENBAR ; &

per cent.

[EPal=r
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GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BarimaARz (K)

% i 57 &

This glossary contains explanations of certain terms used in A fiisA = &H A A ERFTIFB A BRI
this annual report in connection with us and our business. KEFIXFENETAR ZEmRE
These terminologies and their given meanings may not SHEZERMEHITHEZERF A E—
correspond to those standard meanings and usage adopted in &

the industry.
“A1 Vehicles”
FTA1EEEE &)

“A2 Vehicles”

I A28 B &
“A3 Vehicles”

FASERE )

“B1 Vehicles”
B1{EE i)

“B2 Vehicles”

I B2A B &

“C1 Vehicles”

rC1i8E &,

“C2 Vehicles”

FC2iaEH i,

“C6 Vehicles”

FCeiEE i)

large passenger vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry
of Public Security;
RERE —BALZEE| D EEE ;

large trailer vehicles with a total mass equal to or more than 4.5 metric
tonnes, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public
Security;

MESLFNHARNISAMN AR EE  fl—RBRZ S DRIEmEER ;

vehicles for carrying 10 or more passengers as city buses, being a type of
vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;
ERBMAREZHI0R U LRENE > B —BRLZEHE D RIERLE
Al s

medium passenger vehicles with a capacity for 10-19 passengers, being a
type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;

HEER/IOEIOANTEERE  I—EAZEE DHVERER ;

large and medium sized trucks and large and medium sized working
vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public
Security;

APERERAPEEEE I —B AL D EwER ;

small manual vehicles, light-goods manual vehicles and light-duty manual
working vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of
Public Security;

N FHE EAFHEEREUFHEEE I —BRALES
85,

|53 R EE 4

small automatic vehicles, light-goods automatic vehicles and light-duty
automatic working vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the
Ministry of Public Security;

N EEBE - KARHEEREEAEFHFEE B —RB AL D EH
851 ;

trailer vehicles with a total mass of less than 4.5 metric tonnes, being a
type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;
MEB/NRASAMNIE > Bl —RB AR D EREER ;

BRERERERAT o T _HFER
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEkkMaz (B)

“Large Vehicles”
KRB

“qualified level | driving
school”

rTEER—RER

“qualified level Il driving
school”

rEER_BRER

“Small Vehicles”

TNBYEE 8

A1 Vehicles, A2 Vehicles, A3 Vehicles, B1 Vehicles and B2 Vehicles, which
are generally used as commercial vehicles;

A14BEESR - A2SEEE G - ASLEE I - B1 BB AB2EEH > S1FABEE

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 80 training vehicles,
and is qualified under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving Training
Institutions (#B) 88 2 B 81531 BB &R 4F) to provide driving training
services in the PRC;

A (HPaE) oMU LilMBET S ERRBKIBBENSEIIREE
R TE P BIRHE W IF I ARFBAVER ;

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 40 driving vehicles,
and is qualified under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving Training
Institutions (#ENEE B BB E KK M) to provide driving training
services in the PRC; and

A (HPaE) 40U FESEIMT S ERBREEREEREITIIEE
BERFRGEPREREEREIRBZNER ; K&

C1 Vehicles, C2 Vehicles and C6 Vehicles, which are generally used as
private and/or commercial vehicles.

CUAEEH - CiBE M HCOBER B EANR K, SEAE-
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